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To th. Honorlble lator and
Memb€rs of lhe lwuricipal L.gislature
Lrunicipalitv ofJurna Diar, Prcrto Ri.o

We have audited rhe accompan\,ing linancial statemenrs of the go\emmcnral activities, business rype
activiiies. each major find and the agSregare remaininS fund informaliofl ofthe Municiparity ofJuane tii;,
(Municipalitv), as of and for the fiscal year ended June jO, :01t. shich colectiveiy comprise the
Municipaliq's basic fi'Encial sraten*nrs as list('d in the rable ofconrents. Thess linanciat statements ar€ the
responsibilio ot'rhe ltrunicipality s managcnlent. ou. responsibilirj is ro express opinions on these finarcial
statements based on our audh. we did not ,.dir tl)e fina.cial sraternrnts Dl villas del parque (FmHA project
No- 63-03J'0690660049), a busi,css-t."-pe ,cl'\ilr (prupriela^, furd)ofthc Ntunrcipatil). rvhich Sir,Sle A;dit
repor! rellects total assers. liabiliries. ncl assels, revenues and ev€ns€s oI $ t. t:0,,1eS. $ t ,:8a.ZOO.iSe,:OS,
$418,451 and $477.54r, respectirery. as of and for the riscar r€ar cnded June i0. 2oH. Those financial
statements were auditcd by other audirors whos! reB)n thcreon hos been furnished to us. and our opinion,
insofar as it rclares to the amounis included for villas del parque, is based on rhe repon ofrhe other auiirors.

E)icept as discussld in the tblhwing paragraphs. we conducted our audit in accordance with audiring
standards generally accepred in rhe united srates ofAmerica and the srandards applicable to financial aadii
contained in Govn nent .4ulititx * n&r.b. tssued by the comprroller cenerat of rhe uflited srares. Those
slandards require rhat $€ plan nnd p€rform the audir ro obrair .easor)able asslmnce abour whether lhe
unancial statemenrs are free ofmareral misstarenrent. An audit includes examifling on a resr basis. evidence
supportinS lhe amounts and disclosures in the financial srarements. An audil aiso includes ass€ssing the
accounting principles used and significant.srimares rade br- manaSerrenr. as *ell as evaluating the oierall
linancial stat€ment presenlatior. We belielc Lh,rr our audil rnd rhe report of other auditoi pmvide a
reasonable basis fo. ouropinions.

We wer€ unablc toobtain a er?luation from lhe lvltlnicipalil\'se\ternalItlB\crsofthe pendjng or lhrsdlened
litigalioas rs ofJune 10. :01 l. as discLrssed il| nole ti to finarrciat starenrcnts.

-the lttunicipalirr did nor ha\e a coinplele. updrred and accorure xccounlins rccords oflhe capiral ass€ls in
o(ler kr oblain sufficient an{.I conlpelent .tideDtial mat.er relaled to lh! cnpilal assels reponed in lhe
accompaflying sratcnrent ol nel its:jers {br $67.886,j89. nct of accumulated dcprcciarion of$27.541.41j.
Also' during the fiscal vear rhe Mufiicapalin did not recorded ccnai,r capiral assers additions and tre $er€
unable ro oblain lhe {ichil oflhe recbsiilicrrion ofrhe lonsrrLrcrion in progriss in rhe ac.ounrin! records. In
addirion. because ofthc inadequnc_r ol fic accounling records. $e $ere u rblc to fomr ao opini;n regarding
rhe capital assets rcponed ilr th€ accdmpan] ina stdcrnenl ofncl nssets.

P.O-:8or 35t, P.tE.! llt.6ot, Nol 66 North, Ousysltls, p.B. ooZA616l. (?az) EG4.r4oo . Fsr (7sz) ao4.66oo . oprp.a,-".OlotaJr.o"-
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In addirioo' drc N'lu'iicipariry_ did not h6\e comprctc. actumac and updated records of ahe compensated
absenccs at June i0. l0tl. Fu(hermorc. rjre liabilit) fbr compensaEd absences. rEcordcd in the
accompan\in8 sralem. r ofner assels fur s:.191.17?. iloes not iochcle the accumrlated compcrsalorv rime
ofall emplo).ees olllle Municipaliu-. Because ofllle inadequacy ol lhe acr()0l|IinE records, we were unable
ro tbrm an upili.rr rcgardin8 

'hc 
lrrhilit) rcF)r1ed frr comptn,idted f,rtanccs reponed tn the accomFnling

slatement of ne( asscts.

Because oflhe rignificance dfrhe malrers discussed in lhc preceding paragraphs. rhe scop€ or'our 
',o.k 

was
not sufficient to enablc us ro exprers. and $e do tur e\p.ess. a, opi ion.n rhe financial posirion ofrhe
governnEnlal acrivities of the Munic ipalit) al J urc i0. :0 1 l . or the c hangcs i, ti narcia l pos ition, rhereoi
for lhe lear (her eoded.

In addition. in oor opi..ion. bastd on our a.dir and rhe rcpo't of fic othcr auditors. the financial slatemenrs
refcncd to prcviously prcsent fairl)- in alr marerinl respccrs. rhc r€sp€ctivc tinarcial position oftfie business-
t.-'p€ actilities of the M'nicipalif , as ofJuDc 10.l0 and rhe changes iD financiat positioo and cish flou,s
thereof for rhe )ear the. ended. in conrbrfiin $irh acco.nring prir€ipres genemlly accepted in lhe united
States olAmerica-

ln addirion. in our opinidn. based on our audir and thc rcport ol orher audirors, rh. firanciar statemenrs
refened lo previously pre5ent fairly. ir] all nut"'ial respe'crs. rhe respeclive llrancial position of each major
furrd. propri€tary lund and aggregare rcmaining rirdd ioforoiar;on ofthc Municipalirl. ai ofJune 30. 20r 1 ind
the respective changes in financial pos;rim and, where applicabre. cash flows thereoffor rhe year then ended
in cDnformity rith accountints principles generally ac€cpred ir fte Lin;ted Stares ofAmerica.

ln accordanco with (irrprrnent .4u.lhhtg Stun&r.it. Bc ha\e also issued our.epon da&d Nlarch 29, 20i2,
on off consideration of ihe l\4unicipalir.-'s inrerral conrrol o'cr financial reportirrg and oD our tests of irs
compliance rvith certair provisions of la$s. rcgulario,s. cor)rra.ts- and grarri agreements and other matrem.'rhe prrposc ofthsr report is to describe the s.ope ofour lesrirg ol ifteflr3l control or€r financial reporting
aDd complianc€ and lhe rcsulas of thar tcsti,rg. a,d nor to pri)!'idc a,r opinion on thc ifltemal cont ol ouei
I'inMcial reporting or ofl co pliancc. Ihal repon rsan integral pan ol-atl audil p€rtbrmed in accordaoce
\rith Corctr netu ) u.tit it K 

gdrr.r./r rnd sho td bc cons idcred in assessing ihe resu hs of our audit

Accounting princillcs rensrallr acceptrd ir rh. tln.tod Slnlcs of America rcqxire (hal fie management'!
discnssioD and anallsis and rhc budgeiary comparison ifltbnnation on pagcs 4 rhrough 17 and 79 be
prescnlcd 1o supplemenr rhe b:rsic financial statcmcnls. Such jnlbnnati{rn. akhough no! a part of ihe basic
finaricial sutements. is requirc{ by ihe C;olcnrnerhl Accrrulring Sta dards Board. who considcrs it ro he
an esre tial parr of financial rcrnrting ior ptacinB thc basic llna ciat shierncllr in an approprial€
operati(tnal- economic, or hist.ricrl conle\r. Wc hsle rppli.d ce{ain limitcd proccdures ro rhe required
supplementary information in accordanc. \ ilh arditing andards gcn{.altr accepred an rhc Unired Sraies of
America. rhich consisled of inquirie: ,rf managcmcnt aboul the ilethrds ol-preparjng $e inlbrmalion and
comparing th€ information tbr consisrenl:) lrith nranagrmcnl's rcsporses to our inqoiries. the basic
llnancial slorcmcnls. and other krrd\,edge *c obrained during our aLrJir of rhe basic financial rlalemeol".
\Ie do not e\presJ an dpinidn or pro\.id. an! assum,ce on the intbmrarior belruse the limilcd procedures
iJo nol pr'ovide us $ith sullici.trl c!;dencc t,, e\press afl opinl(nr o. prot ide an! assurance.
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our audit was conducted for rhe purpose of forming opinions on the financiar statemcnts that colectively
comprise the Municipality's l'i ancial sratements 6s a who,e. Thc accoupanying schedure of expenditure.s
of fedcral awards is prcsented for purposcs ofaddirion,r anarysis as required by a.s. office of Mamgement
and Budget Circular A,133, ttuJit: of Stotes. Locol Gov ncntr. ont Non- prott O,EatEatio$, aod as
also not a r€quired parr ofrhe financiar starements. The schedule ofe:rpenditures of feierar awards is the
responsibiliry ofmanagement aad was derived Fom and rerarc directry !o underrying accounting aod other
records used to prepare dre rinancial statemeflts. Tle information has been subje.red to the alditing
proc€dures applied in rhe audit of rhe financial statements and certain additional procedures. including
comparingand reconciling such information directly to lhe underlyingacco nting and othe. records used to
prepare the financial st?temenrs or the financial starements rhemselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance wirh auditing srandards Benerally accepted in the UniEd Srates ofAme.ica_ ln ou; opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all marerial respects in relation ro the finamial statements .s a whola.

iY-Caf-€ -
Pedd C. Oniz Leai€?CPA
Lic€nse Number i200.

Cuayama. Pueno Rilo
March 29. 2012
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Managernent's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30- 201l

As management of the Municipality of Juana Diaz (the Municipality), we offer readen the following
discussion and analysis of the Municipality's financial activities reported in the accompanying basia
financial statements as ofand for the fiscal year ended ,une 30, 20I L We encourage readers to comider
the information presentd here in conjunclion with additional information that is flrnished in the
accompanying financial statements, which follow this narrative.

Besides, this document includes compamtive data with prior year as this inforrnation was available for the
fiscal year ended on June 30, 2010, nifth year of implementation ofcovernmental Accounting Standards
Board (CASB) Statement No. 34, "Basic Finsncial Statemefits dnd Management's Discussion and
Analysit-for State and Local Goyenfients. " This MD & A is prepared in order to comply with such
pronouncement an4 among other purposes, to provide the financial stalements users with the following
major information:

. a bmader basis in focusing important issu€s;

. acknowledgemem ofan overview ofthe Municipality's financial activities;

. provides for an evaluation of its financial condition as of the end of fiscal year 2010-201 I compared
with prior year results;

. identification ofuses offunds in the financing ofthe Municipality's variety ofactivities and;

. asses management's ability to handle budgetary functions.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e ov e n nu nt- W ide H ig h I ighB :

. Total Net Assets of the Municipality Goverrunental Activities as of the end of the indicated fiscal
year amounted to $45,736,852 or fifty five perced (55olo) ofrotal assels.

. The Municipality's Govemrnental Activities total Net Assets decreased by ($1,879,881) or a four
percent (4%) ftom the prior fiscal year-md balance.

. At &e end of fiscal year 20 I I , total liabilities of the Municipality Govertunental Activities amounted
to $37,683,929. Out of said amount, $32,404,815 corresponded ro long-term liabilities of which
$30,013,538 represented the outslanding balance of bonds and notes issued. The Municipality
continued to meet all debt service requirements, mo61 of which was paid from self generated

G overhrnenlal Funds' H ighlights :

. As ofthe close of the cument fiscal, the Municipality's Governrnental Funds reported combined
ending fund balances of$8,895,914 or $84,058 over the similar figure corresponding to the previous
fiscal year 2009-20 I 0.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 I

. At the end of the clmmt fiscal year, the deficit of the Municipality's General Fund amounted to
($53 I ,606), or $354,602 less than the previous fiscal year.

. The actual General Fund budgetary activities resulted in a favorable balance of$670,620.

Ptopridary Fund Hwighls:

. The total restricted net assets ofthe proprietary fund amounted to $56,205, which are resticted for
the operatiom of lederally funded programs.

. The total restricted fund net assets ofthe proprietary fund decreased by 539,088 during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 201 l.

O!,f,RI'IEW OF TIIE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The purpose of financial reporting is to provide external use of basic financial statemerfs with
inforrnation that will help them to make decisions or draw conclusiom about the Municipality. There are
many external parties that use the basic financial statemenrs of the Municipality; however, these parties
do not always have the same specific objectives. In order to address the needs of as rnany parties as
reasonably possible, the Municipality, in accordance with required financial reporting standards, presents
this Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) as an inroduction to the accompanying basic
financial statements. This narrative tepresents an ovewiew and analysis of the financial activities of the
Municipality for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Because this MD&A is designed to focus on the
current year activities, resulting changes and curently known facts, we encourage readers to consider the
information preserted in this MD&A in conjunction with the additional informalion fumished in the
accompanying basic fi nancial statements.

The Municipality's basic financial statements include tlree componmts: (l) government-wide financial
statements (GWFS), (2) fund financial statements (IFS), and (3) notes to the basic financial statements
(NBFS). This report also contains additional required information in addilion to the basic financial
statements themselves. These components are described below.

The basic financial statemenls focus on: (l) the Municipality as a whole (government-wide linancial
reporting) an4 (2) the Municipality's major individual governmenlal and proprietary funds. Both
perspectives allow the use6 to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison (year to year or
govemmmt to government) and enhance the Municipality's accountability. The components ofthe basic
financial statements are described below.

a) Goyemrnent-Vide Finarrcial SlaleDunts

The GWFS are composed of: (l) the statements ofnet assels (SNA) and (2) the statement ofactivities
(SA). These financial statements can be found immediately following this MD&A. CWFS are
designed to provide rmders with a broad overview of the Municipality's operations as a whole in a
maturer similar to private-sector business, These statements provide short-term and long{erm
informatjon about the Municipality's financial position, which assist the Municipality's management
to determine the e.onomic condition at June 30, 201L The GWFS are prepared using methods that
are similar Io tho6e used by most privare bu5in6ses.



MUNTCIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,
COMMON'IVf,ALTII OF PUERTO RICO

Managemenl's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20l l

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Municipality ttBt are
pdncipally supported by taxes and intergovernmental activities (goyemmental actiyities) lrorr other
functions that are intmded to recover all or a significant portion of theh costs through user fees and
cb*ges (business rype acliyines).

l. Stat€ment oINet Assets

The purpose of SNA is to attempt to report all assets owned and all liabilities owed by the
Municipality. The Municipality reports of all of its assets when it acquires ownership over the
assets and reports all of its liabilities when they are incurred. For example, the Municipality
reports buildings and infrastucture as assets, even though they are not available to pay the
obligations incurred by the Municipality. On the other han4 the Municipality reports liabilities,
such as claims and judgments, bonds and notes payablq obligations under capital leases,
compensated absences and cerlain accounts payable and acfiued liabilities, even though these
liabilities might not be paid until several fiscal years into the future.

The diffqence between the Municipality's total assets and total liabilities reponed in SNA is
presented as rel ar.relr, which is similar to the total owners'equity reported by a commercial
enterprise in its fmancial statements. Although the purpose of the Municipality is not to
accumulate net assets, as this amount increases or decreases over timg such amount represents a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality is either improving or
deteriorating, respectively.

2. Statement of Activities

The SA presents infomation showing how the Municipality's net assets changed during the fiscal
year ended June 30,2011, by Fesefting all of the Municipality's revenues and expenses. As
pieviously discusse4 the items reported in SA are measured in a manner similar to the approach
used by a commercial enterprise in that revenues are recognized when eamed or established
criteria are satisfie4 and expenses are recorded when incurred by the Municipality.
Comequently, revenues are reported even when they may not be collected for sev€ral months
after the end ofthe fiscal year and expenses are recorded even though they may not have used
cash during the currmt year.

Although SA looks different ftom a conmercial enterprise's income statement, the diflerence is
only in format, not substance. Whereas the bottom line in a cornmercial enterprise represents its
net income, the Municipality reports an amount described as net change in net asretr, which is
essentially the same concept.

The focus of SA is on the ,le, cort of various activities provided by the Municipality. The
statement begins with a colurnn that identifies the cost of each ol the Municipality's major
functions. Another column identifies the revenues that are specifically related to the classified
governmental functions. The difference between the expenses and revenues related to specific
functiom/progams identifies the exlent to which each function of the Municipality draws from
general revenues or is self-financing tlrough fees, intergovernmental aid, and other sources of

?
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 I

This statement also presents a comparison between direct expenses and progmm revenues for
each function ofthe Municipality.

GWFS and FFS present all of the Municipality's governmental and business-type activities, which are
supported mostly by taxes, intergovernmental tevenues (such as federal and state grants and
contributions), and charge for services. All services normally associated with the Municipality fall
into this category, including culturg recreation and education; general government; health and
sanitation; public safety; public housing and welfare; and economic and urban development.

F u hd F ifi a nc ial S t at eme n ls

The Municipality's FFS coGist oi (l) the balance sheet - governmental funds, (2) the statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances - govemmental funds, (3) the statement of net
assets proprietary fun4 (4) the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets -
Foprietary fun4 and (5) the statement of cash flo\rs proprietary fund. These financial statements
report the financial position, the results of operations and cash flows of the Municipaliry's
governmmtal and proprietary funds, with an emphasis on the Municipality's major govemmental and
proprietary tunds.

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objeclives. The Municipaliiy, like most other slate and local
goverrnnents, uses fund accounling to ensure and demomtlarc compliance with finance-related legal
requ;rements. Each llmd is comidered an independent fiscal entity accourted for within a set ofself-
balancing accounts that compdse its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenue, and expenditures. Fund
accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in
demonstrating compliance with legal, financial and contractual provisiom. All of the funds of the
Municipality can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary flrnds.

l. Gov€rnnental funds

Governrnental funds arc used to account for most of the services provided by the Municipality.
These ftnds are used to account for essentially the same functions repo(ed as governmental
activities in the GWFS. Unlike GWIS, the focus of governmental tunds in the FFS is directed to
specific activities of the Mmicipality rather than the Municipality as a whole; therefore,
goverffnental funds in FFS report the Municipality's operalions in more detail than the GWFS.

Governmental funds in FFS provide a detailed short+erm view ofthe Municipality's finances that
assist in determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available ro meet the
current needs of the Municipality, which is, evaluating the Municipality's near-term financing
requirements. For fnancial reporting purposes, the Municipaliry classifres its governmental
funds within the following t)?es: (1) general fund, (2) debl service tund, (3) special .evenue
funds, (4) capital projects tunds and (5) permanent tunds.

8
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30.201I

Governmental funds FFS are prepared on an accounting basis that is significantly differert from
that used to prepare C\[rFS. In general, governmental funds FFS focus on near-term inllows and
outflows of expendable financial resources, consequently, they measure and account for cash and
other assets that can easily be converted to cash. For example, amounts reported on the balance
sheet include capital assets within a very short period of timq but do not include capital assets
such as lard and buildings. Governmental fund liabilities generally include amounts that
normally are going to be paid within a short period after the end ofthe fiscal year. The difference
between a fund's total assets and total liabilities is reported as the fund balance or delicit, and
generally indicates the amount that can be used to finance the next fiscal year's activities.
Likewisq the operating statement for governmental flmds reports only those revenues and
expenditures that were collected in cash or paid with cash, respectively, during the current fiscal
year or very shortly after the end of the fiscal year-

Because the focus of governmental funals FFS is narrower than that of the GWFS, it is useful to
compare the fund inforrnation presented for governmental funds with similar iniormation
presented for govemmental activities in the GWFS. By doing so, readers may betler undersland
the long-term impact ofthe Municipality's near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental
funds' balance sheet and the governmental funds' statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between
govemmental funds and the governmental activities reported in the government-wide financial
statements.

The Municipality has five major governmental funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate
column in fhe balance sheet governmental funals and the statement of revenues, expendirures
and changes in fund balances govemnental funds. The five major governmental funds are: (l )
general tund, (2) debt service ftnd, (3) head start tund, (4) community development block grant
tun4 and (5) capital improvement bond tund.

Propriet.ry fund

The proprietary fund is a fund used 10 report the financial position, results of operation and cash
flo\}s of Villas del Parque CmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049), is a housing developmenr
consisting of eighty-four (84) dwelling units located in Juana Diaz. The project is owned by the
Municipality, but its operatiom are caried out by a private management agent uruelaled to the
Municipality. The housing development Foject of Villas del Parque has been designed to assist

\arious segments of the general public in obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental
housing. The project operates under financing through the Section 8 New Comtruction and
Substantial Rehabilitation Program of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
and the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing Loans Program ofthe U.S. Department ofAgiculture.
The purpose of Villas del Parque is to provide adequate housing to low-income residents of the
Mmicipality.

The activiti€s ofVillas del Parque have been reported as a proprietary fund in the accompanying
basic financial slatemenls since GAAP permits the use of enterprise funds to repo( any aciiviiy
for which a fee is charged to external users of goods or services, regardless of whether the
government intends to fully recover the cost of the goods or services provided. Thus, it is
common to use proprietary fund reporting to account for se ices where the govemment intends
to recover only a portion of its costs through fees or user charges.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2011

Proprietary funds provide drc same type of infornation as the GWFS, but in more detail.

c) No/3s to Bosic Firrancidl Stnterients

The NBFS provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data
provided in the GWIS and FFS. The NBFS can be found immediately following the basic linancial
statements.

0 Aher Supplerrentary Infon alion

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of other supplemmtary informalion
cons isting of budgetary comparison schedule - general fund

This Space Hos Beel lfite lionolly Left Blank
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO fuCO

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 2011

TINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE TINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement ofNet Assets serves as an indicator of the Municipality's financial position at the end ol
the fiscal year. In the case ofthe Municipality of Juana Diaz, governmenlal activities assets exceeded
lotal liabilities by M5,736,852 at the end of 201l, as compared with $47,616,731 at the end of the
previous year. Business-lpe activilies assets exceeded total liabilities by $56,205 at the end of 2011, as

compared with $95,293 at the end ofthe previous year. The following condensed Statement of Net
Assets ofthe Prirnary Government shows on a comparative basis the most important components of the
($1,879,881) decrease reflected in the govertunental activities Net Assels figurq and the ($39,088)
decrease reflected in the business-type activities Net Assets figure

Gorrrnmerld rdiviti6 Busire$-tw. rctiriti€s

20ll 2010
June30,

20ll
June30,

2010
June 30, Ju..30, Joo.30 Jun€ 30,

20tt 20t0

qher.onruftni 6*1s

Cuftni liabililies, excludhg
long-tem obligatiotrs

lrng-lem obligalions:

DE within @e jre

Invested in apital asds, nel of

s15,420.487 $14,506,900

67,886,589 68,361.479

113,705 t01,972

83/1rq.?8r 81r?5J5t

$1E4.956 $t4t.66E

t,f55,509 t,267,199

r,340,455 r,408,867

$15.605,443 $t4,650,56E

69.042,096 69,628.67E

3,705 104,972

u,%t246 &4384218

5.219.|4 5.269,16t 26.,196 21,t16

32.863 30.600

1.221,901 1,255,828

t2s4.r60 t,I3J14

5,305,610 5,296,911

3,253,805 4,t29,116

30,408,174 21,245,569

lc%sJs, 3f.:67r"19

3.220,942 4,099,116

29.t83,873 25,9A9,74t

15,358.61837.683,929

4E.422,522

4,503,788

(7,189,458)

49,268.367

4,659,E77

(6.31l.5r l)
s4?o6J33

002,255)
r58,460

$56,205

1t9,229)
tt4,522

44320,267

4,662,248

(7,189,45E)

49,249.138

4,714,399

(6,3r l.5r l)
s41J t\026_I1I1I1 595,291 $45.793,057

The Statement of Activities reflects that for fiscal year 20l l, the net effect ofthe revenues derived from
several prognms plus current operating revenues, amounted to ($1,879,881) in governmental activities,
and ($39,088) in business{ype activities. Apploximately thirty six percent (36%) oflhe Municipality's
govennnenlal activities rotal revenue came fiom taxes, while fifty nine percent (59%) resulted from
grants and contributiom, including federal aid. In the case ofthe business{ype, approximately ninety wo
Df.xcent (92o/o) of total revenues resulted fiom federal gmnt. The Municipality's governmental and

business-tlpe activities expenses included items such as Beneral governmentt urban and economic
development, health and sanitation, public safety, public housing and welfare, culture, r€creation and

educariorl and inreresr o long term obljgarions.
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MUMCTPALITY OT JUANA DiAZ,
CoMMoNVEALTH oF Puf,RTo RJCo

Managemenf s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20 I I

Approximately twenty percent (20o/o) of tota'l expenses resulted fiom genetal govertunent, nineteen
p€rcent (19%) of total expenses resulled from ulban and economic development, ien percent (10%) of
total expenses resulted from health and sanitatiorl siy pscent (6%) oftotal expenses resulted from public
safety, nine percent (97o) of total expenses resuhed from public housing and welfare, thity two percent
(32olo) oftotal expenses resulted from culture, recreation and education, while four percent (4%) oitotal
expenses resulted from interest on long term obligations. The following is a condensed presentalion ofthe
Municipality's results of opemtions as reported in the statement of activities for the fiscal ymrs ended

June30,20l1and20l0:
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MUNICIPAI,ITY oF JUANA DiAz,
CoMMoN\YEAI-TH oT PUERTo RJCo

Management,s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 I

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Arrarysis of Financful Poition of Govern ne tal Funds

As discussed earlier, the Municipaliry uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance \dth
finance-related legal requirements. The focus ofthe Municipality,s govertunental funds ii to provide
infomation on near-term inllows, outflows, and balances of expendable resowces. Such inform;tion is
useful in assessing the Municipality's compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Specifically,
urreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure ofthe Municipality,s net resources available for
spending at the end ofthe fiscal year.

As ofthe end ofthe current fiscal year, the Municipality,s governmental funds reponed combined ending
fund balances amounting to $8,895,914, which represents an increase of$84,058 when compared with lhe
prior year.

Fund balances at June 30, 2011 were restricted and committed for the following purposes: (l) for debt
service payments ($2,699,730); 2) ro pay for capital projects ($5,678,032); and 3) for orher purposes
($1,226,564). As of June 30, 2011, the Ceneral Fund, which is rhe main operaring fund of the
Municipality, reflected an unassigned tund deficit of($708,412).

The following table presents the condensed financial position of governmental funG at June 30, 20 I 1 and
2010:

20tt 2010
Assets:

Total assets - major governmental funds

Total assets - other governmental funds

Combined total assets

Liabililies:
Total liabilities - major governmental funds
Total liabilities - other governmental funds

Combined total liabilities

Fu nd balances (defcils) :
Restricted, committed or assigned - major

governmental funds
Restricted, committed or assigned - other

governrnental funds
Unassigned

Combined lotal fund balances

Total liabilities andlund balances

s 13,649,964

2,158,022
s 12,123,76s

3,132,218
15,807,986 15,855,983

s,80t,808
t.108,264

5,272,'769

1,'771,358

6,912,072 1,011,127

8,554,568

1,049,758
('708,4t2)

'7,904,441

r,960,860
(r,053,44s)

8,895,914 8,8r r,856

13
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MUNICIPALITY of JU,!\A DiAZ,
CoyMoNVEALTH of puERTo fuco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 10. 201 I

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Atal$is of Financial Posiliofi of Ptoprietary Fund

At lune 30, 201 I, the total assets of proprietary fund amounted to 91,340,465, which consjsted principally
of: (l) restdcted cash in commercial bank of $173,563, and; (2) capilal assets, net of accumulated
depreciation of $1, I 55,509.

At June 30, 201 l, the toral liabilities of the proprietary tund amounted to $ 1,284,260, which consisred
principally of mortgage notes payable of$1,257,764.

The total reslricted net assets of proprietary fund amounted to $56,205 at June 30,2011, which are
restricted for the operations offederally funded progarns. The following table presents a surnrnary ofthe
financial position of the proprielary fund (PF) ar June 30, 20 I I and 20 I 0:

20r l 2010
Assets:

Total cunmt assets

Total non-ctmmt assets

Total assets

Liabilities:
Total current liabilities
Total non-curenl liabilities

Total liabilities

lnvested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt
Restricted for federal funded program

Total restticled nel assets

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGIIIS

$ r84,956

1,155,509
$ 141,668

|,267,199
1,340.465 1,408,867

59,3s9
1,224,90t

51,746

1,255,82A

t,284,260 1.313,514

(r02,255)
158,460

(19,229)

t14,522

56,205

a) Ceneral Fund

The original and the final budget of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20ll
amounted to $13,880,638. Over lhe course ofthe fiscal year, the Municipality revised the GF,s
budgel in order to include inqeases and decreases in expenditures. The laws and regulations of the
Commonwealth mandate a balanced budget.
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MUNTCIPALITY oF JUANA DLAZ,
CoMMoN\yEALTH oF I,IUERTo fuco

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2011

The total actual revenues (budgetary basis) of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30,
201I were $14,i65,568, which is two percent (27o), or $284,930 more than the budgeted revenues.
In addilion, the total actual expenditures and othel financing sources (budgerary basis) of the general
tund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20ll were $t3,494,948, which is ttrce percefi (tolo), or
$385,690 less than the budgeted expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

a) Capital Assets

The Municipality has invested $95,430,002 in capital assets used in governmental activities, which
have an accumulated deprcciation and amortization of $27,543,413 at June j0, 2011. The net capital
assets of govemmental activities decreased during the current fiscal year, due to the current fiscal
year's capital addilions ($2,454,951), which were parrially offset by rhe depreciarion and
amortization expense ($2,929,841) for the same period.

The capital additions made to capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 201I (including
constuclion in progress reclassification) were the following:

Construction in progress
Buildings, sfucturcs and improvements
Infiastructure
Machinery, equipment, fumiture and fixtures
Licensed vehicles

Other capital additions for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 201 I

$ 302,684
t1,461,299

146,463
44t,813
655,428

$ r3,0r3,747

During the current year, consfuction in progress amounted to $10,558,796 was reclassified lo
building, structures and improvements category.

b) Debt Administration

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation fot the issuance of general obligation municipal
bonds and noles for the payment of which the good fai*f credit and taxing power of each municipality
may be pledged. The applicable law also requires that in order for a Municipality to be able to issue
additional general obligation bonds and notes, such Municipality must have sumcient ,,payment capacity,,
as defined in Act No. 64. Such Act establishes that a Municipality has sulficient ..payment capacity,,to
incur additional general obligation debt if its deposits in the Redemption Funds and the armual amounts
collected with respect to such Municipality's Sales and Use Tax and Special Additional Tax (as defined
below), as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service to maturily the Municipality's outstanding
general obligation debt and the additional proposed general obligation debt.
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MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ.
CoMM0NVEAITH oT PUERTo fuCo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 I

TheMunicipality is required under prevailing applicable law to levy a Special AdditionalTax and a Sales
and Use Tax in such amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligtion municipal
bonals and notes. ln additior! principal ofand interest on all general obligalion mmi;ipal bonds ,nd
notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation ofthe issuance ofgeneral obligation bonds issued
by the Municipality comtitute a first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues_ Accordingly, the
Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be awihble to make debt service paymenrs on general
obligation municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax and the Sales a;d Use
Tax levied by the Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality,s Redemption
Funds, are not sufrcient to cover such debt seryice. In the particular case ofthe Municipality of Juana
Diaz, it has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt service on general obligation debt of
the Municipaliry.

ECONOMIC IACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BI'DCETS AND RATES

The Municipality relies prirnarily on property and municipal taxes as well as fedeml and state g.ants to
carry out the governmental activities. Historically, poperty and municipal taxes have been very
predictable with increases ofapproximately five percert, but for the fiscal year 2Ol I-2012, the properry
tax and subsidies fiom the Commonwealth of Pueno Rico's Ceneral Fund and contributiom from the
Traditional and Electronic Lottery sponsored by said Government were drastically reduced. Federal and
Slate gmnt revenues may vary ifnew grants are available, bur the revenue can be also predictable. Those
factors were comidered when preparing the Municipality's budget for the fiscal yat 2Ol l -2012.

FINAL COMMENTS

The Municipality of Juana Diaz is an autonomous govemmental entity whose powers and authority vested
on its Executive and Legislative Bmnches are specifically established in the Municipal Autonomous Act
approved in August 1991. By vinue of such powers, it provides a wide range of services to its
constituents which includes, among others, public works, educatioq public safety, public housing, healttL
community development, recreatior! wasle disposal, welfare and others. The Mmicipality,s principal
sources ofrevmues are derived from properfy Axes, sales taxes, municipal license ta\es, subsidies from
the Cornmonwealth of Puerto Rico's Ceneral Fund and contributions from the Traditional and Electronic
Lottery sponsored by said Govertunent.

Since the Municipaliq, is siBnificatuly dependent on the intergovernmental grants and contributions
rcceived fiom the govertunent of the Commonwmlth of Puerto Rico and from property tax ad\ances
received from CRIM, the municipality could sufler a significant financial burden for certain scheduled
intergovemmental revenues thal could not be collected during the fiscal year 2010-2011, and accodingly,
rranagement is currently evaluating altematives for the perrnanent financing of the operatjons of the
general fund and the Mmicipality.

Among the actions currently taken by the management of the Municipality in relation to these matters are:
(l) the implementation ofa cost reduction plan and related activities, (2) the implementation of increased
collection efforts over accounts receivable and inter-fund balances, and (3) the evaluation of differen!
altematives tlrough possible long-term financing ageements with GDB.
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MUMCIPALITY or JUdNA Diaz,
CoMMoN f,"AI,I.tI oF PUERTo fuCo

Management's Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2011

In order to achieve its budget control and cost reduction objeclives, management is currently trying to
manage the Municipality wilhin its cash and budget comtraints, including the periodic review and update
of its cash flows projectiom, actual \s. budget comparisons for budget adjustments as neede4 and the
monitoring of the execulion of the collections.

The success of the foregoing plam and stralegies to reduce the general fund's accumulated deficit, to
improve the cash flows and liquidity of the Municipality and to achieve excess revenues over
expenditures in the general fund of the Municipality cannot be assured, as it is signi{icantly dependent
upon events and circurnstances which outcome carmot presently be determined. However, rnanagement is
committed to undertake whatever actiom may be necessary to prevent operating deficiencies in the futurq
but without affecting its fiduciary duty with its citizens regarding services and city improvements.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

The Municipality's financial statemenls are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer, customers,
investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances and to demonstmte the
Municipality's accountability. If you have questions about the report or need additional financial
informatiorl contact the Municipality's ChiefFinancial Omcer at P.O. Box 1409, Juana Diaz, PR 00769,
or call (787) 837-2185.
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ro $e statemt of Net As*ts
June30,20ll

6usltr€st}D.

The mounls of govemtmtal ed busi,esstDe acdvni€s reponed in tne statennt ofnel
ssers m diffeMr to lhe amuts r€ported in tn€ bllsce sheel _ Bov€renLl fuds Dd tne

siatemeor of.el ssers - poprielary tuod, @sFcliv€lv, for lne following reeng

Tot t fud balane od tund n€l6ser3 r.port€d in lhe balece shel _ govem@tal ftnds

6d rhe sratemnt ofner dsels - PrcPnehfy tund, rBperrelv

Capital as*$ used in sovemrental scdvnies ue not onsider.d available finacial

Eeures .t lisql y€{.nd, rh.EfoE, re nol EPoned in the gov€mfli.t fuds This is

th. carrying amunl of carnal ss.ts. nel ofaccumulated depr€ci0lion dd mortiztion of
$27,541,411 tl.,une 30. 201 l.

Cetuin defeded Benu.s in lne goremmtal tunds e @o8!iad 6 r€vmues in the

statem.l oferivnies. Tnn is $e defeftd Benues (.m€d and mavailable Benre, for

Evenue slream that re n suble bul nol aEilable al lu.e 30, 201 I (inler8ovemftnu]

gmrs dd co.fibutionr.

D€bt isued by $e Muhicipslity hs ssciated cosE (defered chug€s) lhat e paid nom

cuftnl available finmcial Esou@s in the sovomdtal tunds. Howdd, the* cosis arc

defeded in tne sbtem.nt ofnel 6seis md reponen n€t ofaccumular.n amrtiation of
$95,678 at June 30, 2Ol l.

The following liabihies aE nol due (@tE) in lhe cutMt fiscrl ved, lheEfore, ac 'ol
Eponed in lhe sovemmntol tunds al Ju€ 10, 201 I :

Compeneled $s€nces

accrued christtrN bonues

Ner sseB - Bovenmnlal md buinesslvF &livities,6 epoded in stateMt of nel

.ctiviti.! .ctiYiti.3 Tot l

$ 8,895,914 56,205 $ 8,952,119

68,153,085

I E,?05

68,153,085

91.966

lll.?05

(21,021.Nn)

(7,1r0,538)

(2,39r21't)

(198,00,

(22,021.000)

(7,110.518)

12.\9r.211)

(198,00,

s 45 ?16.852 56.20s $45,793,0s7

The acomp.nyioS notes lo th. bsic finecial statemenc de an i.tgral Pan b lhis stateml'
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COMMONWEALIE OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OT JUANA DIAZ

R.@nciliatio, oflhe Slat lMt ofRevoues, Expenditures &d Chdges in
Fod Balees (De6ci6) - Go\€mdlal Fuds tud th€ Stalemenl of Rft.ues, Expeces

@d Chme.s in F@d N.1A$ets - Itoprieky Fmd 1o lhe slalen€nt ofAdiviri6
For the Yd E edJDe30.201I

-e;im-fiiiGr -!ffi;i@
ictiviiies ,ctiviiies Total

The momts of govmmoral ed buioe$-OTe activiriB .€portcd in tlE CWFS
$arement of acliviries ud tte slateDols of EveD6, €xpodiiues\qp€ns d

ch&ges in nrd brl esvEl asets - go\tlmdtal fituLs dd propneEy tund, de
diflemr for ihe foUowioe BNns:

Total .et cheg€ in tund balaes\ner aets reponed in the $,rmor of Even@s,
expenditu$kxpe.es ud cneS€s in ihd balees\nel 6sts - goment t iftls
ad prcpriet8ry fiDd I 84,0t8 (39,088) $ 44,970

Csrain revenne silem reorded in tbe sl.tenol of aclivitis do not neessily
provide .UlMt finociai reeu6, thftfo.., emdime de defe@d in Ihe

govemoial tu d5. ntis is rhe nel ch.ng€ in dEfered re@Es of rte N€nue n€8,
rhar rc nesmbl€ hd nor lvailable ar Iiscai yer end. 2,880 - 2,880

covmnflial irds rcpoa capiLl oud.ys 6 expenditurB. Ho{evs in rhe starercnl
of adivitis ih€ .d ofdose dsels is allocred ovtr lneir estimated 6etul liws 6
d€preciatio dd monialion expenF This is tne mout by {hicn d€Feciatio. md
dortialon dp€tre ($2,929.M1) deeded capn l oud.ys expenditues ($2,454,951)

Ior th€ fiscal yed mded.,une 10, 20t l. (474,890) - (4?4,890)

Govcmfltal nrds tpon crlir.l oud.y ofreal propeny held for sal. s .xpddilur.
Ho.,l,lm, in llre s16r€nan of Acnvid$, rhe @st of ihoe 6ets is qpiralized 41 1.496 - 411,496

Repatrml ofpriocipal of longr@ obliSntio6 n repoded 6 d qpeadituie d oe
go\€moral tunds, notqs, lhe ep.,re redues l@g-Lm liabihi.s in the

staiem€nt ofnet 6sls 2.722,151 - 2,722,151

Anonization ofd€fsred cneges repotud in rh€ stalemml of aclivili.s d@s not

requirc tne us of cudI iMcial 6ou@s, threfors, e not reporled 6
qp€nditur6 in the govmm@t.l nh.b. (9,997) - 19,91)

Govmenul tunds repon bond isuue defered chdges d dpendiiws. Howwet
in the CWFS srat€ndr ofadivines rhe @sl oftno* defffid cheg6 is allocaled orer
the Elared ldg tem debl tcm 6 @onizdon dFtue. 18.728 - 18,124

Son€ exp*s repofied in the slalengt of.divnies (I, tut r€qune rhe ue of .smt
fnecial r€sou€s, tn{eforc, de .ol repoied 6 expqditures i, rh. govemental
tunds. This is 1n€ ner ctmge in liabilni6 ofrhc rclacd exp€Nes\exFnditues

(529.307) - i529,107)

Issume of lotrg l€m d€bt provide cln@l ,nmcial r€sou6 ro golemoal nods
brt nsuane $ch dehl itroe6es long{m liabililB in tne flaiem€trt ofrcr 6*rs (4,165.000) (4,165,000)

Ner incede (deseM) innet 6*ts, a Eponed i, natemar olacrivities I (1,879,881) _ (39,088) $ (1,918,969)

Tne ac@mpdying nores ro dle b6ic loecial sLtemenis m m integral pa1 lo $is statmcnl
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ

Statement ofNet Assets

Proprietary Fund

Year Ended June 30,201l

Busioess-TyDe Activities - Ente.orise Furd

Villas del Parque
FmHA Project

No. 63-033-0690660049Rcstricted Ass€ts

Currenl assets:

Cash in commercial banks (including cash

for operations of $61,92)
Tenants accounts receivable

Account recei ble lrom HUD
Prepaid insurance

Other assets

Total cwrent assets

Non-.trrrert ,ssets:

Depreciable capital asseis, net of accumulated

depreciation of $2,708,356

Non{epreciable capital asseis

Total nonrunent assets

Total assets

Liabilities and fund net assets

Currenl liabiliti€s (due within one y€rr):
Accounts payables and accrued liabilities
Cunent portion ofmortgage notes payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabiliti€s, ercluding current portior
Mortgage notes payable - due in more than one year

Totalliabiuties

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for other pu.poses

Total restricted net asseas

$ 173,563

2,983
4,668
1,41',7

2,325

184.956

1,059,280

96,229

r,155,509

__q_____.E19$t

s 26.496

-3lj1

59,359

t,224.901

t,284,260

1102,255)
158,460

$ 56.205

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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COMMONWtrALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALMY OF JUANA DIAZ

Stat€m€nt ofRevenues, Exp€nses ed Changes in FurdNeiAssets
Proprietary Fund

Year End€d June 30, 20 I I

Business-type Activiries-Eoterprise Fund

Villa del Parque FnHA
Project No. 63-033-

0690660049

Operrting revenues:

Intergov€mm€ntal granrs and contributions - tenants assistance payments

from U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Charge for services rental income from t€nants

Total op€rating revenues

Opcrating expcns€s:

Ceneral and administrativ€

Urilities

Taxes and insurance

Interest on mo.tgage notes payable

D€precialion of capilal assets

Tolal ope.ating expenses

Operaling income (los,

Nonoperatine incone (e$€nse):
Interest on deposits

Total nonoperating income (expense)

Net increase (decr€ase) in resiicted tund nel assels

Nct assets at beginning ofnscal yerr
N€t asset! at eDd offiscrl year

404.974

31,634

|,42t
438,029

t49,216
19,033

70,810

32,624

91,035

114,823

477,541

(39,512)

424

121

(39,088)

56,205

The accompanying notes 10 the basic financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement.
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COMMONWEALIH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ

sr!lem610fc6h Floqs
Propnel.ry Fud

Yee Ended Jue 10,201I

Busin*$troe AcrivitienIrterDrhe Fund

villa del Prrqu€ FaIIA

0690660049

Cst ,lows fron op.rrling ,.livities.

Palrolj 1o $ppli€6 ed mployes
P.,rdr of nongage interests

Ne1 c6n provided (Ged) by op€hting acdvnies

CNh noqs froD itrv*ti.g . criviti.s:
Inle.esl deposiled o. replamml reseBe

Withdrawals &omrepaemol rse e

lncr€e in olher Esfles
Depcn to repa@ent reseBe

Acqusition of qpital NeB
Net c6h Drovided (ued) by inveslin8 actiyities

Cmh flors from fir.ncitrg ocnviti.s:
Principal palrents on mongage

Ne1 c6h usd by slnal md elated findcing acilnies

N€l chege in 6b &d cash equivalm$
Cmh rndc8h EquivaletrG- B.gin ng

Cah rnd CNh f,quiviletrts - f,trding

Displayed on slatemot ofner acts 6:
C6h in @mrcial bark

R.coo.ilirtion ot operaling incone (los) to trd crsh
provid.d (B.d) by op€r.dng ,ctiviti$:
operalins jn@G (loss)

Adj6ttrEts to rc@ndle opeBnis i.@me (los) lo
ne1 cah provirled (ued) by opsatins acdvities:

DepEciadon qpense

hclre (Derese) ir
Too$ a@uls rc@iwble
HUD a@dls receivable

Pr€paid *peBes
Tmets seNity d@osils
AMunts payable dd &cred paroll tdes

Tor.l adjGdnents
Ne1 c6h provided (sed) 6y op€ntin8 aclivides

438.029

424

1,421

(211.272)

(9t,0t5)
'11,561

(3e0)

3,133

6,?33)
09,620)
(3.133)

s 61 642

$ 6l-642

(28,6e)
(28,664)

l?,160
44,482

(15,143)

(39,088)

114,823

109

(3,358)
( t9)

(900)

110,655

__.L____________

Tne a@np ying notes ro 1he b6r lindc8l slaremens de d inlcCral pan olthis slatemor
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MTINICIPAIITY OT JUANA DIAZI
CoiruoNwp.rll H oF PUERTo Rtco
Notes to Basic Financial Slatements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

I. Summary ofSignificanl Accounting Policies

The Municipality of Juana Dizz, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the Municipality), is a local

municipal government constituted in 1798 in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The Municipality
has full legislativq fiscal and all other governmental powers and responsibilities expressly assigned

by Law No. 8l of August 30, 1991, as amende4 kio'*\ as Autonomous Municipalilies Acl of the

Conmonwealth of Pue o Rico (ActNo.8l). The Municipality is one of seventy-eight municipal
govemments legally separated from the state government ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the

Commonwealth).

The Constitution of the Commonwealth provides for the separation of powers of the executive,

legislative and judicial branches of the Commonwealth and the municipalities. However, the

Municipality's governmental system comists of executive and legislative branches only. A Mayor,

elected every four years by the citizens, exercises the executive power of the Municipality. The

legislative power ofthe Municipality is exercised by the Municipal Legislalure, whose members are

also elected every four years. The judiciary power is exercised by the General Justice Cout System

ofthe Commonwealth which has jurisdiction over the Municipality.

The Municipality assumes either partial or full responsibility for providing services to ils citizens

related to public housing, welfare, public safety, healttL sanitation, educatioq culturg recreation,

urban development, economic developmerr, and many other fiscal, general and administrative

a) Financial Reporting Model

The accompanying basic financial statements present the financial position of the gover nental
activities, the business{ype activities, each maiol gover[nental and proprietary funds, and the
aggregate remaining fund information olthe Municipality at Jme 30, 201l, in conformity with
Accounting Principles Cenerally Accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as

Fescribed by the Governmental Accourting Standarals Board (GASB). In addiliorf the

accompanying basic financial statemmts present the changes in the financial position (results of
operatiom) of the governrnental activities, the business-O?e activities, each major goverrunental

and proprietary funds, and the aggregate remaining fund information for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 20 I 1 in conformity with GAAP. Furthermorg the basic fmancial statements referred to
above present the cash flo\is of the business-qpe activities (proprietary fund) for the fiscal year

ended June 31, 2011 in conformity with GAAP.

According to the financial rcporting model established by GASB Statement No. 34, -Raric

Financial Statements - ond Managemenl\ Discussion and Anab)sis - for State and Local
Governnents (GASB No. 34), the required basic financial statement Presentation applicable to
the Municipality is composed of the following elements: (l) government-wide financial

statements (GWIS), (2) governmental and proprietary fund financial slatements (FFS), (3) notes

to basic financial statements, and (4) required supplemenlary information (RSI).
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MUIVCIPALITY or JUANA DiAZ.
CoMr{oNwEAL'm of Puf,RTo fuco
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201l

rqsl consists of: (l) a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and (2) a budgetary
comparison schedule general fund. RSI is unaudited supplementary information rcquired by
GAAP Fesented along with, but separate fiom, the Municipality's basic financial statements.

MD&4 is a narrative repoft that introduces the accompanying basic financial statements and
provides an anal),tical overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 201l, based on the Municipality's knowledge ofthe transactions, events and conditions
reflected in the basic financial statements. The MD&A also highlights certain key fiscal policies
that control the Municipality's operations.

In addition to the required financial reporting requirements referred to above, the accompanying
basic financial statements are accompanied by additional supplementary information consisting of
a budgetary comparison schedule - general fund and the notes to the budgetary comparison
schedule general fund, which have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit ofthe accompanying basic financial statements as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
201t.

b) Financial Reponing Enti4

The accompanying basic financial statements include all departments, agencies and municipal
operational units that are under the legal and administmtive control of the Mayor, and whose
flnancial resources are under the legal custody and control ol the Municipality's Director of
Finance, as prescribed by Act No- 8 I .

The accompanying basic financial statements include the linancial statemen6 of villas del Parque
(ImHA Project No.63-033-0690660049), an operational unit and a business{}?e activity
(propridary fund) ofthe Municipality which single audit repot reflect total assets, liabilities, net
assets, revenues and expemes of $1,340,465, $1,284,260, $56,205, $438,453 and $477,541
(including depreciation expenses of $114,823), respectively, as of and for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011. The financial positior\ results of operations and cash flolys ofvillas del Parque as

ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 are reported in the accompanying statement ofnet
assets - proprietary firnd, the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets

Foprietary fund, and the statement of cash flows proprietary fund, respe.tively.

Villas del Parque is a housing development project consisting of eighty-four (84) dwelling units
located in Juana Diaz. The project is owned by the Municipality, but its operatiom are carried
out by a priute management agent unrelated to the Municipality. The housing development
project of Villas del Parque has been designed to assist wrious segments ofthe genoal public in
obtaining adequate and reasonable priced rental housing. The project operates under financing
through the Section 8 New Coistruction and Substantial Rehabilitation Program of the U.S.
Department oi Housing and Urban Development and the Section 515 Rural Rental Housing
Loans Program ofthe U.S. Department ofAg culture. The purpose of Villas del Parque is to
provide adequate housing to low-income residents ofthe Municipality. Separate audited financial
statements ofvillas del Parque can be obtained directly from the rmnagement agent's offices at
Professional Center Building, Suite 302, San Juar! Puefto Rico 00927.
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MLNCIPAUTY OF JUANA DiAZ,
COMMON\ L{ITH OF PL'ERTO RIco
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Y€ar Ended June 30.2011

On July l, 2005, the Municipality adopted the provisiois of CASB Statemmt No. 39,

Detetlnining Whether Cerrain OrganizatiolB are Component Units an Anendnent of GASB
Statemenr No. 1, (GASB No. 39). GASB No. 39 slates that certain organizations for which a

p nlary government is not financially accountable nevertheless warrant inclusion as part ofthe
financial reporting entity because of the natwe and significance of their relalionship with the
primary government, including their ongoing financial support of the primary goverrunent and ils
other componmt units.

According to CASB No. 39, a legally separatq tax-exempt organization should be reported as a

discretely presented component unit ofa reporting entity ifall of the following criteria are met:

. The economic resources received or held by the sepamte organization are entirely or
almost entircly for the direet benefit ofthe primary govemment, its componeflt units, or
its conslituenrs,

. The primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the abiliry to
oiherwise access, a majority ofthe economic resouices rcceived or held by the separate

organization.

. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization that the specific
prirnary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise
access, are significant to that primary government,

In addition, GASB No. 39 states that other organizatiom should be evaluated as potential
component units if they are clo6ely related to, or financially inte$ated with, the primary
government- Such tlpes of enlities may be presented as either blended or discretely presented

component units, depending upon how they meet the cdte a for each specified in GASB No. 14.

The Municipality's management has concluded that, based on the aforementioned criteria, there
are no legally separate entities or organizations that should be reported as component units ofthe
Municipality as ofand for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

c) Gove menl-Wide Financial Srskrnentr

The accompanying GWIS are composed of: (1) the statement of net assets and (2) the statement
ofactivities. These financial statements report information ofall governmental and business-type
nonJiduciary activities ofthe Municipality as a whole. These stalements are aimed at Fesenting a

brcad overview of the Municipality's finances by reponing its financial position and results of
operations using methods that are similar to those used by most private businesses.

The focus ofGWFS is on the operational accountability ofthe Municipality as a single economic
unit and not on compliance with budgels, regulatory requirements or on the use of available or
crmently expendable financial resourc€s (referred to as fiscal accountability). Operational
accountability is the Municipality's responsibility to repo( to the extent to which it has met its
opemting objectives efficiently and effectively, using all resources available for that purpo6e. It
focuses on the Municipality's principal operating objective, which is to provide services to its
citizens.
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Mt TCIPALITY oF JUANA DiAz,
COMMONWEALTH Of PUERTO RICO
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201l

The accompanying statement of net assets provides short+erm and long-term information about
the Mmicipality's financial position by presenting all ofthe Municipality's assets and liabililies,
with the difference between these two iterns reported as "net assets" (equity) and/or net liabilities
(accumulated deficit). This statement assists rnaragement in assessing the level of services that
can be Fovided by the Municipality in lhe future and its ability to meet ;ts obligations as they
become due. In addition, this statement reports the extent to which the Municipality has invested
in capital assets and discloses legal and contractual restridions on resources.

Net assets (liabilities) are classilied in the accompanying statement of net assets within the
following dree categories:

. Inv€sted in crpital assets, net of relat€d debt - This net asset category consists of capital
assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation and amortization, reduced by the outstanding balances
of bonds payable, notes payable and other debts that are attributed to the acquisition,
construction or improvement ofthose assets, For the purposes of determining the outstanding
debt attributed to capital assets, the total long-lem debt related to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of capital assets has been reduced by any related unspent debt
proceeds and any related unamortized debl issuance costs.

. Restricted net assets This net asset category comists ofnet resouces restricted by extemal
parties (such as creditors, granto6, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments,
etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by constitutional provisiois or enabling
legislation. Enabling legislation consists of legislation that authorizes the Municipality to
assess, levy, charge or olherwise mandate payment of resources (from extemal resource
providers). Enabling legislation establishes restrictions if it includes a legally enforceable
requiement that those resources be used only for lhe specific purposes stipulated in the
legislalion.

. Unr€stricted net liabilities This category consists of the excess of liabilities over related
assets (accumulated deficit) that are neither externally nor legally restricted, neither invested
in capital assets. However, assets reported within unrestricted net liabilities often are
designated to indicate that rranagement does nol consider them to be available for general
operations. Assets rcported within this category often have constraints that are imposed by
rranaBement but can be removed or modified. When both restricted and unrestricted
resouices are available for use, it is the Municipality's policy to generally use restricted
resources first, and then uffestricted resources as they are needed.

lvhen both restricted and unieslricted resources are available for use, it is the Municipality's
policy to generally use restricted resources firct, and then uffestricted resources as they are
needed.

The accompanying statement of activities presents the Municipality's results of operations by
showing, how the Municipality's net assets or liabilities €hanged during the fiscal ye3r ended

June 30, 2011, using a net (expense) revenue format. This statement presents the cost of each

functior/program as well as the exlent to which each of the Municipality's functions, prograns or
other services either contributes to or dmws from the Municipality's general revmues (such as
property taxes, municipal Iicense taxes, construdion excise taxes, etc.).
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MuNrcrPdrrY or JUANA DiAZ,
coi4[oN\ EALTH oF PUERTo RJc0
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 l

A functioryprogram describes a goup of activities that are aimed at accomplishing a rnajor
service or regulatory responsibility. The functions/progams reported in the accompanying basic
financial statements are: (1) general government, (2) urban and economic development, (3) public
safety, (4) health and sanitatioq (5) culture, rccreation and education and (6) public housing and

welfare. The govemmental opemtions of the Municipality's departmmts and operational units
are classified within the following functiontprogams in the accompanying basic financial
statements:

General government:
Municipal legislature
Mayor's office
Department of fmance
Department of human rcsources
Department of municipal seoetary
Department of irternal audit
Omce ofcommunications
Omce oI adminislrative services
Department of pwchases

Urban and cconomic development:
Department of public work
Department of planning and developmenl
Fedeml Prograrns Office

Public safety:
Depanment of emergency managemenl civil defense
Department of municipal police

Health alld sanitation:
Depanmenl of rerlcl ing service5
Municipal enterprises

Depanment of health

Culture, recreation and €ducetfunr
Department of sports and refieation
Department of art, culture and tourism
Head Start progmm omce

Public housing and welfare:
Depanmenr of citizen alTairs
Section 8 program office

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree ro which program revenues offset diect
expenses of a given functior/program or segments. Dircct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific functiorl segment or operational unit. This statement reports revenues

in tkee broad categories: (l) progam revenues, (2) general revenues and (3) special items.
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Mt rcIPArlrY or JUANA DLaz,
Cor{r{oNwEALTH or PtmRTo RJco
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201 I

Program rcvenues These revenues are generated directly from a progam itself or may
come fiom parties outside the Municipality's taxpayers or citizens. In the statement of
activities, program revenues reduce the costs (expemes) of the functior/program to arrive at:
(l) the net cost ofthe functior/progmm that must be financed Aom the Municipality's general
revanues or (2) the net program revenue that contributes to the Municipality's general
revenues. The accompanying statement of activities sepamtely reports the following
categories of proglam revenues:

Charges for services - These revenues gmemlly consist of exchange or exchangelike
tmnsactions involving charg€s to customer or applicants who purchase, use or direcdy
benefit fiom the goods, services or privileges provided, or are otherwise directly affected by
the services. These revenues include fees charged for specific strvices, rent, charges for
liceases and permits, and fines and forfeitwes, among others,

. Progmm-specific opersting and capital grants ,nd contributions These revenues
consist oftramactiom drat are either mandalory ol voluntary non-exchange fansactions with
other governrnents, organizations, or individuals that restrict the resources for use in a

particular program. Operating glams and contributions consist ofresources that are required
to be used to finance the costs of operating a specific progam or can be used either for
operaling or capital purposes ofa specific pro$am. Capital grants and contributions consist
of revenues or resources that are restricted for capital purposes - to purchase, constnrct or
renovate capital assets associated with a specific program. Restricled operating and capital
grants and contributions are program revenues be€ause they are specifically attriburable to a
program and reduce the net expense of that progam to the Municipality. They are reported
net of estimated uncolle.tible amounts.

General revenues arethe default category for revenues. It includes all revenues and gains that do
not meet the definition of program revenues. Property taxes, municipal license taxes, comtlucdon
excise taxes and sales and use taxes are reported as general revenues, All other nonta\ revenues
(including umestricted interest on deposils, grants and contributions not restricted for specific
progmms and miscellaneous revenues) that do not meet the definition of progmm revenues are
classified as general revenues. Resources that are dedicaled iftemally by the Municipality are
reported as general revenues mther than as progmm revenues. All geneml revenues are repofted
net of estimated uncollectible amounts, which are recorded as reduction ofrevenues ralher than as

Special rens comist of revenues arising ftom significant transactions or olher events within the
control of management that are either unusual in nahre or infrequent in occurrence.

Extraordinary items consist of revenues arising fiom significant transactions or other events that
are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence.
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TlE generul govemmenl function/program reported in the accompanying statemenl of activilies

includes expenses that are, in essencq indirect or costs of other function programs of the

Municipality. Even though some ofthese costs have been charged to certain funds in the FFs ar

indiect cost allocations permitted under some federal prograrns, the Municipality has reported

these indiect costs as direct expenses of the general govemment function. Accordingly, the

Municipality generally does not allocate general government (indirect) costs to other functions.

The effects ofall inter-fund governmental activities (revenues, expenditules and other financing

sources/uses among governmeftal funds) have been removed from the accompanying statemmts

of net assets and activities,

The Municipality classifies the most significant portion ofits activities as governmental activities
in the accompanying GWFS. Th€se are activities generally financed through taxes,

imeigovernmental revenues and other non-exchange rcvenues that can be used to support the

Municipality's progmms or services. These governmental activities are also generally reported in
the FFS. On the other han4 the operations of Villas del Parque are rerrcrted as business_O?e

activities in the accompanying GWFS. These activities are Primarily financed fiom grants and

contributions and charges for services- These business-tyPe activities are also reported in the

FFS.

The Municipality has no fiduciary activities, which are those in which the Mmicipality would be

holding or managing net asseis for specific individuals or other external pa(ies in accordance

with trust agreements or other custodial arrangements.

The Municipality has opemtiom and activities that are financed and operated in a marmer similar

to private business enterprises, where the costs of ploviding goods or sewices to the general

public (expenses, including depreciation) is financed primarily thrcugh user charges; and where

the governjng body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned exPenses

incurred, anayor net income is appropriate for capital maintenancg public policy, management

control, accountabiliry, or other purposes.

d) Fu d Financial Statenents

A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity consisting of a self-balancing set of accounts used to

record assets, liabilities and residual equities, deficits or balances, and changes thereir! which are

segregated fol the purpose of carrying on specific activilies or atlaining certain objectives in

accordance with GAAP andor special regulations, restdctions or limitations.

The accompanying FFS are composed oi (1) the balance sheet goverffnental funds, (2) the

staternent of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (deficits) govemmental

finds, (3) the statement of net assets - proprietary fund, (4) the statement ofrevenues, expenses

and changes in fund net assels - proprietary fund, and (5) the statement of cash flows _

proprietary fund
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These frnancial statements report the financial position and resuhs operations of the
Municipality's governmental and prop etary funds and fund types by presenting sourc€s, uses
and balances of current and non-current financial resources. Some of these financial stalements
have a budgetary orientation and focus primarily on: (1) the Municipality's major governmental
fund and fund t)?es, as defined below, (2) the fiscal accountability and (3) the individual parts of
the Municipality's governrnent. Fiscal accountability represents the Municipality's responsibility
toju$iry that its actions in the current fiscal year have complied with public decisions concerning
the raising and spending of public moneys in the short term (generally one fiscal year).

The accompanying FFS segegate gover nental funds, prop erary funds and fund types
according to their intended purpose and are used in demonslrating compliance with legal,
financial and contractual provisions. The minimum number of goverrnnental funds and fund
tlpes is rnaintained consistent wilh legal and self-imposed managerial requirements eslablished
by the Municipality. For financial reporting purposes, the Municipality classifies ia
govemmental and proprietary funds within the following categories:

. Genenl Jund - The general fund is the Municipality's main operating fund and a major
govermental fund as defined below, used lo account for all financial resowces and
goveminental activities not accounied for and reported in another fund, lt is presumed that
the Municipality's governmental activities have been reported in the general fund except for
tmnsactions for which one of the following compellinB reasons has required the use of
another fund: (1) legal requirements, (2) GAAP requiremens or (3) the demands of sound
financial administration requiring the use ofa governmental fund other than the geneml fund.

. Debl service lund The debt service fund is a major governmental fund, as defined below,
used by ihe Municipality to account for all financial iesources that are resfiicted, committed,
or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest; for (l) bonds payable for which debt
service payments are legally mandated to be accounted for in a debt service fund and/or (2)
bonds payable or any general long-term debt for which the Municipality is being
accumulating financial resources in advance to pay principal and interest payments maturing
in futuIe years. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the financial activity accounted
for in ihe debt service fund was sp€cifically related to bonds payable.

The outstanding balance ofgeneral long-term obligalions for which debt service payments do
not involve the advance accumulation ofresources (such as notes payable) are only accounted
for in the accompanying statemenl of net assets. The debt service payments of such debts, as

applicable, are generally accounted for as debt service - principal and debt service - interest
expenditures in the general fund, except for certain notes payable to HtlD, which are
accounted for in the community development block grant fund and other debl which are
accounted for wilhin other govertunental funds,
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Special rcve ae lurrds - The special revenue funds are major and non-major governmental

funds, as defined below, used by the Municipality to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes

other than debt service and capital projects. The uses and limitatiom of each special
revenue fund are specified by municipal ordinances or federal and state statutes. However,
resouces restricted to expenditure for purposes normally financed from the general fund are

reponed in the Municipality's general fund provided that all applicable legal requirements are

appropriately satisfied. In this casq a spe€ial revenue fund to account for such kind of
tmnsactions will be used only if legally mandated.

Capital prujects lunds - Capital projects funds are rnajor and non-major governmental funds,
as defined below, used to account for all financial resouces that are restricted, committe4 or
assigned to fipenditue for capital outlays. Signilicant capital outlays financed from
proceeds of gentral obligatiorL public improvement or special obligation bonds are accounted
for also in the capital projects funds.

The use ofthe capital projects funds has been reserved only for major capital acquisitiom,
constuction or improvement activities that would distort financial resources trend alata if not
reported separately ftom the olher Municipality's operating activities. The routine purchases

of minor capitalizable assets (such as furniture, office equipment, vehicles and other minor
capital assets or improvements) have been reported in the governmental fund from which
financial resources were used for lhe paymml.

Pnqierqry lund - Ptoprietary fund is a fund used to report the financial positior! results of
operation and cash flows of Villas del Parque (ImIIA Project No. 63-0ll-0690660049),
which arc aciivities for which the intent of management is to recover, partially ttrough user

charges for services (rent) and mostly tkough federal grants, the cost of low-income housing
seflices to the general public.

The activities of Villas del Parque have been reported as a proprietary fund since CAAP
permits the use of enterprise funds to report any activity for which a fee is charged to external
users of gooals or services, regardless of whether the governrnent intends to fully recover the

co6t ofthe goods or seflices provided. Thus, it is common ro use proprietary fund reporting
to account for services where the government intends to recover only a portion of its costs

tkough fees or user charges (GASB No. 34, paragraph 67).

As required by GASB No. 34, the proprietary fund of the Municipality applies all
pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and its
predecessor bodies, such as the Accounting Principles Board (APB) and the Committee on
Accounting Procedur€, issued on or before November 30, 1989, provided those
pronouncements do not conflict with or contradict the standards of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. However, the Municipality has elected to continue following
more recent FASB guidance, provided it neither conflicts nor contradicts GASB
pronouncemenls,
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The focus ofthe FFS is on major governmental funds, proprietary funds and fund types, which
generally represent the Municipality's most important funds. Accordingly, the Municipality is

required to segegate governmental funds, proprietary funds and fund tlpes between majol and

non-major categories within the FFS. Major individual governmmtal and proprietary funds and

fund types are reported individually as separate columns in the FFS, while data from all non-
major governmental and proprietary funds are aggegated into a single columq rcgardless of fund
type

By definitiorL the Municipality's general fund is always considered a major governmental fund
for financial report;ng purposes. ln addition, any other govertunenlal fund is classified as a major
govemmental fund in the FFS if its total assets, liabililies, revenues or expenditures of that
individual govemmenral fund are al least 10 percmt of the corresponding element total (assets,

liabilities, revenues or expenditures) for all governmental funds. ln addition, the same element
thal meets the l0 percent criterion must be at least 5 percent of the corresponding element total
for all governmental and enterprise (proprielary) flmds combined. For the purposes of applying
the aforementioned major fund criteria, no eliminations of inter-fund balances have been made.

Total revenues for these purposes means all rcvenues, including operating and non-operating

revenues (net ofallo\rances for uncollectible accounts), except for other financing soulces. Total
expenditures\expemes for these purposes mean all expendiores\expenses, including operating

and non-opemting expenditures\g\penses, e"\cept for other financing uses.

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Municipality's major governmental firnds reported in
the accompanying FFS are: (1) the general tund (2) the debl service tun4 (3) the head start tund,
(4) the community developmenl block gant fund and (5) the capital improvement bond fund. In
additior! Villas del Parque has been reported separately from govemmental funds as the or y
proprietary tund of the Municipality.

The head start fund is a spe€ial revenue fund used to account lor the receipts and disbursements

of the head start pro$am gant administered by the Administration for the Integral Care and

Development of Children of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, as a pass-through eftiry of the
U.S. Department ofHealth and Human Services.

The communify development block grant fund is a major capital projects fund used to account for
financial resources that are assigned by the US Housing and Urban Development Agency and by
the PR Offce ofthe Commissioner of Municipal Affairs principally for use in the communiry
development projects.

The capital improvement bond fund is a major capital projects fund trsed to account for proceeds

of general obligation, public improvement or special obligation bonds. These ptoceeds are used

for the acquisition, consrucdon or improvement of major capital facilities and other assets.

The accompanying FFS are accompanied by other statements and schedules required by GAAP:
(l) the reconcitiation ofthe balance sheet - governmenlal funds to the statement of net assets, and
(2) the reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances

govemmental funds to the statement of activities.
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e) Measurerrunl Focus and Basis ofAccounting

Governmenhwide finrncial stat€ments and propri€tarv fund The accompanying G.WFS and
proprietary fund are prepared using the economic resources m@surement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Subject to the additional rules and limitarions detailed below, revenues
(including int€rest on deposits and rent) are generally recorded when eamed and expemes are
generally re.orded when a liability is incurred, re9rdless of the timing ofrelated cash flows.

All revenues, expenses, gains, Iosses, assets and liabilities resulting fiom exchange and exchange-
like transactions are generally recorded when the exchange takes place. ln exchange transactions,
each paty to the tmnsaction re€eives and gives up essenlially equal values. Ar exchangelike
transaction is one in which there is an identifiable exchange and the values exchanged, though
relate4 may not be quite equal. Nevertheless, the exchange characteristics of ihe exchangelike
transaction are strong enough to justiry treating it as an exchange for accounting purposes

(exampl€s include certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues, which are recorded as

revenues when collected because they are generally not mmsurable mtil actually received).

All revenues, expensest gains, losses and assels resulting ftom non-exchange transactions are

recorded using the criteria set forth by GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Finarcial
Reportingfor Non-exchange Z/ardactrozr (GASB No. 33). GASB No. 33 established accounting
and reporting standards for non-exchange transactions involving cash and financial or capital
resources (for example, most tzxes, grants and p vate donations), ln a non-exchange tramaction,
the Municipality gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in
retum. This is different from an exchange tramaction, in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. According to GASB No. 33, the Municipality goups its non-exchange
transactions into the iollowing four classes in the accompanying basic financial statements: (a)

derived tax revenues, (b) ;mposed non-exchange revenues, (c) goverffnent mandated non-
exchange transactiom, and (d) voluntary non-exchange trarEactions.

Proprietary fimds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenue and expenses genemlly rcsult from providing services and producing and

delivering goods in cormection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. Revenue
and expenses not meeting this definition are rcported as non-operating revenue and expemes. The
rnajor operaling revenue of the Municipality's enterprise fund is fiom rent charges collected
principally ftom a Section 8 New Comtruction and Substantial Rehabilitation Progam housing
assistance grant agreement with U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development.

In the case of derived tax revenue tmnsactions, which result from assessments the Municipality
places on exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when the underlying
exchange has occurred.
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In the case of imposed non-exchange revenue tramactions (such as properry hxes and municipal
liceme taxes), which result from assessments rnade by the Municipality on nongovernmenlal
entities, including individuals, other than assessments on exchange transaclions, receivables are

generally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal claim has arisen- Property taxes and

municipal license are generally recorded as revenues (net of amounts comidered not collectible)
in the fiscal year when r€sources are required to be used or the first fiscal year that the use ofthe
resources is permitted,

Govenunent-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as gmnts and contributions) result when
a government at one level (such as the federal or state goverrunent) provides resources to the
Mmicipality and the provider governmenr requires the Municipality to use those resources for a

specific purpose or purposes established in the provider's enabling legislation. In these qpe of
tmmactions, re€eivables and revenues are generally recorded when all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met. For the majority of grants, the Municipality must expend

resourc€s on the specific purpose or projecl before the provider reimburses any amounts.

Revenue is, thereforq generally recognized as qualirying reimbursable expenditures are incurred.

Voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and cerlain gants and entitlements)
result from legislative or contractual agreements, other than exchanges, willingly entered into by
two or more parties. In these types of rransactiom, receivables and revenues are generally

accounted for in the same marmer as government-mandated non-exchange tramactions discussed

above, Events tllat are neither exchange nor non-exchange tmnsactiom are recorded when it is

probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount ofloss is reasonably eslirnable.

Receipts of any type ofrevenue sowces collected in advance for use in the following fiscal year

are recofded as unearned revenues.

According to GASB No. 34, all general capital assets and lhe unmatured long-term liabilities are

recorded only in the accompanying statement of net assets and the statement of net assets

proprietary fund The measurement focus and the basis of accounting used in the accompanying

GWFS and the proprietary fund differ significantly from the measurement focus and basis of
accounting used in the preparation of the accompanying governmental fund financial statements.

Thereforg the accompanying governmental fund financial slatements include reconciliations, as

detaited in the accompanying table of contents, to better identify the relationship between the

GWFS and the governmental fund financial statements.

Governmental fund linancial statements The accompanying governlnental fund financial

stalements are reported using the curent financial resources measurement focus (flow of current

financial resources) and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, lhe
accompanying statemenl of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances (deficits) -
governmental funds, reports changes in the amount of financial resources available in lhe near

fufure as a result of transactions and evenls of the fiscal year reported. Therefore, revenues are

generally recognized as soon as they are both masurable and available. Revenues are considered
1o be available when they are collectible within the current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter

to pay liabilities ofthe cunent fiscal year. For thjs pupose, the Municipality considers most

revenues to be available if €ollected generally within 90 days after lme 30, 201l, excepl for
properry taxes for which the availability period is 60 days.
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Revenue souces not meeting this availability criterion or collected in advance are recorded as

deferred (earned and unavailable) revenues at June 30, 20 I 1 .

The principal revenue sources considered susceptible to acoual include property taxes, municipal

license taxes, sales and use taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovertunental grants and

contributions, interest on deposits and charges for services. These principal revenue souces me€t

both measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying governmental fund financial

statements, except for amounts lecorded as deferred (eamed and unavailable) revenues.

In a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria discussed

previously, all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabililies resulting iom exchange

and exchangelike hansactions are also generally recorded when the exchange takes place-

Accordingly, certain charges for services and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues

when collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received.

All revenues, expenses, gaim, losses and assets resulting lrom non_exchange transactions are

recorded in a similar rnanner lo the GWIS, using the Previoosly discussed criteria set forth by

GASB No. 33 for non-exchange tramactions, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria

discussed above. Accordingly, property ta\ and municiPal license tax receivables are also

generally recorded in the fiscal year when an enforceable legal claim has arisen while property

tax and municipal ticerse tax revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) are also

generally recorded in (he fiscal year when resources are required 10 be used or the first fiscal year

that the use ofthe resources is permitted. Receivables and revenues from federal and state Srants

and contdbutions, donations and entitlements are also genemlly recorded when all eligibility
requiremenls imposed by the provider have been met (generally, as qualiryinB reimbursable

expenditures are incured for expenditure-driven gants)

Interest on deposits is recorded when earned onty if colle€ted within 90 days after the fiscal yeaF

end since these levenues would be considered both mmsumble and available

Pusuant to the provisions of GASB Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of
Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in Gowmmental Fund Financiat Statelre)rrs (GASBI No.

6), in the absmce of an explicit requirement (i.e., the absence of an applicable modificatior!
discussed below) the Municipality generally accrues a governmental fund liability and an

expenditure (including salaries, professional services, supplies, utililies, etc ) in the period in

wtichthe government incurs the liability,lothe extent that these liab;lities are normally exPected

to be liquidated with curent available financial resources. GASBI No. 6 modified the

recognition criteria for certain expenditures and liabilities reported under the modified accrual

basis of accounting prior to GASB No. 34, and clarified a number of situations in which the

Municipality should distinguish between goverrnnental fund liabilities and general long-term

liabilities. Therefore, the accompanying balance sheet - governmental funds generally reflects

assets that will be converted into cash to sadsry current liabililies Longlerm assels (except for
accounts receivables and inter-fund advances) and those assets that will not be converted inlo
cash to satisry cument liabilities are generally not accourted for in the accompanying balance

sheet - governmental funds. At the same timg long-term liabilities (generally, those unmatuied

that will not require the use of crment financial resources to pay them) are no1 accounted for in
the accompanying balance sheet governmertal funds.
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Modificatiom to the accrrial basis of accounting in accordance with GASBI No. 6 include:

. Principal and interest on bonds payable are recorded when they marure (when payment is
due), ficept for principal and irterest due on July l, 2011, which have been recorded as
govertunental flud liabilities at June 30, 201I, which is the date when resources are available
in the debt service tund (generally, June 30).

. Notes payable, obligations under capital leases, compensated absmces, and amounts subject
to accrued claims and judgments under litigation are recorded only when they mature (when
payment is due).

. Certain accrued liabilities not due and payable or not normally expected to be liquidated with
current available and expendable lmancial resources are recorded in the accompanying
statement olnet assets. Such liabilities are iecorded in the govemmental funds lvhen they
rDture.

. Executory purchase orders and contmcts are recorded as assignments of fund balance in the
governmental funG FFS.

The measurement focus of the govemmental funds financial statements is on decreases of net

financial resouces (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are measurable and
are recorded when the related govemmentalfund liability is incurred. Allocation ofcosts, such as

depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the accompanying statement of activities and the
statemmt of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets, but are not recorded in the
accompanying governmental fund financial statements.

t Sreteardship, Cohtpliance a d Accountabilil!

Budqehrv Control

According to Law No. 81, the Mayor and its Administrative Cabinet prepare annual budgets each

fiscal year for the Municipality's general fund and debt se ice fund. Such legally adopted
budgets are based on expected expenditures by program and estimated resources by souce. The
annual budgeis are developed using elements of performance-based program budgeting and zero-
based budgetin& and include estimates ofrevenues and other resources for the emuing fiscal year

under la\rs and regulations existing at the time the budgets are prepared.

The Mayor must submit, for each fiscal year commencing on July 1, an annual budgetary
resolution project (the Project) to the Commissioner ofMunicipal Affairs ofthe Commonwealth
(the Commissioner) and the Municipal Legislature no later than the immediately preceding May
31. The Commissioner preliminarily verifies that the Project complies with all the applicable
laws and regulatiom and may provide comments and suggestions to the Mayor on or before the
imrnedialely preceding June i 5.
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The Municipal Legislature has lO business days, up to the immediately preceding June 13, to

discuss and approve the Project with modifications. The Municipal Legislature may-amend the

budgets submitted by the M;yor but rnay not increase any items so far to cause a deficit without

imp_osing taxes or identiflingother sources ofrevenue to cover such deficit After the Municipal

Le;ishire modifies andpreliminarily approves the Project, the modified Project is sent back to

the-Mayor for his approltl or rejection within six (6) days The Mayor may decrease or eliminate

anv line item but miv not increase or insen any new line item in the budgets The Mayor may

alio veto the budge6 in their entirely and return it to the Municipal Legislature with his

objections. Ifthe i.'layor rejects the Project, the Municipal Legislature will have up to-eight (8)

days to adopt or rejecithe recommendations or objections ofthe Mayor. The approved Project is

sent again to the Mayor, which thm would lEve three (3) days to sign and approve it

If the budgets are not adopted prior to the end of the deadlines refered to above, the annual

budgets fo; the Feceding fiscal year, as approved by the Legislature and the Mayor, ale

aut;atically ren;wed for the ensuing fiscal year u il the Municipal Legislaore and the Mayor

approve new bualgets. This regulalion permits the Municipality to continue doing payments for ;ts

opiatiom and other purposes until the new budgets are approved.

The armual budgets may be updated for any estimate revisions as well as fiscal year_end

encumbrances, a'na may inct,-rae any additional information rcquested by the MuniciPal

Legislature. The Mayor may request subsequent amendments to the approved budgets, which are

subject to the approval of the Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality's Depanment of Finance has the respoosibility to ensure that-tudgeiary

spending conrol-is mai;Bined. For day{o-day management control purposes, expenditures plus

e;cumb;ances may not exceed budgeted amounts at the expenditue_type level of each cost c€nter

(activity within a program within ahnd). The Mayor may tramfer unencumbered appropriatiorls

within programs within funds. The Municipal Legislatwe may transfer amoufis among prcgralns

within and among funds.

The legal level of budgetary control (i e., the level at which expenditures fiIay not legally exceed

appropiiationl is at ;he functior/program level (general government, urban .and economic

development, public safety, health and sanitatiorL culturq recreation and education, and public

housing and welfare) within a tund

Under the la\ls and regulations of the Commonwealth, the appropriations made for any fiscal

year shall not exceed th-e total revenue, including available sulplus, estimated for said fiscal year

;nless the imposition of taxes sumcient to cover said appropriations is provided'

Budqetarv Accountitre

The Municipality's annual budgets are prepared using the budgetary (statutory) basis of

accountinB which is not in accoralance with GAAP

According to the budgetary basis of accounting, revenue is generally re'ord€d when cash is

received. Short-term and iong+erm bonowings may be used to finance budgetary excess of
expenditures over revenues,
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;";;i;;'#;1"; dJe.r, it, u,"nd,"nt'. und rh;actual resulrs of operarions olsuch major

i"""-.""irihr?o ,"a.t?e budgerary basis of accounling for lhe Iiscal )ear ended June l0'

iiiil'tri'i", l"irt- 
"iir,. 

i'runiiipuritv'' tuagetary control at the legal level mav be obtained

trom *re euagetaty I-iquidation Rep;rt for the fiscal year ended June 30' 201l'

Because accounting principles applied lor lhe purposes of the developing dah.ol 
-a -budcetaryil;;?; 

'61nc?.1it 
liJm those used to p'esent the sovernmental tund fiYi:;il.:Y1""' i'

ffi;;;;ii-cAAi, a reconciliation of the differences between the general fund budgetary

basesandGAAIactualamounlsarepresentedatthebottomofthebudgetarycomparison
schedule-

g) Deposils

The MuniciDaliN s deposils are composed ol {l) cash on hand l2l demand 
-deposils 

in

H#;j;Ji,",t;.rnuno a"p*is in rhe Governmenr Developmenr Banl' for Pueflo Rico

(fiscal agent) and (4) cash equivalents in commercial banks

The MuniciDaliw totlo\a5 lhe practice of pooling cash The balance in the pooled cash.accounl is

;;;ilil;;;;;;;;"' op".iri,g '.q,i'i"'t'-and 
an) unresrrided erce's ifan)' is inlested in

;;#;;;;;li-6;;ia;itir comie'cial tant<s Anv deliciencv in rhe pooled cash-account is

"".rr.Jty 
tft" g""""f fund and covered tkough furure budgetary approp-riations 

. 
At June 30'

iorl. 
-trr" 

i^rl u:ru 
"uf" 

in the pooled cash aci'nt amounted lo sl'014'ltl' which has been

recorded within major and non-major governmental frmds'

UnderthelawsandlegulationsoftheCommonwealtlLpublicfundsdepositedbythe
,,i.iplliv-i,.o.r..cial banls mmr be fully collateraliz;d for-the amouns deposiled in

excess of the federal depository insurance generaity provided by the Federal DeposiB Insurance

i--"ii." rrorcr' ,qit securiries ptedgei as coitaieral are held b) agents designaled b) lhe

ioln-on**i,t'. s...*ry oflhe Treasury. bul not in lhe MunicipaliD-s name'

13



MUN'ICIPALITY oF JUA'\A DiAZ"

COMMOI'IIVEALTH OT I'UERTO RJCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 201I

Cash in fiscal agent in the general flmd amounting to $l'870'549 consists principally of unspert

i#lJ.'li u"ia. o. pal"ment ot the M un icipai R evenue coltection cenrer ( cpJM"' bv its

ilT#'"Iloiil;.;rii'"ri'i6ot-zooo n""i 
'inlemenl' 

ca\h in fi5cal aBenr in rhe debr rervice

fund consists of cash relaled to properry tax and sales and use tax colleclions amounting to

ii'ioi,iii *r'i.t' are restricred io, ih. puv'"nt of the Municipalirv's debl trvice of bonds

:]:".;;:;: '.;,;;;; i,* 
-i*r, 

i" r,'*i ,e*' in rhe caPitat improvemenr bond tund and other

[i:ffi;;ii:;:,"#","'i,'el" ii,ioi zr=: 
"nd 

$47'6io respecriretv con5isrs principarrv or

il""".t .r*iJi liu",[ andfederal public assistance grants tunds' which are restricted for the

0.4'riritiLn. *ntr.r"tion or impro!ement of major capilal assels'

Cashincommercialbankoftheheadstarlfund,amountinBtosl20,4T8.represents.thebalance
Ji"'.""-i.l*"i U""..g account restricted to hnance the 

-operations of this federal fnancially

;:t"l#; p;;;;. ;;th:n commercial bank of rhe commu;ir) development block gram tund'

"."r",i,i*'6 
S:+:,Sfl, represents the balance of a non_interest bearing account rcstricted to

ir-.iii. "p*",i"* "fthis 
federal Iinancially assisled Program Cash.in commercial hanlG for

"ir'.. ".r"-i,',"nrr 
tunds, amouming lo $1.088 749' reitesinrt the balance of-interesl bearing

;ff;.";;;;;;*;;*;..orni''io?i"t'a ro n*nce Ihe operariom o[cerlain federal state and

local funded plograms.

Cash equi\alents of the other governmental funds comist of certificate of deposit with original

muturitv ot rfuee monlhs or less amounling lo 527 770 al June J0 20ll whicharose from

unsDenl funds bom the u.S. Depaftmenl ot frousing and Lrban Developmenl Seclion 8 hottsing

cholce uouche. ptogram. which is restricted lo finance program aclrrrtle5'

CashincommercialbanksofvillasdelParque(proprielaryfundlamounring.]o.sl73'563,
;;;;;;;;; ;"1"r"" of inreresr and non-inreresr'bearing account' restricted to. llnance the

"lll;i'1i"..L".. v ii ili pu,q* ir ,"qri,"a ro ser amounrs for rhe replacemenr of propeny

il"J:i#;i*:i *';ilii,,*.-ui upp'o"a bv the L S Departme or Housins and rrrban

ir.""]"rr.:",.'- 
-n*ira 

ingt1. the resiricred cash batances ;l villas del- Parque include a

*i;;il";i",J;;i i;o'.irj, " 
*'t balance for operations of $61'642' tenants' securitv

i.''p*it. "ilzrjn 
*a r.ash balance reserved for taxes and insurance ol$t7 750

h) Accouits ReceiYdblc

Accourts receivable consist of all revenues eamed but not collected at June 30' 2011' These

;;;;; r;;;G are state'l net of estimate'l reserved for doubttul accounts' which are

il;;i;J;;;J;p"" past collection experience, hstorical trends' crment economic conditions

and the periodic aging of accounls receivable'

Aclivities among governrnental funds that are representative of lendingAonowing arrangements

"r,""Tirg "iiri" 
ira 

"i,he 
fiscal year are refened to as either "due to/from olher {unds" (i e lhe

",-.*,."iri". of inter-fund loam) or "advances to/from other fimds" (ie' the non_current

Hil #i;;; i;J;u*i, "t 
upprit'ur" All other outstanding balances between funds are

ieporred as _due tc/from other funds'"
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MuNIclPAurY oF Jua\A DiAz'
coMMoN\ EALTH of I'uERTo RJC0

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 201I

Real E tate He lIor Sale

Real estate's held for sale in the accompanying slatement of net iEsets are carried al th€ low€r of

;;;;;;;;;i";; t'Lto,i"ul 
"o't 

sutiqu"nl dectines in the value of real6tate available

for sale are charged to expeme.

Aher Cufierrl Assets

other current assets in the accompanying statement of net assets and the balance sheet

g'il,l"#"iii rril-.'""*i.i p.i*lpuirv ir pi"puia costs, which are capilalized rather that charged

to opemtions,

Defefled Charges

Deferred charses in the accompanfng sBtement of net assets consist of debl issue costs

",r*"?a "iiiLl"*".. "iU"'"a 
i"a-rr*. Deferred charges are reponed ner o[accum,,lared

;;1;;;;i;;;haiges are amortized over the term o'(he relared debt using th€ straight-

ir"'."ftJ. i. it" i""emirental tunds FFS. bond issuance. costs are recorded. in,lhe current

period as expenairures. whether or nol wilhheld from lhe actual debl proceeds recer\e0'

Capital Assets

aa.ital assets used in governmental and business_Ope activities include land and land

;#;;;; u-uiioins,'",,u*.". and buildins improvemenrs machiner] and equipment

i]iiii,irit'"ii,rp.iii T;lJ unae' capirat leasesi fumirure and llxlures licensed \ehicles'

["rnr"L.l. irt"s*., and inlrastructure These assets are capitalized and reporled in the

accomoanvine statemena of net asseE and the statement of nJt assets prcpdetary firnd'

i;;;ffi#;";il;t;'g.n".rLtv .*,ionury in nature and include roacls' bridges' sreets and

sidewalk, drainage systems and other similar assets'

For firlancial rePorting purPoses, the MuniciPalit) defines capilal assets as assets,with an

i;"iilf;;" d; ;fii0o'o.nlo." ot th" dut" of icquisition' corstruction or improvement' and

*i f, ,iGi iir* *""aing beyond one year' All assels wirh individuatcosls under Sl0o or with

useful lives not exceeding one year' are charged directly lo e\pense in the-governmentwide

;;;;f ;"lGandihe statement of reve-n'es, e\penses and changes in fund net assets ln

it. r.r.-tn.nrut n ra.. 
^ll 

capital assets are recorded as capilal ourlays te\pendilwes). while al,

::*;'ffi'il;il;l';."-i,"a* sroo are recorded aj expenditures in the corresponding

functior/program identified with the asset'

In the statement of net assets and the statement of net assets - proprielary.fund' all capital assets

;;";;;; ;;;" ;, ;timated historical cost if actual cost was unavailable' excePt for dortated

"r.fai ".t*. 
*tti* *" recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donadon 

-Estirnated
ilL*;i;;;;;; ;" deflared current costs were used to \alue a portion of the inftastructure

.:;.i;;;;, acquired prior lo June 30. 2o0l and cenain lands buildings shrcrures and

n,iJi"r'i.ri"*.'."". ihe method used to deflale the currenl costs wilh an apProximate pnce

Ji." ti*- JJ "J, 
Ir,r,r. case ofcertain items for \ahich the hisloricatcosr documenlalion was

not available.

k)

45



MINICIPALITY or JUANA Dilz'
COMMONWEALTH OF I'T]TRTO RICO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

FiscatYear Ended lune 30' 201I

ActualhistoricalcostswereusedtovaluetheinfiastructureacquiedorcomtructedaftelJune30'
:itrii * *"I as, construction in progress, machinery and equipment and licensed vehicles

acquired prior or after such date.

Mrior odlavs for caDihlassets and improvements are capilalized in the slalemenl ofnel assets as

;:1H"#'#.,iI.;.1r'".*i "i,",r"r 
mainrenance and rePairs rhar do nd add wlue ro

ii"'u...r o.t*r.ti"ftv ."tend capilal assel lives are nol capitalized

Dmrecialion and amorlization expense is recorded only in the go! ernmenl-wide. stalemenl of

,';l;fi;::';"-"'";;, ;iliino d$.eriation o' amorrization recorded for land and con5lruclion

;;;;;;*; Depreciable caPilal assels are generally deprecialed .or 
amonized. over iheir

l|,il*,?i *.n r i[., 
"rder 

rh'e straighr tine meihod- eicepr for machinery and equipmenr held

,.j-."ri*ii*.* *rti.h is deprecialled over lhe shorler of ils eslimaled useful lire or lhe lmse

rerm. The eslimaled useful liles ofmajor capilalassel categories are:

Years
20

30 to 50
20 to 50

5

5to20
3to5

DenreciaLion and amonizalion e\pense of capilal assels is recorded as a direcl expense of the

;X.i#;,og]; ilil";lrl ia,irin.a wiri the asset Depreciation and amoniT'rion or

i#"ltri*irt ."i'"I*atito various tunctions/progxams but reported as direct expenses ofthe

u.ban and economic developmenl funclion'

m) Defefied ReYen es

In the governmenlal fund financial statements, deferred revenue arises when one of the following

situations occur:

. Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for revenue- 
;;;il ; ;;" ;; period (reoorted zs earned and unavaitabte revenue h the

u..o'.prrling balance sheit'governmenlal funG) As previousl) discussed' avaiLable is

;;i;;i ,; d; (or past due) ur t*t ro' 2ott and collecred wirhin 90 davs (60 davs for

r..".* tr,.*, lherealier lo pay obligalions due al June J0 ln subsequenl periods' when

il,H:;i;j;i;;;;;i; u,a 'uJuituut.i u" '""he 
riabirir) ror derered revenue is removed

and revenue ia recognized-

. The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, Geported as

l'i"*nrd ieu"iue" intyu accompanying balance sheet-govemmentat funds)' ln subsequent

"*i.at. "ft"n 
the relenue retognilion crilerion is mel the liabiliry lor delened revenue ls

'removed and revenue is recognized

Land improvements

Buildings, structures and building improvements

lnfrasructure
Motor vehicles

Fumiture, fixtures, machinery and equipment,

excluding those held under caPital leases

Office equipment held under capital leases
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MUMCTPAUTY OF JUANA DiAZ,

COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20 I 1

Uneamed revenues at the goverrunent_wide and the proprietary fund levets arise onty, when the

;;;;;i, ;;** re,ources berore ii nas a tegat itaim io rt''m rreponed as 'unearned

J;'#:';;,;"* ;;;"vi"el'"i"men' "r;" ^ sa; 'ro earned antl undvaitabte revenue" is

"*"""Lt_i"i 
i. ,tt" u""o.plnying statement of net assets nor the statement of net assets -

Foprietary tund

n) Co pe saled Abse ces

The liability for compensated absences fecor'led in the accompanying statement of net assets is

rirn'it.itiL"l,nn,'trfisanributableloservicesalreadlrenderedonorbeforeJune10 
201I

2n.'i i)r i< nor continse on a sDecilic evenl lhal is oulsid'lhe conlroloflhe Municipalily and the

:-:]:l::;::;;. 
'ii;".". 

ioino"*ut.a utr"n es that relate to tuture services or arecontingent

:l Pu :iltil J; ;:il the iJntror ot ttre emprover or the emplovee are accounted ror in the

ielJ'*nen thoss seru;ces are rendered or lhose e!ents rake place

The liabilily for compen5ated absences includes salarv-relaled cosls which are dir€ctl, and

in.remedallv relaled to the amounr or salary paid ro thi emplolee {.uch as emPlo}er'q share or

social securii taxes and medicare taxes)'

The vacalion policy of the Municipality provides for $e accumulalion of regular vacatiom at a

,l;,:;i;:il,fi;.;"iirjd ourJp"hl'ur v*'r per emplovee Emptolees accumulaLe resular

sick leave at a rate of 1.5 ctays per month [tt aays pei t.cat yeaf). Employees. accumulate

i".p.**",".y1;r"-"i " 
rate oi l i times the ouenime worksd' Alt \'acalion and sick leave dals

ac.u'mutatea uy e*ptoyees in excess ofl0 days and 90 days respecli'"el) are paid.to emplole€s

;;;il;;it&, ii# corsumed, as required bv.taw tn the case of,comPersatorv time' the

excess of 24b hours is paid lo employees each fiscal year' ll nol consumeo'

Upon termination ofemploymenL an emPlole€ re'eives compensalion for allac'umulated unpaid

*L,t^, *cation leare at the cunenl mle 
- 

ln the case of regular sick leave if lhe employee

ll,?il,.Sil; i};;r"v,'^ u'i"i' '*'t'i'e l0 vears of services such resular si'k leave is

.^rn,irllolheemDlovee.ifnotconsumed'lnadditionuponlelminalionofemployment.an
::"1':":"';"J #'.JJ;. .;;;;, ror compensator) rime' ir not consumed previouslv

lil""i;'";;"r Ji.;. 
""v 

l!g'i"' ii* r** u:'lance ii paid to the emplovee Accumulared

vacation iime is fully vested to the employee at any time

Tl'. li,hiliiv fo. comDemated absences is in the statement of net assets' A liability for

ffi##i ;:#:;';:;;; i; ih" go'on,n"nt"l tund financial statements onlv when

;;lli':iffi;;;v,ii; i' aiLj, i"i 
"*"',pti "t " 

result of emplovee resisnations or retirements'

o) Lo g-te n Debt

'I he long_lerm tiabililies repofled in the accompan)ing statemenls.o[ nel assels include lhe

Munjcipa,ir) s bonds payable. 'ott' 
puy"tf" ucc'ruta cimpe*area aUsences and ac(rued legal

claims and iudgments (ifanY)'

47



MUNTCIPALITY oF JUANA DiAz'

COMMON\trEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 2011

All lone{erm debt to be repaid Fom governmental resorrces is lepofied as liabilities in the

il#fi;i;; ;;iil; "i,io 
L'* i'i"ip"r ""a,ifl:::H1ti:*::t 1;'"ilJ;lii:

2011 have been recorded as Sovernmental
;ii.;;;;;;; ;ere aiailable tn th" tou"'n'ntnt"l tund financia-l sratements 

'the 
face

il'"J"i'"iii, "!rJ tg.;; J"ut p'o"""a'jii 'fion"d 
as olher financins sources when issued'

In the eoveflrmentat activities of the CWFS' debt issuance costs have been capitalized and

::#""i;;;;.;;ees. *rrict' are ueine amonized under Ihe straight-line melhod over rhe

::ry$l';li::';i:;;;,iJ rn ir'" crrs i'ir' 
"o'ts 

are recorded as expenditures as incurred'

Non-interest bearing notes payable are accounted for under the provisions of Opinion No 2 l '
'i":i[,*-"ii"*,,it"i iiro1,o6t"r, i..rJ by rh. eccounting Crinciples Board (APB No. 21).

'ill"fiiri- i" ,ii'i'ai; ii tt'. u'n;'lpuriw ias recorded "'-h 
no'" ut presenr talue wirh an

i.p"iJ i*er*i*" ,rt"t approximates the rate that would have been used' using the same terms

and condilions, if il had been negolrared b) an independenl lender' In the. accompany ing

statement of net assets, such notaa puyubt"'ura reported nel of the applicable unamortized

discount. *fiich is the difference between G present value and the face amount oflhe notes The

Xiiiilli'r. "iiiijjJ ";"it't'" 
iir" 

"itt'" "t& 
*ing rhe effedive interesr T"ll:gi l1:n'-tion

ofthe notes discount is r.co'd"a us putt oi inrer"tt lr'pense in the statement of aclivities ln the

Er?i,'""* J"""r* r. .*ognized ai other financing uses as incurred

p) Accounling fot Pe$ion C^rls

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASB Statement No 27' Accounting lor
p?htions bv state and Lo*t c*"-r*, i^iiiyur (CASB No. 271. the slale governmenl oflhe

i'Jffffi1#;;i;r*" irco it "o*iat"i 
t'o be the spor*or of the Emplovees' Retirement

System of the Goveflment of Puerto

Ricoandltslmtrumentalities(ERS)andSyst€m2000,amulti.employercost-sharingdeflned
ili}i'r.*]"" t,r" *ll i'tvu'io atrl""a t"iniuurion plan respeflivelv in whith the emplovees

i',i" ii"ri.rrii, ,*1.;pui'' m" r'-,1'nitlpuii'v is considoed a panicipanr' and nol a sponsor' of

I;*i;i;:;ffi;;'i;;li*' 't'' 'ujo'iri'orrt'' 
paflicipants in rhe aroremenrioned pension rrusr

funds are employe€s of trt. co*on**irtioiptittto iico and the basic financial sLalemenls of

l"J;;;.';l;;. 
"re 

pan orthe financiai reponins enrir) orthe commonwealth of Puerro

iil'l;#;r;;. ,; oonion or rhe no p"*ion ott;-g"tion rupor relaled-ro ERS has been

allocated lo the Municiputity in lttt 
""toln-iulving 

uasic irnanciaisratemenls Tle basic.financral

li#.ir" 
"ilf,.-C""ironwealth 

of puerro'Rio repon rhe rolal amounl of rhe nel pensron

"tieriii" "iris. 
i".l,aing anv amounr thar ma) conespond to rhe Municipalir)

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a multiple-

emolover cosFsharing plan' eccororngrJ pension costs tecognl"d in the accompanying basic

;i;I;.;i;;;;a 
"?J"q*r '' 't'' 'tuti',io'ii5 '"quirea 

conrriu-urions uirtratiabilit) recorded for

any unpaid rcquired contributions'
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MUMCIPALTTY OF JUANA DiAZ,

co[4uoNvEALTH OF Itif,RTO fuC!
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 2011

q) Ris* Managerrre t

The Municipalit) carries commercial insumnce co\erinP casualry then ton claims and other

*i*.''i*,i"".; ,"ff.r* are negotiated b' rhe Commo-nuealth s Departmenl of Treasury (rhe

fi F,,Hiffi i.;;; ;; ll?li::[.nlU;?iX'iff :Jff[",#ft Jl.,.?;*,ffiii'l
Treasury pals the insurance premlufirs on

n.JJiiai iir.ou*r, rnonthly ;qual payments deducted fiom the Municipalitv's €ro6s property tax

$;it; il; ;; rl"' u'ni"ip"t n"u"nu" cott""tlon cefler (l'cRtM"' bv its spanish

il;;;; ;;emli"*i "niitv '"lpo*iui" 
io' tirlins and collectins Fopertv ta'\es on behalf of

atl municipalities of Puerto Rico'

The Municipaliry canies,nsurance coveraee lor death and bodily injurie5 caused b) aulomobile

accidenls. This insurance ts oo*,n*-itrougt the Autom;bila 
^AccidenE 

compensation

"oiil',iii'",i""ioi'-o," lv it, spatstr ac'onvmi a componem unir ofthe commonweshh rhis

;;;;;"; j; .;;;;i;" ior att iicensea vehicles used on public roat and hish\'l"vs in Pueno

il;. 'il;;;*i p,..1um appticalte ar June lo 20l I is $15 Per ticensed moror vehicle r.rhich

is Paid directly to ACAA'

The MuniciPality obtains workers' comp'nsation insurance coverage ttuough the State Insurance

Fund Corporalion (SlF(') a componml unil of lhe Commonweahh This 
'insurance 

coverc

"..i.. ,Li* i"i*i*. jisabitiry or deaih uecause of \ ork or emplolmenGrelaled accidenls' or

because of illness sr.rffered as a 
"o*"qr"n"" 

of their employmant. workers' compensalion

ilr;;.- #;;; ;'e also paid rruo-'grr 
-montruv 

deductions made bv cRlM lrom rhe

Municipaliry s gross Properq lax collections'

fhe Municipalil) oblains unemployme comDensaliorl non_occupalional disabitity and drivers'

insurance covenge for irs employees,*oug[ *riou. insuance programs adminislered by lhe

;..;;;il'.'n;p".*ent of iabor and iuman Resources (DoL) These insurarrce pro$ams

cover workers against unemployment uni-piouia" supplementary 
- 
insurance covemge lor

rcmDorarv disabilily, o, a*'l u""'*" oi'io'i o' 
"rnptojrn"nut"tuGd 

accidenr or because of

:ilXt;ti,T;*d ;'; :;*"q'"nte or tt'ti' emplovmenr' unemplolmenr compensarion non-

"i'l}",iiiii 
a].iil,t, iJ'J'wo'' ln"*n"" p'"'iums are paid directlv to DoL on a cost

reimbursement basis

The Municipality also obtains medical irsurance coverage fiom heahh insurance companies for

ils emDlove€s. Health lnsurance coveme"-]nd pi".lr. -oprio* 
are negoliated each year by the

il ;':i;;ii;;;;hii"r'r'" "pto1"""i 
ir'" iu"e,r irs'rance potic;"s t'uve nor been cancelled

:;l;;P#,;.;i ffi ;. ,;l i. p,;rni;;,* p,id on a monrht) basis direcrly ro rhe insurance

il;l;;:'i;;.;;, ;;" v*" lt,' vuni"ipui;tv has not senled claims rhar exceeded insumnce

coverage.

O Futd Balinces

on Julv l, 2010, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statemenl No 54' F'nd

iiu-!" ilr"iir *,a ao'"*'"i''r ii'ir'i"'oefinitions No' rr(GAsB\o 54r' cAsBNo

ilI;:;#;;:"J'; ;'en'tness or n,'na uaiJnce informarion bv providing clearer fund balance

.tussiircarions rtrar .an se more consistentl) applied
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MTINTCIPAUTY oF JUANA DiAz'

COMMON\T'EAITH OF I'UERTO fuCO

Notes to Basic Financial Statemmts

Fiscal Year Ended June 30' 201 I

Also. this statement establishes fun'l balance classifications that comprise a hi€rarchy uPon use of

the resources reported in governmental funds'

According GASB No. 54 provisions, the fund balances are reported in five categories:

. Not$Dendable Amounls thar cannol be spent because lheynre: a).i:' li-t!:19P]:j"* '- 
;l;:J"ff;; ;"t;illlv required to be riainuined intact' Due to the narure or form o[ the

:l;:i:"a,6;;ffi; iu-or u" 
"'p"r"a 

ro ue convefled into cash or a 5pendable rorm'

. Restticletl Represenl resources lhal can be spenl onl) for the specillc purposes.stipulaled b)
- 

.#i;;;*i jrovisiom. e:'ternal resource providers (ertemall) impo6ed bv tl.lr.ror or

*rii"r.,. * ,ilr**tt enabling legislation {Lhal is legislalion that creates a new revenue

ffiJ:". ild;iilt"ii.;,"r' Eir.'iiutrv r"srri'tions m-u1 be changed or lined onlv wirh rhe

consent of resource Providers'

. Cotuttifled Represent resources used for sDecific Durposes imposed by [ormal aclion oflhe

Municipal's highest level o[ decrston rn"iing ui,r'rtidt] (M;nicipal Legistalurc-through

.*.r,il,*""^O_ 
"rai*"ces) 

and can only be changed by a similar la\ ' ordlnance or

resolution, no later than the end of fiscal year'

. ,4ssisr?d - Represml resources i endedlobe used by lhe Municipalily for specillc purposes

bul do nol meel lhe cril",iu to u" ttu"''6J"t rtstricted or tomtined tgenerally executive

orders aDDroved by lhe Malor) lnlenl t'n U" t"p'ot"a by lhe Vunicipal Legislalure lhe

"dii',"#t';; ;'m;;' 
"''u"av 

ro "r'itrt 
*t Mrlnicipal Legislature delegares authoriry in

.:iilltr"ffi ir'"]"* xo dl of Ausust lo lsql as amended Lnown as 'll/o'orno'r
t-, ^r,r., r-^--anwcorn"oi eueao Aico6aNo 8l' ln governmenul funds

frilffilXl1;..#'Ji,1;"d ;;;i;;;;ii,;;* represents the remainins amoum thar is nor

restricted or committed.

.u,,assisned-R,,r.,*',h"sl*ir:r;*"f; ':i.-1$""rJi;:',"fi :x.if :lffi '*:1,T:
includes all spendable amounE nol con
l;;:;#;.1;;i1"",1"" i' us'a o"tv ro repon a dellcil balance resulting from overspending

['$'flfi;l; #;;;"r'in "noJnr' 
r'ui t"'" resnicred' commifled or assisned'

l\esative fund balance amou 5 are assisned amoums reduced lo lhe amoun that will raise

;:"ili ili;;; ;; io*'q"ntr' ln'nuii'" 
'e\idual 

amounts is restrifled' commirred

Iiia "lii'iJalr"o't"*;e 
llassifrcatiois t'av'e ueen reclassified ro unassigned tund balances'

rhe Municiparirv repons resou'ces consFained roiJib;lf,i::#.:ffiJ;'JJ,T.T[1T],::i
or commined fund balance in the general n

fnr lhose classificalions, as described uoo* lni rilittt "i"'*lances 
or conditions lhal signal

ili ilJii'riljiili-ilu,"ia"ntin'o in "ir[iJ'i-iJi1 
and are not expected to *cur ro,tinelv'
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However. the Municipal y has not entered i o any stabilization_tike alrangementsi nor has set

,side material financial roour"o to, 
".og._r"io 

a'nd has nor estaulished formal minimum fund

;:ffi;ffi;;#;;i;;Jio' the nscar veai ended rune 30' 201 r '

when an expendinre is inclred for purposes for which amounts are awilable in multiple fund

balance classifications. the Munjcipalrly ; ;;i'it"d resources lirst and then unreslricled

Iii,."".'wri'r"" ,**"icred resouices the Municipalily generally spends commifled resouces

ii*]r"ir[*.Jti *.ig""a resourc€s' and rhen unassigned resources'

At June 30.2011, the accompanying fimd financial statements reported fund balances as

restricfe4 committed and unassigned

s) Irrtet-Jund A.7it'itiet

The Municipality has the following types of reciprocal and-non-reciFocal inter-fund activities

,;;;;;;:,;;;";.*'ental tunds in the accompanvins Frs:

. Intet'find too,ls - Represent resouces (assets) provided by-one Soverrurclllljlld t *h*- 
e",.#,i""r tund. uith a'f: ::,ry',$jJ;g';i5r'1"p"')J:[tl]T;::lXil;
*;',1,:',"Jn$#"ffi, ilio'."1",;;;. ;;;iua'utes *r'ict' are nor considered ro be

currently avaitable nn-tiut 'oo*t"i *t 
rcponed as 'odvances- 

, -For 
amounts nol

e\neded lo be collected. rnter-tuni iec.;rr61ir'o"y"ur.. are reduced to Iheir estimated

realizable (settlemenr) vaf'" -a 'rt"'pon:'ln 
oiif'Jiirer-ftrno loun rttar is nol e) pected to be

ffi:il;;',;il;;'; " 
atLsfer'in 

. ion the governmenral tund thar provided rhe roan'

. tntet-fan(t.iansfe'(",^/":,-_,1(13";l,H:;l lililtfi:flI:fl1H1';rl':.";:':l
of fmancial resouces among govel

retum and without a requi'"rn"nt tot louvlntnt Tmrlsfers are reponed as other lifincifig

!6es in rhe governmentat r'"d t"ki;;i;;i;t ind as orher'fnan' ins roxrcPr ' in rhe

govemmenul hmd receiving transters'

. InteFlu d reimbunenenls - Represent repaymmE {reimbursemenB) from lhe

poverrunenrat tund responsibte or p"Ii*r"r *pJ"iit*es or expenses lo lhe governmenlal

"tund 
that initialty Paid for them'

In the FFS, inter-fund activity has not been eliminated' as permitled by GAAP'

t) lJse ol Estit ules

rhe prepararion of rhe accompanlinstas:,,HI'x'"i1Til;il: :'#"#:'I ;,:^fm!
requires manasement '9 1P1' ''fl"f::i*;;'i'i",ii"**i *.i'. 

""a 
liabilities at the date of

',#"Xll'."ff:'"Hil*'l"i:lllli';,11''i5"i[Il'1"';;ll;i:';;:;il and erpenses durine the

i.poning p".ioa' Aclual resutls could difler from lhose esllmares'
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O Future Adoption of Accounling Pronou"cefients

The GASB has issued the following standards that have effective dates after June 30' 201 l:

. GASB Statement No. 5'7, Fund OPEB Measurements b! Agent Enployers and Agent Mulnple-

z^iii, ii.^ tcl'SeNo. 5?). The objective ofrhis Slatement is ro address issues-related to

the us; ofthe alternative measurement merhod and the frequency and timing of measurements

ir'"."f**. that oanicipale in agent muhiple'emploler olher poslemplolmenl henefiI

i6piii pir* ,tr,", il. 
"gent 

emplovosr" : The Provisions of statement No' 57 relared to lhe

iri. *i'."p"rti^g of tlie altemative .*,*"rn"n! method are efTective immediately- The

orovisions relatei lo lhe frequency and timing ot measuremenls are effective lor acruarial

i"irrii"'" nt.i r."a ," t"pon tundid starus infoimation in oPEB Plan financial smtements for

periods beginning after June I 5, 20 I I .

. CASB Stalemenr No. tt}, Accounting and Financial Repo ing lor Sen/i'e Concession

),rorrrr"n,, (CASB No. o0). lhe;bjeclive ollhis Slatement is lo improve financial

i.r"ni"" Ui,aOt*.i"e issues relaled lo service concession arrangemenls lsCAs) whicharea

il; ;i"e;il;-t tv;i.ir public'public partnership This statement is eflective for Periods

beginning after December 15,201l.

. GASB Statement No- 6l,The Financial Reporting Entity: Onnibus-an amendment ofGASR

Stalements No-.U andNo J1(GASBNo 6l) The objective of lhis Stalement rs to lmprove

financial rcporling for a governme at financial reporting enlily The requirements ol

siut"rn"nt f,fo. li, fhe financiat Reporting Entitv, and the related financial reporling

;;;;;;;ri. oi itut.*t No. 34, ansii Fiancial statenents a1d .Mmasement's
Dlscussion and Anatysis-for State and Local Governmenls, werc amended to better meet user

"""at_""J 
i" 

"aa.*. 
reporting entity issues thal have arisen since the 

-issuance 
of those

Statemenls. t his Stalement is effective tor periods beginning aRer June l5' 2012'

. GASB Statement No. 62, Codilcotion of Accounting and financial Repor.nng-Guidance

iontain",l in Pr"-Nor"^ber 30, 1989 FASB a lACi"t Pronouncenents The objective of

ifri.'iut ."nt it to in o.porate into the CASB'S authoritative literature certain accounting and

tlnun"iut ,epo.tlng golaunce that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or

before NovimberlO 1989, wich does not conllict with or conradict GASB pronouncements:

ri fi"u*i"i Accou ins Standard Board (FASB) Statements and interpretations' 2)

e."ornting prin ipf". Biurd Opinions,3) Accounting Research Bulletins ofthe American

lnstitute ofterdfi;d Public Accountants' (AICPA) Committee on Accourting Procedure This

Statement is effective for periods beginning after December I 5, 20 I I

. GASB Statement No. 63 Fiancial Reportug oJ Ddefted Ourows o/ Resources' Deferred

Inltotls of Resources, and Nel Position The objeclive ofthis Statement is lo provide financial

reporting guidance for deferred outflows of r€sources and defened inJlows ol resources'

Cir""pii St"t..*t lo. 4, Dlenents oI Financial Statements inlroduced.and defined those

J"-",it. ^ " consumption of net assets by the government thal is applicable ro a future

."p"ni.g p*i"d, anal ;n acquisition of n€1 assets by the govertunent that ;s applicable to a

f,itrr" .ip'*ing poiod, respectively. The provisions of this Statement.are effective for

iinu""lut '.tut"ti"ntt for periods begirming ifter December 15,2011 Earlier apPlication is

encouraged.
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Mt ICTpAUTY oI JUANA DiAZ,
COI,trUO]\'!Vf,ALTH OF PLERTO RICO
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal year Ended June 30. 20t I

. GASB Statement No. &, Derivative fn:?ry:nts: Appli"ation of Hedge Accounting
TermiMtion Prcvisions- an amendnent o/ CASB Staten; No. 53. The o;lective of tti
Statement is to clarify whether an effective hedging relationship cond;ues after the
replacement of-a swap counterparty or a swap counterpirty.s credit suppon provider. This
Statement sets forth criteria that eslablish when the effecli;e hedging relirioruhip continues
and hedge accounting should continue to be applied. The provisio; of this Statement are
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2011. Earlier
application is encouraged.

The impact ofthese statements on the Municipality's basic financial statements has not vet heen
daermined.

2. Deposits

The Municipality maintains its deposits in \6rious comrnercial bank located in puerto Rico and the
Covemment Development Banl for puerto Rico (GDB). proceeds Irom all bonds and the funds
related to certain federal grant awards are required by law to be held with GDB.

On July l, 2004, rhe Municipality adopred rhe provisions ofcASB Strtemenr No. 40 (GASB No. 40),
Deposit and Inyestment Risk Disclosne, M Amendment to GASB Statement No_ J. This statement
requires that state and local goverDments discrose essential risk information about deposits and
investments, The disclosue requiements cover four main areas: (l) cledit risk, (2) interest rate rislg
(3) custodial credit rislq (4) foreign exchange exposure.

. Cr€dit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. In compliance with lhe laws and regulationsofthe Commonwealth the
Municipalrty has adopte4 as its custodial credit risk policy, the Statement of Inyestment
Guidelines for the Goyemment oI the Connonweatth of puefla Nco_ Accordingly, the
Municipality is only allowed ro invesr its obligaliom otthe Commonweattb obligaiions of
the United States ofAmerica, certjficates ofdeposh. commercial paper, bankers,acceptances
or in pools of obligations ofrhe Municipaliries of puerro Rico, whi;h are managed bi CDB.
According to the aforementioned investment guidelines, the Mrmicipality is not allowed to
invest in rnarketable securities or any other q?e of investments for which credit risk exposure
may be significant. Therefore, the Municipality,s management has concluded lhat thtcredit
risk related to any possible loss rclated to defaults by commercial bank on the Municipality,s
depo6its is considered lowat June 30,2011.

. Interest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by: (l) not including debr investmend in irs inv€stments p;(folio at
June 30, 201l, (2) limiting rhe weighted average maturjty of its investmerts ro periods of
three months or less and (3) keeping most of its banks deposits in interest bearing accounrs
generating interest at prevailing market rates. At Jrme 30,2011, the interest mte risk
associated with the Municipality,s cash and cash equivalent is considered low.
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Custodiel cr€dit risk In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Vunicipality's deposits may not be recovered. pursuant to the Statement ol
Investuent Guidelines for the Goyemment of the Comnonwealth of puerto Ric4 the balances
deposited in cornmercial badk by the Mrmicipality are insured by the Federal Deposit
Imurance Corpontion (FDIC), generally up to a maximum of $250,000 per depositoi. ln
additioq public tunds deposired in commercial banks by the Municipaliry are tully
collateralized for the amormts deposited in excess of the federal depository insurance. AII
securities pledged as collateral are held in the Municipality's name by the agents of the
Commonwealth's Secretary of Treasury. Deposits ofGDB, amounting to $11,612,362 at June
30, 201 l, are uniisured and uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defauhs by GDB
on deposit transactions have been inclmed by the Municipality ttnough June 30, 20i1. It is
management's policy to only maintain deposits in bank alliliated to FDIC to minimize th€
custodial credit risk, except for GDB. Therefore, the Municipality,s management has
concluded Otat at June 30, 201l, the custodial credit risk associated with the Municipality,s
cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreisn exchanse risk This is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect
the value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment
guidrlines, adopted by the Municipality, the Municipality is prevented &om investing in
foreign securities or any other types of investments for which foreign exchange risk exposure
may be significant. Accordingly, rnanagement [Ias concluded that the foreign exchange risk
related to the Municipality's deposits is considered low at June 30, 201 l.

Cash and cash equivalents at Jrme 30, 2011, are classified in the accompanying balance sheet
governrnental firnds a followsi

bood

3. Municipal Licens6 Taxes

The Municipality is authorized by Law No. 8l to impose and collect municipal liceme taxes to any
natural or legal person having trade or business aclivities within the territory ;fJuana Diaz. This is a
self-assessed lax genemlly based on the business volume of taxpayers, measured by gross revenues.
The Municipality establishes the applicable tax rates. At June 30, 20 I I , the municipal license tax
rates imposed by the Municipality were 1.50 percent for linancial iistitutions and 0_50 p€rcent for
other O?es of taxpayers. Any taxpayers that have been granted with a panial tax exemption under
any ofthe tax incentive acts ofthe Commonwealth ultimately pay municipal license taxes at reduced
lax mtes, generally between 60 percent and 90 percent under standard ltltes.

C.mrrl CDrc

573 r,6e,7ae r ,c22e

l_76.1.165 $ B.9rl32
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EacI taxpayer must assess the corresponding municipal license tax by declaring lhe volume of
busin€ss tlrough a tax return to be filed and due five (5) working days ;fler April 15 of each year,
based on the actual volume of business (revenues) generated in ihe preceling calendar year.
Taxpayers with a sales volume of$3 miirion or more must include audited financiai statements witr
their tax return filings. The tax can be paid by the taxpayer in two equal installments due on July 15
and January 15, subsequent to the filing ofthe declaration before the due date ended five (5) working
days afler April 15 of each year. The first installment of the tax covers the six_month period endea
December 31, subsequent to the filing date ofthe declaratior! while the second installmmt ofthe tax
covers the six-month period ended June l0 of the subsequent calendar year. Ifa taxpayer elects to
pay rhe tax in tull on the filing date ofrhe dectaralion (five {5) working days after April l5), a 5
percent discount is granted autornatically on the total tax amount due.

Any municipal license taxes collected in advance (that is, pertaining to a future fiscal year) are
recorded as uneamed revenues in the GWFS and the gmeral fund. Uneamed municipal liceme tax
revenues recorded in the accompanying GWIS and the general fund amounted to $1,415,204 at June
30,2011. Those uneamed municipal license revenues collected in advance pertain to the general
fund\ operatin€ budget of the fiscal yeat 2Oll-2O12, therefore, generally cinnot be used io pay
obligations ofthe fiscal year 2010-20t L

The unearned municipal license, recorded in the general fund at Jrme 30, 2Ol I, include municipal
Iicense tax revenues of the fiscal year 2Ol l-20 t2 amounting to $ 1,425,204 whj;h were collected in
advance from taxpayers between January and June,2oll (known in Spanish as,,patente en
Suspenso"),

4. Sales and Use Taxes

Thevunicipality is authorized by Law No. I 17 ofJuly 4, 2006, as amended by Law No. 80 ofJuly
29, 2007, to impose and collect sales and uses taxes of one pojnt five ( l.5) percent to substantially ail
products and services sold or provided within the territoial limits of the Municipality. The
mentioned Laws establish the applicable tax rate.

At June 30, 20 I I , the municipal sales and uses ta\ mte imposed by the Municipality \)vas I .50, from
which the Municipality collect one (l) percent, and .the puerto Rico Secretary of the Treasury collect
the remaining point five (.5) percent without including food and food ingedients as defined in
Section 2301(a) oflhe Act No. 107, on behalf ofthe Municipaliry.

The point ive (.5) percent collected by the puerto Rico Treasuy Department and belonging to the
Municip_ality it is distributed ttuough tlree separate funds: municipal development fund (up to .27o,
al the. discretion of the Municipality), municipal redemprion tund (from .2% to .4o/oo/o, at the
discretion of the Municipality) and municipal improvemenrs fund (.1%o). The Municipality has
elected to reslrict a portion of the sales tax amounting .4% for the payment of long_term debt and is
recorded in the debt service fund. The rernaining po(ion is recorded in the general fund since is
available for general opoating purposes.

The lax collected by merchants during a given month is due and must be paid accompanied by a sales
and use tax rctum to the Municipality and to the puerto Rico Treasury Department on or before the
lfth day ofthe following monrh.
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The resources colle€ted by the Municipality due to this tax assessment will be used in local activities
like improvements in health services, improvements in the control and rnanagement of solid waste
disposal and recycling progmms, public improvements, improvements of public safoy, and
mainlenance of all public facilities ofthe Municipality.

The sales and use tax receivable is recognized as revenue when it becomes measurable and available
base on actual collection during the 30 days following the fiscal year-end related to sales and use tax
returm due before year end.

Sales and use ta\ receivable in the general and debt service funds at June 30, 201 l, of$13?,021 and
$42,888, respectively, repr€sent actual collection during the 30 days following the fiscal year-md
related to sales and use tax returns due before year end.

Property Tax€s

The Municipality is authorized by Law No. 8l to impose and colle.t property taxes from any natuml
or legal person that, at January I ofeach calendar year: (l) is engaged in trade or business and is the
owner ofpersoral or real property used in trade or business or (2) owns residential real property with
a value in excess of$15,000 (at 1957 estimated rnarket prices).

On July 10, 2009, the Legislatule ofthe Commonwealth ofpueno Rico approved Law No. 37 for the
purpose, among others, to: (l) increase the real property assessed value by ten time$ (2) decrease the
real properly tax rate by ten times; and (3) increase the exempt portion ofreal property tax form the
first $15,000 of the assessed value to $150,000. These provisiom are effective only for fiscal years
2010.2011 and 2012.

The Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM, by its Spanish acronym) is a governmenlal entity
not related to the Municipality which is responsible for the billings and collections of real and
peronal property taxes on behalf of the Municipality and all other municipalities in the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, CRIM infornrs to the
Municipality the estimated amount of property taxes expected to be collected for the emuing fiscal
year. Throughout the fiscal year, CRIM advances funds (estimated collections) to the Muniaipality
based on the initial estirnated (forecasted) collection amounts for the fiscal year. CRIM is required by
law to prepaie a settlement stalement on a fiscal year basis, whereby a comparison is made between
the amounls advanced to the Municipalily and the property tax amounts actually collected f.om
taxlayers on behalfofthe Municipality during the fiscal year. This settlement has lo be completed on
a final basis not later than December 31 following the fiscal year end. If in any given fi;cd year,
CRIM remits to the Municipality property ta\ advances that are less than the prope(y taxes actually
collected by CRIM on behalf ofthe Municipality, then CRIM will increase the amount ofthe montt y
property tax advances during for the next fiscal year. However. if advances cxceed the amount
actually collected by CRIM, then CRIM will reduce the amount ofthe monthly property tax adtances
during the next fiscal year.
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Personal properfy taxes are self-assessed by taxpayers every year using the book value of personal
property assets owned by the taxpayer at January I (assessment date) and reporting such taxable value
through a personal proper!/ tax retum filed on May 15 subsequent to the aisess;ent date. t.he total
personal properry tax rate in force at June 30, 2Ol I was 7.Oj percent (of which taxpayers pay 6.g3
percent and the remaining 0.20 percent is paid by the Department of Treasury, as a subsidy).

Real property taxes are assessed by CRIM. The assessment on real properry is rnade every January I
and is based on estirnated curent values of the property, deflated to 1957 marker prices. The total
real property tax rate in force at June 30, 2011 rms 9.03 percent (of which 8.83 percent is paid by
taxpayers and the remaining 0.20 percent is also paid by the Department of Treasury, as a subsidy).

R€sidenlial real prcperty occupied by its owner (not engaged in trade or business) is exempt Aom
properfy ta"\es only on the flrst $15,000 of lhe assessed value (at 1957 market prices). For exempt
amounts, the Department of Treasury assunes the payment ofthe basic lax (4.00 percent and 6.00
percent for personal and real property, respectively), except for properq, assessed for less than $3,500
(al 1957 market prices), for which no payment is made by the Department ofTreasury.

According to Law No. 81, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 7.03
percent and_9.03 percent, respectively, there is a le\ry of an annual special tax of l.O3 percent of the
assessed value of all real and personal properry not exonemted ftom taxation. This special tax is
levied by theCommonwealth ofPuerto Rico but is collected by CRIM. Collections ofthjs special tax
are directly remitted by CRIM to the debt service fund ofthe Commonwealth of puerto Rico, for rhe
payment ofthe general long-term debt ofthe state govemmenl.

In addiiion, included within the total personal and real property tax rates of 7.03 percent and 9.03
percent, rcspect;vely, there is a portion ofthe tax mte in the amount of 2.00 percent that is tesiicted
for the Municipality's debt service requiements of bonds. Such amounts are recorded in the
Municipality's debt service fund.

The portion of the property taxes recorded in the general fund is used to finance the operating
activities ofthe Municipaiity, including the payment of (l) the insurance premiums acquiredihrough
the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury, (2) the morthly contributions !o CRIM. which are statutorilv
required as the Municipality's share of CRIM'S operating expenses, (4) statutory contributions to th;
Puerto Rico Health Services Administration (PRHSA), as the Municipality,s share ofthe cost oflhe
public health insurance coverage provided to qualio/ing low-income citizens an4 (5) certain notes
payable to CRIM and the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury, which are recorded within
intergovernrnental payables in the accompanying GWIS and GFFS. The0.20 percent of unrestricted
personal and real property taxes paid by the Puerto Rico Depa(ment of Treasury as a subsidy is
re€orded in the Municipality's general fund.

The Additional Lottery System ofthe Cornmonwealth ofpueno Rico (the Addjtional Lottery) is an
operational unit reported as an enterprise fund in the Commonwealth of puerro Rico.s basic Unancial
statements, which currently operates several be$ing ahematives to the citizens of puerto Rico. The
Additional Lottery is required every fiscal year to distribute a portion of its excess of revenues over
expenses as follows:
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. Thirty five percent oiits net eamings (defined as the excess of revenues over expenses less an
amount €armarked for the Fund for Rmt and Home Improvement Subsidy Program for the Low-
lncome Qualifying Elderly) is earmarked to the municipalities ofthe Commonwealth of puerto
Ricq of which a rnaximum of $26 milliorL on an annual bas js, is dist buted to the Mun jcipal
Equalization Fund held by CRIM to cover operating expenses and perrnanent improvements of
the municipalities.

. An additional amount not exceeding $16 milliorl on an amual basis, is distributed to the
Municipal Equalization Fund, provided it is within lhe thirty-five percent corr€sponding to the
municipalities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. When the accumulated municipal
appropriations Iiom the municipalities' Puerto Rico Health Reform are covered up to June 30,
1997, these resources will be assigned to PRHSA.

At June 30, 201l, property tayes receivable recorded in the debl service fund amounted to $22,141.

6. Intergovernmentrl Receivables and Payables

Intergovernmenlal receivables and payables re€orded in the accompanying GWFS and GFFS are as
follows:

M.jd Oth.r Tot t St icm.t
goveErnt l Soverrmnet gov.mE .l oftr.r

ln eryo|.mn tuI rec.Mbl.s:
GEnts and coni.iburions:

US Depanneni olHousing ad Urban Detelopm.nr
US Deponne ofE.6Ey
Pndo Rico Highwy Audrqiq -

Planningud Fe6ib iiy Srudy
Pueno Rio Depanmcd olPublic Wdks
Pudo tuo Depanne.r of Heald
ftEno tuco Trmil safery cohni$ro.
Pueno tu@ Tresury Depanmenr geneml tund

Pueno tu6 Emeqency MlMgcmenl Agmcy
Pue.to Ri@ Admhrslt"rion for I.re3El ctue and

D€vclopmen.ofchld.en
Pleno Rie Speiil cdmnDilies orlice

Tor.l inre€ovmmral receiEbles

Inktzdm tol pdtobles:

Payroll Nilhholdinss (seml turd)r
U S Depanndr of TMsury - rnt@l Reve.ue S.rice
Puerlo RicoMunicipol R*.nueCollecronCeder(CRIM)
Pueno Rico Trwry Deponmhr
Puerto Rrco Child SupD.n Age.cy
Employees AsNiaiim of rhe Govmne.t oathe

Conmq*ahn ofPueno tuco
Emplqees Rdnemenr Sytu of th. Covctnmmr ofrhe

commdw€lrh of Puedo Rico
Pudo Rico Depdne of Labor

Puedo tuco aqueducr d sewr Adhonry
Pleno Rt@ Elec.ric Porer Aurbdiry

Mr$ellaneous (sm@l rund):

C.neBl S.ryices AddnisDrion
Tohl i erBovermmbl palables

furds lutrds furd! A!r.b

91,%;

--------------_t 4ll,l22

t 112,66r

1,294

13,292

-1-- 661Ja-

1,29;

32,951

13,x92
53,303

132561

1294

13292
53.103

$ 54.235

rr5rJr9

3,051

-S 'J?3"8i6

I 54,235

t25\,9\9

r,573,356 $ 1,5?3,&56

10.323
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MT]NICIPALTTY Of JUA"\,! DIAZ'
CO$IIIONNVEALTH OF IIERTO RICO
Notes 1o Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,201l

lntergovernmental receilables and pqables represent the pending settlements of the aforementioned

intergovemmental transactions.

At June 30, 201l, the eamed and una\ailable intergoverrunental gBnt and contributions (deferred

revenues) reportd in the accompanying general fun4 amounted to $9 1 ,966

Inter-fund Transactions

The composition of inter-fund balances at June 30, 2011 and for the fiscal year then ended is as

followsi

v.jor gorconcnrd futrd5

!-

---04J4,

capiial inpo.mnr bond 6ni

NoFmjd sererlmdal ru'ds:

320

t 3t3995

Clrit li,ryo*ft bo'n fini

The pdncipal purposes of inter-fund receivables and payables are:

. Recognize in the general fund the outstanding balance of the loans ganted to CDBG fund

($96,873), head tta.t nrnO 1$+;,0t1, capital improvement bond fund ($17,000), and non-

major funds ($543,359) to temporarily cover the pa)Toll and other operating costs of several

fedemlly and state flnded ProgIarm-

. Recognize in the non-major funds the amounts due from general fund ($320), due flom and

due 6 non-major funds ($153,826) mostly for errors in the disbursements and depo6ils

process.

The principal purposes of inter-fund transfers are to:

. Make a routinary tmnsfer of cash {iom the general fund, amounting to $18,298' to a non-

major governmental fund, to cover costs of public improvement proje$t in excess of availabl€

Inter-fundreceivablesandpayab]esrepresentthependingsettlementsoftheaforementionedtransfers
at June 30,201l.

lund

t 13.293
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MUNICIPAUTY OF JUANA DiAZ,

COMMON\trEAITIT OT PUf,RTO RI@
Notes to Basic Fiiancial Slatemenls

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 I

Capilal Assets

Capital assets activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20 I I :

ol Governn ental Aclivilie$

Capiul as*t, nol beinA dcprciaGdr

Con$ruclion in progEss

Tobl clpiul !ss, nol beina depredaren

capiEl asela beng deFeciared:

Blildings, scturer tnd imProveenls

Machi.ery and equipmenl, a.d tumrtur

Ome equipned under apn l l6es

Torrl epiLl a$ds, b€ing depreciared

Tot l €sl ba$s ol@Piltl rsts

A@ulated depreciaiion:

Buildings,sEuctures"ad im9rorcments

Machinery ud equipmelq ud
fimitw @d tutues

Offic equipmor Nder @Pnal bes

Total a(unulared deprecialion

a 2,453,015

10,553,796 302.6U

ll.0ll.3ll 102.63.

(10,5t3,796)

61,l]2,206

--- so:ir6rr-f--tlrF

lisctl lrar

$ 12,488,34E

2,40E,223

4,345,534

202,721

5,375,EoE

-1t i'.06-i
-:f-5Ffiiv

6,437,331

(20?,063)

A..rmulrt€d
Deprcitlion

R.dudio., rl end of
R(ld3ilic.ihns fEc.lytr

24,820,64

1,944,875

210.325

496,297

4,341

2r4,003
'r.r2r$41

(207,068)

s 14,433.223

2.678,548

4,E4t,E3r

5,5E9,811

(207,068) 27,543,413

Nei €pi.t sets. soreImeni.t activities _!-q4l?, ,-t-9.9!1996 ,llj53l"6r -i--!L!!!J!9-

The Municipality did not have complete and accilrate accounting records of capital assels at June

30, 201L

TheinfrastructureassetsrecordedintheaccomPanyingstatementofnetassetsfot54'434'426
tne of accumulated deoreciation of $2,678,548) do not include a substantial portion of the

itir";.ipuiiry't g**"r i,ifrastructure assels that were constructed or acquired by the Municipality

from 1980 thrcugh June 10, 201l.
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MUNICTPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ,
COMMONWEALTH OF I\]ERTO RICO
Notes to Basic Financial Statemmts

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201 I

Several real property assets, including buildings, structures, land and land improvements have not
been recorded in the accompanying statement of net assets at June J0, 201 L

Depreciation and amortization expense of governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011 was charged to functions/progams in the accompanying slalemfit of activities as
followsi

General government
Public safety
Economic and urban development
Health and sanitation
Culture, recreatioL and education

Total depreciation and amortization expense

b) Rusircss-tvpe Adiviries

$ 136,454
I I3,504
786,254

14,360
1,879,269

$ 2,929,841

fBcrl y.,r lmmsc

capilol ads. mr b€ina deprecided - Idd
Toral 6pi1al asels, nol being deDrecialed

CapiEl osts, bemS depleiicd:
Buildoss, tu.ruft I and imp@vem s

Machrnsy and .quipm. , and fmiiuE
307,335-----iia;d

$ rj6'!t

3,113

Toial apihl a$ets, b€inA depreciarcd

To&l cot bass of cipiEl .ss (919)

Accumulated d.pr.cE.io.ddanoniatio.:
Buildrgs, tuduex and inp.overents

Ma.hrsy and equipmed, a.d
futuirure rnd 6tures

Tohl aaumulared depreciation

Ne! 6piEl ssers businestyD€
&nvnies

Depreciation and amortization expense
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was
accompanying stafernent of activities.

5 2,332.321

262.125
- 4%,45' ll4,82l (9r9)

__!__..1:!lJ:L _____111-LigL __l_____.LU:i!L

of business-type activities, amounting to $114,823 for the
charged to the public housing and welfare function in the
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MUMCIPALITY oT JUANA DiAz,
COT{I{ONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
Notes to Basic Financial Statemenis

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201I

9. Deferred Revenues

At June 30, 2011, defened revenues recorded in the G\,FS and the governmental fund financial
statements are as follo\)vs:

Tolrl sbr.ftd
G.mml CDBG NoDmrjd 3ov.ntrnol oftrd
lud fund funds fund! ss.rs

Me tabh and uMilabte

Inlergovcmnenul BBnt
andconributions$91,966--91,966$

Toul meosurablc a.d
um vlilable rclenue 91,966 , 91,966

Municipal li.enss 1!252U , 1,425,20,1 1,425.2U
I ergovernmmbl9trts

and conniburions - 64.333 133,,169 202,302 202,302
Tobl uneoed.evenues 1,425,204 64,113 113,,169 1,623,006 1,623,006

Toral defeftd rcvflnes I l,5l?,170 64,113 ll3j69 1,719912 $ 1,623,m6

This Space IIas Been Lefr Blank Inlentionall!
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MUMCIPAUTY oF JUANA DiAz,
COMMO]\\ EAITIT OF TTTERTO RJCO
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

FiscalYear Ended lune 30. 201I

10. Long-Term Obligations

The gmeral long-lerm debt activity for the fiscal year ended Jrme 30, 201I is as follows:

trs.l y..r

I.532,000

211,3t6

1,502,103

1,033,430

GovernMtal adiiti.s:

Oene6l obligaltm $nal bonds

Publrc improrenor sedrl bdds

Sation I03 los guam@e ,ores

Municipal Reve.ueColledion Cenler:

Las No. I46 of Odobd I l, 2001

La.d l.fotuiion Maugemenr Sysen
setilemenr sbr.ns. 2003-2009

serlement shlenedl 2009-201 0

Sml enenr Sraremenr 20 I 0 20ll
Pum tuco Depandenr of Tqsury

FiEncing agrcemenl lo psy leeal
judened: rac 96i34r (603)

Fi@cingagrcem. ro,a, legal
judgnenl; JAc-20024242,
PE,20024223, 634334660411t6

Oblig.tioB urd.r crphi ks6

Tobls aor govemmenhl adivnies

Busin6s-1rk a.7iit6:

Selion 5l5lM no.001
S&iim 5l 5 lM no. 002

'toEls for busires-type acdvnies

1,502,303

23,5 23,5I

23,331

2313.554

t r,r5lt25
123,001

t l,t6Jr3

i42,045

5,152,,131

23,337

4,21\

464.322 239t,211

,s'661

$ 1,136.913 I 10,43t

2342

Historically, the genoal fund has been used to liquidate the notes paFble to CRIM, the Puerto Rico
Health Servic€s Administration and the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury, comp€nsated absences,
and any other long-term liabilities otlrcr than bonds.

$ 1.257,764 $ 32.363

approve the contracting of debts of the
ofthe Commonweahh of Pue(o Rico also

a) Debt Linitstiort

The Municipal Legislatue is legally aulhorized to
Municipality. Nevertheless, the laws and rcgulatioDs
provide that:

63



MUNICTPAIIry Of JUANA DIAZI
COMMoNVEALTII oT PIIERTo RIco
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Y€r Ended June 30. 201 I

. Direct obligations ofthe Municipality (evidenced principally by bonds) are backed bythe tull
faith credit and taxing power ofthe Municipality; and

. Dire€t obli9tions are not to be issued by the Municipality ifthe amount ofthe principal of,
and the interest orl such bonds and bond anticipation notes (and on all bonds and notes issued
thereafter) which are payable in any fiscal year, together with any amount paid by the
Municipality in the preceding fiscal year on account of bonds or bond anticipation notes
guaranteed by the Municipality, exceed 10 percent ofthe total assessed value ofthe property
localed within the Municipality plus the balance ofthe ad valorem taxes in the debt service
fund, for bonds payable and bond anticipation notes to be repaid with the proceeds of
property ta\es rest cted for debt service-

b) Ronds Patable

The Municipality issues general obligation and public improvement serial bonds io finance the
acquisition, construction and improvement of capital assets, as well as, to frnance certain
operating needs, including the payment to suppliers in certain cicurnstances.

The laws and regulations ofthe Commonwealth provide that the Municipality's public debt will
constitute a first claim on the available revenue ofthe Municipality. Public debt is composed of
bonds payable. The good faith credit and taxing power of the Municipality are inevocably
pledged for the prompl payment ofthe pdncipal and inlerest of bonds.

As more fully described in Note 5, the Municipality levies an annual additional special property
tax of 1.75 percent of the assessed value of personal and real property. The proceeds of this
additional special tax are deposited in a sinldng fund established at the Government Development
Bank for Puerto Rico, fiscal agent, whereby sufficient funds are set aside to redeem the bonds
payable ofthe Mmicipality in minimum annual and semiannual principal and inlerest payments.
The collectiom of this special tax are recorded in the Municipality's debt service fund

As morc fully described in Note 4, the Municipality impose and collect saies and uses taxes of
one poim five ( l.5) percent, of which the Municipaliry has elected to restrict a portion amounting
.4% for the payment of long{erm bonds. The colleoions of this sales and use tax are recorded in
the Municipaliq,'s debt service tund.

This Space Has Beeh Left Blank Inlenlionall!
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MlnrclpAr,try oF JUANA DiAz,
CoNfttoN{EALTH oF puERTo RICo
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30.2011

For financial reporting purposes, the outstanding balances of bonds represent the total principal to
be repaid. Bonds payable is composed as follows at June 30, 201I:

Outstanding
balance

General Obliqatior Bonds:

1996 serial bonG (face amount of$1,180,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging fiom $25,000 to $110,000; plus inrerests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.20/0 at ltfie 30, 2011)
through July, 1, 2016.

1999 serial bonds (face amount of$2,270,000) due in annual principat
inslallments ranging from $45,000 to $215,000; plus interests due in
semiannual inslallments at variable rates (5.86% at June 30, 201l)
tlrough July, 1, 2019.

1999 serial bonds (face amount $1,025,000) due in annual principal
installmenls ranging from $40,000 to gl15,000; plus interests due in
semiannual imtallmerts at variable rates (4.3% at June 30, 20ll)
thrcugh July, l, 2014.

2003 serial bonds (face amount 5900,000) due in armual principal
installments ranging from $15,000 to $75,000; plus interesrs due in
semiannual imtallments at riable rates (4.370 at June 30, 2011)
tkough July l, 2026.

2003 serial bonds (face amount of $215,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging ftom $5,000 to $15,000; plus interests due in
semiannual imtallments at variable mtes (4.3% at June 30, 20ll)
ttrough July 1,2026.

2003 serial bonds (face amount of $ I ,5 I 0,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging liom $25,000 to $120,000; plus inrerests due in
semiannual imtallments at variable rates (4.5% at June 30, 20ll)
ttrough July 1,2027.

2004 serial bonds (face amount of $785,000) due in annual principal
imtallments ranging from $15,000 to $65,000; plus interests due in
semiannual imtallments at variable rates (4.5% at June 30, 201t)
ttrough July 1,2027.

2005 serial bonds (face amount of $875,000) due in annual principal
imtallments ranging from $10,000 to $65,000; plus irtoests due in
semiannual installments al variable rates (4.5% at June 30, 2011)
through July l, 2028.

t,420,000

730,000

170,000

r,255,000

650,000

$ ss5,000

195,000

65

745,000



Mt rcIPALtrY oF Ju,r\A DiM,
CoMuoi$vEAI,TTI oF PT]ERTo fuCo

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

Outstanding
balance

2007 serial bonds (face amount of$2,180,000) due in annual principal
installments mnging from $30,000 to $185,000; plus intercsts due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (1.54% at June 30, 201l)
tlrough July 1,2031.

2007 serial bonds (face amount of$1,910,000) due in annual principal
imtallments ranging Aom $25,000 to $160,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable mtes (1.54% at June 30, 201l)
through July 1,2031.

2008 ssial bonds (face amount of $255,000) due in annual pdncipal
imtallments ranging Fom $5,000 to S20,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installmmts at variable rales (1.54% at June 30, 201l)
though July 1, 2032.

2008 serial bonds (face amount of$4,642,000) due in amual principal
installments ranging from $83,000 to $390,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (1.54% at June 30, 20tl)
through July l, 2032.

2010 serial bonds (face amount of$2,970,000) due in annual principal
installments mnging from $50,000 to $230,000; plus interesrs due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 2011)
tlrough July 1,2034.

201I serial bonds (face amount of $835,000) due in annual principal
imtallments ranging from $10,000 to S75,000; plus inlerests due in
semiannual installments at wriable rates (6.00% at June 30, 20ll)
through July l,2035.

201 I serial bonds (face amount of $ 1,060,000) due in amual principal
installments ranging Iiom $120,000 to $185,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installmmts at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 201l)
though July 1, 2017.

20 I 1 serial bonds (face amount of $640,000) due in annual principal
imtallments ranging from $75,000 to $110,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (6.00% at June 30, 201l)
through July l, 2035.

2011 serial bonds (face amount of $755,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging f.om $5,000 to $65,000; plus inter€sts due in
semiarmual inslallments at variable mtes (6.00% at June 30, 2011)
through July l,2017.

2,040,000

1,790,000

240,000

4,470,000

2,920,000

835,000

1,060,000

640,000

66

755,000



MUMC,IPALITY oF JUA\A DIAZ,
Cotftlo\\vE{LTH oF PUERTo RICo
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201I

201I serial bonds (face amount of $875,000) due in annual principal
imtallments ranging from $10,000 to $75,000; plus interesrs due in
semiannual installments at wriable rates (6.00% at June 30, 201I)
tlrcugh July 1, 2035.

Total general obligation bonds

Public Improvement Bopds:

1995 serial bonds (face amount 0f91,758,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging iom $44,000 to $142,000; plus interests due in
annual imtallments at variable rates (5.62% at June 30, 2011) drough
January 1,2016.

1995 saial bonds (face amount of $615,000) due in annual principal
installments ranging fiom $10,000 to $55,000; plus interests due in
semiannual installments at variable rates (7.71o/o 

^t 
l$e 30,2011)

ttrough July 1,2018.

1996 serial bonds (face amount of $835,000) due in annMl principal
imtallments ranging from $18,000 to 558,000; plus interests due in
armual installments at fxed rate of4.507othrough January 1,2019.

Total public improvement bonds

Outstanding
bdarlce

875,000
21.545,000

632,000

335,000

391,000

1,358,000

Total bonds payable $ 22,903,00L

Variable interest rates on serial bonds are reviewed periodically by GDB and are based on the
fluctuation of GDB'S weiBhted average rate for its commercial paper progam. Under this
program, GDB issues commercial paper: (l) in the taxable and tax-exempt markets ofthe United
States ofAmerica, (2) in the Eurodollar marke! and (3) 10 corporations having ta\ exemptions
under the Commonwealth's Industrial Incentives Acts and, which qualiry for benefits provided by
the former Section 936 of the U.S. Intemal Revenue Code.

This Space Has Been Left Blank Inte tiohalll
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CoMMoN\trEAr,r'H oF PUERTo RJCo
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Fiscal Year Ended Jun€ 30- 201 I

Interest expense on bonds payable amounted to $749,693 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
Annual debt service requirements of maturity for bonds payable are as follows:

Fiscal year
€nding

June 30, Principal Interesl

20t2
20t3
2014
20t5
2016

20t7 -2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036

Totals

1,033,000
1,113,000
1,200,000
1,293,000
1,254,000
4,830,000
4,340,000
4,965,000
2,875,000

t,220,325
t,304,620
1,289,714
t,262,802
1,180,390
4,',765,234

3,431,348
1,740,587

247,531

s 22,903,000 16,448,551

c) Seclioh 108 Loafi Cuarafitee NoEs Payable - Series 20(M-A

On June 30, 2004, the Municipality entered into a loan guarantee commitment of$5,500,000 with
the U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development (H[ID) pursuant to an application under
Section 108 ofthe Housing and Community Development Act of l9?4 (Section 108). Section 108
commitments are required to be supported by a credit subsidy appropriation pursuant to the
Federal Credit Reform Act of 1990 (Credit Refom Act) and implementing guidance issued by
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB). Thereforq in connection with its guarantee

of these notes, HUD obligated apFopriated firnals to cover the credit subsidy cost of the loan
guaranteer as required undef the credit Reform Aci. under the credil Reform Act procedures,
such funds are disbursed into a financing account as loan proceeds are disbursed by the lender (a
commercial bant). The financing account is in some respects equi\alent to an internal loss
rcserve for the federal government. Each disbursement into the financing account is equal to the
l@n advance limes the credit subsidy ratq which is part of HUD'S budget approved by OMB and
the Cong€ss.

The proceeds of$5,500,000 of the loan guamntee commitment are used by the Municipality to
finance the construction ofthe Fine Arts Center and to provide low-income communities with
another source of financing for the economic development, housing rehabilitation, public
facilities and large-scale physical development projects. The notes on the loan guamntee
commitment bear interest at various rates ranging liom 3.50 percent to 6.70 percent. The
proceeds and uses of the loan guarantee comnitment are accounted for in the Section 108 loan
guarantee, a non-major capital projects fund. The loan guarantee commitment is repaid with grant
awards received liom the Comlnunily Developmenl Block Crants Entitlement Crants Program
(CDBC), administered by HLID. Principal and interest on these notes arc accounted for in the
Section 108 loan guarantee fund, a non-rmjor capilal projecls fund. At June 30,2011, the
outstanding principal balance ofthe loan guarantee commitrnent amounted to $5,300,000.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 201I

lnterest expense on the Section I08 loan guamntee notes payable amounled to $304,778 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 201l. The principal and interest inaturities on the Section 108 loan
guarantee commitment are as follolrs:

Fiscal year
Ending
June 30, Principal Interest

20t2
20t3
20t4
20t5
2016

2017-202t
2022-2026

Totals

$ 100,000
100,000
150,000
r50,000
200,000

2,200,000
2,400,000

$ 301,240
296,365
290,0'75
282,372
213,120
966,350
286,6s0

$ 5,300,000 _9],6eSlJ2

d) Notes Pq)able lo Manicipal Revente Colledio Cenlet

The Municipality had the following notes payables to Municipal Revenue Collection Center
(CRIM, by its Spanish acronym) at June 30,201l:

. Lrnd Information Manasement Svst€m (LIMS) - On July 10, 2001, the Municipality
entered into a financing agreement with CRIM for the payment ofthe Municipality's share
of the cost of an infomation management system, acquied by CRIM on behall of all
municipalities, for the rnanagement of a digital database of taxpayers properties located in
Puerto Rico. The face amoun( ofthe loan was 5383.542 and bears no interest. The note is
payable in monthly installments of $2,972 ttrough November 28, 20 I I . This note has an

imputed interest rate of 5.95%. At June 30,2011, the balance of this note, net of the
unamortized discount of$2,208, amounted to S23,51L

. Law No. 146 on September 24, 2002, CRIM, on behalf ofthe municipalities of Puerto
Rico, entered into a financing agreement with GDB pursuanl to lhe provisions of Law No.
146 ol October ll, 2001, as amended (Law No. 146). The purpose of this financing
agreement was to extinguish in adwnce certain bonds payable issued by Public Finance
Corporation (PFC), a subsidiary of the Govemment Development Bank for Puerto Ricq
which were originally issued to pay certain property tax receivables o$,ned by lhe
municipalities ofPueflo Rico tkough 1996, which were acquired by PFC with recourse.

The original face amount ofthe note allocated by CRIM to the Municipality was 5136,121,
for a term not exceeding 30 years. The note bears interest at 6.50 percent during its first five
years. Subsequenlly, from years 6 through 30, the loan sflall bear variable interest at a lirte
of 125 points over the 5-year LIBOR rate, which will be adjusted every five years. During
the first five years oflhe note, commenced on July l, 2003, the Municipality shall pay only
inlerest, except for properry tax receivables collections related to the transaciion explained
in the above paragaph, which will be applied as principal payment to reduce the debt
balance.

69



c)

MuNrcrPALrrY or JUANA DiAz,
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30. 201l

At the end ofthe first five years ofthe nolg the repayment terms and conditiom ofthe note
shall be renegotiated lo allow the Municipality to pay the outstanding balance of the note in
equal installments of principal plus interest, tkough maturity. Interest payments on this
financing agreement are accounted for in the geneml fund. The ousranding principal ofthe
note payable to CzuM amoumed to $207,476, at June 30, 2011. lnteresl expeme on these
notes amounted io $13,522 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201l.

. Fiscal Year 2009-2010 Seftlement Statement - On December 31, 2010, CRIM, as

required by law, prepared the final settlement for the fiscal year 2009-2010, whereby a
comparison was made between the amounts adlanced to the Mu cipality and amounts
actMlly collected from taxpayers. According to the flnal settlement, advances to the
Municipality exceeded the amount actually collected by the CRIM, and therefore, according
to law, a payable to the CRIM amounted 10 $1,083,000 should be recorded in the GWFS al
June 30, 2011. But, although such debt was recorded in the GWIS as reconmended by
external auditors, the Municipality started a formal claim requesting a revision of final
settlement prepared by the CRIM for the fiscal year 2009-2010.

. Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Settlement Statement On December 30, 2011, CRIM, as

required by law, prepared the final settlement for the fiscal year 2010-2011, whereby a

comparison was made between the amounts advanced to lhe Municipality and amounts
actually collected from ta-xpayers. According to the final settlement, ad\.znces to the
Municipality exceeded the amount actually collected bythe CRIM, and therefore, according
to law, a payable to the CRIM amounted to $445,386 should be recorded in the G\VIS at
June 30, 2011. But, although such debt was recorded in the GWFS as re€ommmded by
external auditors, the Municipalily will slarted a formal claim iequesting a revision ofthe
final settlement prepared by the CRIM for the fiscal year 2010-2011.

Notes PaJable to Pueflo Rico Depalnenl of Trcssury

. Financins Asreemelt to Settle Leeal Judemetrts (JAC-96-0341 (603) On February
20,20021he Municipality obtained a loan from the Puerto Rico Department of Treasury to
pay a legal judgment. The face amount ofthe loan uas $361,005, and bears no interest. The
note is payable in monthly imtallments ranging from $1,000 to $10,055 tlrough February 1,

2012. This note has an imputed interest rate of6.50%. AtJune30,201l, the balance oflhis
note. net ofthe unamortized discount ofSl,32l, amounled to $50,735. Discount amortization
recorded as interest expeme oo these notes payable amounted 1o $5,467 for lhe fiscal year

ended June 30, 201 l, which are recorded in &e general fund.

Conpensaled Absehces

At June 30, 20 I I , the govemment-wide statement of net assets governmental activities includes
a liability amounting $2,391,277, ofwhich $1,518,889 represents asrrued sick leave benefits, and
$872,388 represents accrued vacation benefits, representing the Municipality's commitment to
fund such costs from future operations. The Municipality did not have accurate and updated
records ofcompensated absences (accrued vacations and sick leave). In additiorl the liability for
compensaied absences, recorded in the accompanying statemenl of net assets for $2,391,277, does

not include the ac€umulated compensatory time of all employees of the Municipality, which are
required by GASB No. 16.

J)
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9 Mortgage Notes Payable - Seclion 515 O siness-tfpe rctivitieo

The long{erm debt of Villas del Parque (FmHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049) consist oftwo
mortgages notes, collateralized with land and buildings, payable to the U.S. Department of
Agriculture Rural Development in monthly installments of $8,880 and $1,094, respectively,
including interest at an annual rate of 8.0070 and 10.00%, respectively, (reduced to 7.00% and
9.00%, respestively) through December 2031.

At June 30, 2011, the oulstanding principal balance of the two mortgage notes amounted to
$1,136,918 and $120,846, respectively. The mortgages notes are subject 1o various positive,
negative and restrictive covenants that the Municipality has complied with at June 30, 20 I I .

Accrued interest payable on these notes amounted to $7,649 at Jme 30, 2011 which is recorded
as part ofbusiness-type activities in ihe accompanying statement of net assets and the statement
of net assets - proprietary f,md. Interest expense on these not€s amounted to $91,035 for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, which is recorded in the accompanying statement of activities
and the statement ofrevenues! expenses and changes in fund net assets proprietary fund.

ll. Employe€.s' Retir€ment Systems

i) Plan Description

The Municipality's employees participate in the Employees' Retirement System of the
Govemment of Pue o Rico and its lnstrumentalities (ERS), a cost-sharing multi-employer (as

related to the Municipality's reporting entity) defined pension plan established by the
Cotunonwealth. Substantially all full-time employees ofthe Commonwealth and substantially
all municipalilies are covered by ERS under the terrns of Public Act No. 447 of May I 5, I 95 I , as

amended (Act No. 447). AII regular and temporary employees ofthe Municipality become plan
members ofERS at the date of employment, while it is optional for officers appointed.

ERS members, other than those joining it affer March 31, 1990, are eligible for the benefits
described below:

. Retircn2ht Annuily

ERS members are eligible for a retiremmt annuity upon rcaching the following age:

Policemen and firemen:
50 with 25 years of credited service
58 with 10 years ofcredited service

other employees:
55 with 25 yearc of credited service
58 with | 0 ymrs of credited service

ERS members arc eligible for monthly benefit paymmts determined by the application ofthe
stipulated benefit ralios 1o the member's average compensation. Average compensation is
computed based on the highest 36 months ofcompensation recognized by ERS. The annuity,
for which a member is eligible, is limited to a minimum of$300 per month and a maximum
of 75 percent of the average compemation,
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. MeitAnnatq

ERS members are eligible for merit annuity with a minimum of30 years or more of credited
service. The annuity for which the plan member is eligible is limited to a minimum of65
percerf and a ma,ximum of75 percent ofthe average compensation,

. Delefied Relirerrent Annuiq

A participating employee who ceases to be an employee of the Municipality after having
accumulated a minimum of ten years of credited service qualifies for retirement benefits
provided higher contributions are left in ERS until reaching 58 years of age.

. Coordiha@d Plari

On the coordinated plar! by the time the employee rmches 65 years old and begins to receive
social security benefits, the pemion benefits arc reduced by lhe following:

(a) $165 per montlr, ifraired with 55 years ofage and 30 years ofcrediled service.

(b) $l l0 per month, ifretired with less than 55 years of age and 30 years ofcredited
service.

(c) All other between $82 and $100 per month.

(d) Disability annuities under the coordinated plan are also adjusted at age 65 and in
some cas€s can be reduced over $ I 65 per month.

. Non-Coodinated PIM

On the non-coordinated plan the participating employee and does not have any change on the
pension benefits upon receiving social secudty benefits.

. Reversionary Annairy

An ERs member, upon retiement, could elect to receive a reduced retirement annuity giving
one or more benefit payments to his/her dependents. The life armuity payments would slan
after the death of the retiree for an amount not l€ss than $240 per year or geater than the
annuity payments being received by the retiree.

. Occuparional Dbability Annuilf

A participating employee, who as a direct result ofthe perfonmnce of his,&er occupation is
totally and permanmtly disabled is eligible for a disability annuity of 50 percent of the
compensation received at the time of the disability.
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. Nonoccupatioml DisabiliE A Miry

A participating employeg totally and permanently disabled for causes not related to his/her
occupation and with no less than l0 years of credited service, is eligible for an armuity of
1.50 percent ofthe average compensation ofthe first 20 years ofcredited services, increased

by 2 percent for every additional year of credited service in excess of20 years.

. Dealh Befiefts

Occupolionsl:

(s) Survivins spouse annuity equal to 50 percent ofthe participating employee's
salary at the date ofthe death.

(b) e!!!CIg! - $10 per month for each child, minor or student, up 1o a naximum
benefit per family of$100.

EglgEgigry - the contributions and interest accumulated as of the date of the dea$ plus an
zrmount equal to the annual compensation at the time of the death.

Beneficiary with suviving spouse age 60 or over and a chil4 l8 or under, up to 30 percent
(60 percent, if not covered under Title lI ofthe Social Security Act) (inoeased to 50 percent
effective January l, 2005) of retiee's pension or otherwise the excess, if any, of the
accumulated conkibutiom at the time of retirement over the total annuity benefits received
before death, limitedto a minimum of$750.

. Refunds

A participating employe€ who ceases his/her employment with the Municipality without the
right to a retirement annuity has the righl to a refund ofthe contributions to ERS plus any
interest eamed thereon.

. Cosl of Living Adjustrrent for Pensian Beneftts

Public Act No. l0 of May 21, 1992 (Act No. l0) provided for increases ol3 percent every
thee or morc years of retirement. Act No. 10 requires further legislation to gmnt this
inffease every three years subject to the presentation of actuarial studies regading its costs
and the source of linancing. To prote.t the financial health of ERS, the infiease granted
du ng 200 1 and the one granred on January I , 2005 are being financed by the Municipality
and the other participating employers.
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To avoid any economic impact on ERS, the employers are respomible for contributing to
ERS the amounts to cover the benefit payments and the employer and employee contributions
with respect to &e panicipants covered until the paticipants reach the normal retirement age.

. Atondnenl to Acl Na 147 ellectiw Janaary 1, 2U)0 to crcste a Defrned Conftibution

orr September 24, 1999, Public Act No. 305, an amendment to Act No. 447, was enacted to
establish a defined conhibution plan, known as System 2000, to cover employees joining
ERS on or after January I , 2000.

Employees that participated in the original plan as of December 3 I , 1999, had the opportunity
to elect to either stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to System 2000. Employees that
joined the Municipaliry on or after January I, 2000, were only allowed to become members
of System 2000.

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under
this new plan, there is a pool of plan assets, which is invested by the Systern, together with
those ofthe cost-sharing multi-employ€r defined benefit plan. Neither the Cortunonwealth
nor the Municipality guamntee benefits at retirement age. The amuity is based on a formula
which assumes that each fiscal year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8.28
p€rcent ofthe employee's salary up to a rnaximum of 10 percent) is invested as instructed by
the employee in an account which either: (l) earm a fixed rate based on the two-ymr
Constant Maturity Treasury Notes, (2) mms a rate equal to 75 percent of the retum of the
ERS' investment pordolio (net of managemenl fe€s), or (3) earm a combination of both
alternatives, Participants receive periodic account statements similar to those of defined
contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability benefits are not granted under
System 2000, rather are provided to those participants thal voluntarily elect to participate in a
private insurance long-term disability program. The employers' contributions (9.28 percent
of the filployee's salary) with respect to employees under System 2000 will continue and
will be used to fund the cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit plan.

System 2000 reduced the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those employees whojoined
the currenl plan on or after January I , 2000.

Historically, the state govemment of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico has reported ERS
and System 2000 in its basic financial statements as pension trust frmds. Accordingly, the
Commonwealth is currently assuming any achrarial deficiency that may exist or arise related
to the Municipality's participating employees because ERS does not allocate to the
Municipality any actuarial deficiencies pertaining to padcipaling munic;pal employees. The
Municipality is only required by law to make statutory conar;butions at the rates detailed
below.
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. Rece t Anehdntct ts to Act Na 117

The Senate and the House ofRepresentatives ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico have the
authority for establishing or amending the contribution requirements of System 2000 by
approving the necessary amendments or laws, subject to the final approval ofthe Governor of
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

In June and July 2003, the Governor of the Commonwealth signed three Public Acts that
provided the following cenain benefits to retirees:

(a) Increase in minimum monthly pemion payments to $300, effective January l,
2005.

(b) Triennial 3 percert increase in all p€nsions, effective January l, 2005.

(c) Increase in widow and/or beneficiaries to 50 percent of the benefit received by
the deceased pensioner, eflective January l, 2005.

All the benefits granted will be funded tlrough budgetary assigments in the Municipality's
general fund with respect to its retired employees.

The Board of Trustees of ERS approved, effective November 17, 2003, an increase in the
amount gmnted on personal loans to participating employees from $3,000 to $5,000.

b) Fandi,tg Polic!

The contribution requirement to ERs is established by law and is not actua ally determined.
These cont butiom are as follows:

Municipality and 9.28 p€rcent of applicable payroll
other employers
Employees:
Cmrdination plan: 5.78 percent of gross salary up to $6,600

per year, plus 8.28 percent gross salary in
excess of$6,600.

Supplementation 8.28 percent of gross salary. This is the
plani only choice available to policemen,

firemen and mayors

The contribution requfement to System 2000 is also established by law and is not actuarially
determined. These contributiom are as follows:

Municipality and 9.28 percent ofapplicable payroll
other employers
Employees: 5.78 percent of gross salary up to $6,600

per ymr, plus 8.28 percent gross salary in
excess ofs6.600.
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c) Aduol Conlributions

The actual combined employer and employee contributions to ERS and Systfil 2000 for the
current and past two years, which arc equal to the statutory requied contribulions, are as follows:

Fiscal year
ended June 30 Act No. 447 Svst€m 2000 Total

2011
20t0
2009
Totals

$ 409,234
431,141

366,3s7
346,57',7

330,459

$ 775,591
777,',724

795,413464.954
$ 1,305,335 1,043,193 $ 2,348,728

During the fiscal years ended June 30,2009,2010, and 2011, the Municipality and the
participaling employees contributed at least 100 percent ofthe requied contributions to ERS and
System 2000. The authorily under which obligations to contribute to ERS and System 2000 by
ihe plam' members, employers and other contributing entities (i.e., state or municipal
contributions) are established or may be amended by law by the House of Representatives, the
Senate and the Govemor ofthe Commonwealth ofPuoto Rico.

Readers can obtain copies of the audited basic financial statements (GAAP basis) of ERS and
System 2000 by witing to Mr. Hector M. Mayol Kaufftnann, Executive Dhector of the
Retirement Systems Adminisuation of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (ihe entity that
administers ERS and System 2000) at PO Box 42004, Minillas Staliorr Santurcq Puerto Rico
00940.

12. Landfill Closure rnd Postclosure Care Costs Obligations

The Municipaliry owru a municipal solid waste landfill. However, the Municipality has not adopted
the required provisiom of Statement No. 18, Accounting for Municipal Solid fi/aste Landlll Closure
and Postclosure Cale Cosrr, issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB No.
18) and the regulations set fo(h by the U.S. Environrnent Protection Agency (EPA) in its "Solid
Waste Disposal Facility Criteria", issued on October 9, 1991. According to these standard and
regulations, the Municipality is requhed to place a final cover on the Municipality's solid waste
Iandfill site when it stops accepting \msle, and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for 30 years after closure. The Municipality has not pedormed an independent
study of lhe activities that need to be implemented at the Municipality's solid waste landfill to
guarantee the maximum yield of available space and to comply with applicable state and lederal
regulatiom and, accordingly, the accompanying statement ofnet assets does not include the required
liability for closure and postclosure care co6ts ofthe solid w?ste landfill using current costs allocated
based on the actual landfill capacity used at June 30, 201 1.
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The Municipality has a contract with a private company to operate its municipal solid waste landfill
for a period oftwerfy (20) years started on June l, 2004. As part of its contract 1o operate the landfill,
the private company a$eed to provide closure and postclosure care subject to the following
conditions: (l) the pri te company will be operating the landfill up to the terminalion ofthe space of
the landfill; (2) the landfill will not be ordered to stop accepting waste in the first ten (10) years of
contmct term; (3) if during the contract period, the company is ordered to close the landfill to develop
any other alternate facility for waste dispositior! the private contractor will have preference status to
operate it.

However, be.ause as owrer of a solid u€ste landfill the Municipality is prinarily liable under
applicable fedoal, slate, or local law and regulatiom, the Municipatity, as part of the evaluation ofthe
proposals submitted by private companies interested to operate the landfill, partially considered the
financial capability and stability of all of interested private companies to meet closure and postclosure
care obligatiom when they are due. However, since the independent required study referred to above
has not been prepared at Jme 30, 2011, the Municipality was unable to veriry the economic impact of
the closing and postclosing care costs, which remain undetermined at June 30, 2011. It is the
management's conclusionthat the pri\ate company selected and actually operating the landfill will be
able to meet its contractual obligations about the closue and postclosure care costs, subject to the
conditions listed above.

Conmitments, Contingencies and Uncertainties

Claims and Judqm€pts

The Municipality is defendant in larious legal proceedings pertaining to matters incidental to the
performance ofrouline governmenlal operations- Under Act No. 104 oflune 25, 1955, as amende4
persons are allowed to sue the Municipality only for causes of actions set forth in said Act to a
maximum amount of 575,000 or S150,000 if it involves aclions for damages to more than one person
or where a single injured party is entitled to several causes ofaction. Under certain circumstances, as
provided in Act No. 9 ofNovember 26, 1975, as amende4 the Municipality may provide its oflicers
and employees with legal representation, as well as assume the payment ofanyjudgment that may be
entered against them. There is no limitation on the payment of such judgment.

The Municipality is a defendam in a number of lawsuits arising principally from clairns against the
Municipality lor alleged improper actions, and other Iegal matters that arise in the ordinary course of
the Municipality's activities. With respects to pending or theatened litigatiorL the Municipality has
reported no liabilities as ol June 30, 20 I L Management believes, based on the advice of the legal
counsel, that the potential claims against the Municipality not covered by insurance will not
materially affect the financial resources for its payment.

During fiscal year 2010-2011, the extemal lawyers did not povide an extemal confirmalion relates to
pending or tkeatened litigations.

Encumbmdces

The Municipality has reported, outstanding encumbrances amounting to $102,296 in the general tund
at June 30, 2011. The Municipality intends 10 honor these encumbrances, which will continue to be
liquidated under the curent year's budget during a lapse period that extends into lhe subsequenl
fiscal ye3r.
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Federrl Finarciallv Assisted Prcertms

The Municipality receives financial assistance from the federal governmenl in the form ofganls and
entitlements. Receipts ofgrants are generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions
of the gant agreements and applicable federal law and regulations, including the expenditure of
resources for eligible purpos€s. Subslantially all grants are subject to audit under Circular A-133 of
the Office of Management and Budget of the United States of America (OMB Circular A-133).
Disallowance as a rcsult of these audits may become liabilities ofthe Municipality

Manaq€ment Aqreement of Villas del Paroue (trInHA Proiect No. 63-033-06906600491

The Municipality maintains entered into a management agreement with GR Managemerf Corp., for
the adminisration of Villas del Parque (FrnHA Project No. 63-033-0690660049). Management fees

amounted to $41,352 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 201| and consist ofa monthly fixed payment

established in the Administrative Notice PR AN No. I25 (lnst. 1930-C).

14. Fund Brl.nce (Deficit)

As ofJune 30, 201 l, tund balance (deficit) is compised ofthe following:

H.rd
G.EEI Sbn

rud bil,rc (d.fi.n) ru.d rud

Crpibl Ort r
CDBC ltrpnve@.t m'r,jor

Bo,n Fund fulds

Urtan ,Jn snonic d.wlormnr
Public h.Bins rJi wlfe
Cultu! ad rccEanon ,Ji ed@rim

Urhon aid comnic derelopmd

Cdr@ ari lffltion ai'd .dBri{

Tobl tud hales (d.frcn)

5.6?3,032 53J55
2.699,71;

----f!el-

5tJl-t 51,437
l?3,t9t

t)1:1O3 t3',r,101
t2e21e 132243

r (531,606)

(rm,,fl2)

15. Subsequent Events

On June 16, 2011, the Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico issued Act No. 94, which
established an incentive plan for the payment of real and personal property taxes dug b€inning on
July 14, 2001. This Act provides a tax relief for the payment of real and personal property taxes

eliminating accrued interested p€nalties and charges over unpaid principal of past due property ta-\
liability. The period that laxpayers have to enjoy for such benefits is for exactly ninety ((90) days

beginning on July 14 through October 11, 2011. The unpaid properry taxes covered under this Act
are those related to fiscal yeaIs 2009-2010 and earlier (for real property taxes) and for years 2008 and

earlier for personal property taxes. Also, To get the beneit of this Act, it is required that the property
taxes for the fiscal year 2010-201I and for the first semester 2011-2012 are paid.

End of Notes lo Bdsic Financial slaleftents
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Budgebry Compeison Schedule, Cene6l Fud
F6cal YesEnd.dJuel0,20ll

Municipal lrcens ta\es

Co6nuction qcise la{€s
Intersov€menlal smtsodco.Eibutions

Urban md @nomrc developmor

Public houing Md velfm
Cullu€. res€alion md eduation

Excess (defi ciehcy) of r@*s over
expe.d(res md €.cmb.ec6

other finln.ins sourc.s (u!6):
TrMsler our to oti€. gov.menhl 6mds

Tohl oher FiMons soE6 (66)

N.tch.ng. in tund brl.nc. (d.li.il)

1,515,053

1,989,5s2

1,68?,176

l,osl.l9l

59,200
455,t00
l?3,600

_____t1l!!l!L

4,919.110

3519,318

1,738.168

253,387

1.2r1.101

62,041

____qqal

614,620 61A.620

$ 670,620 670.624

B!s94i!4!.e!-o!r!!Ess!E
Sowrinfl ows oIfi mdal resues:

Actual amouts (budeerary 6ais) "available Ior opprcprialioB'
riotu lhe budgerary conp-ison schedde
Ddltrenc€s - budSebry b6h ro GAAP:

Diilerences in bas6 ofaccoutin8
GAAP adjusihen ro revenues

Tolal Evenus d s report€d on l6e st t menl of
reycnu€s. qpenditur€s ed ch&s€s i. tuhd balec6

Us*/outflos of ,inMcial resoures
Acrual moull (budgelary bais) 'tohl ch-ges io,ppmpnarons'
fron th€ budsetary omp&ison $hend€ (including trmfcr our io oth.. funds)

Dirleees budgebry b6is to GAAP

CBenl yed €ncumbrucG rsoded s exFndit6 for bu4elary purposG

Prior y* encmbBcs @orded s exDendilu€s Ior GAAP purpos6

Non-budgeied tusfers to other funds
Non budgered dp€ndnue
Tobl expendtms dd rtusfer out to 6tner fMtl5 d ftponed on rhe

sutmdt of revehB, exp.ndnfts dd chrges in fud bal&ces

$ 14.t65,568

_!_)!1)!L

$ 11,194.948

(r02.297)
t6't r'1

r8,298

_!___.1!llL.l!r

Orisiral Finrl b,sn)
$ 3,515.053

1,989,552

t541,\76
1,053,391

59,200
455,100

_______u$gl13,880518 1t.880,618

4,861,425 5.078411
3.915.720 1,a1a243
t,666,595 1.619,805

1,461,976 1,738,368

258.028 259.161

12t5,494 1,243.452

61192
13,380,638 11,880,638

t,416,2@
2,063,8I
l,616.0ll

656,681

5.113,972

255,191

432,098

st2,2'11

-l"_ h- ;iii-
ov* (ud.r)

$ (78.844)
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(71,t65)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JU {I\A DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF f,XPf,NDITURES OT FEDERAL AWARDS

FORTHf, FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.20II

tredeEl
Federal Gr.ntor / Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity ldentirying Federal

Program or Clust€r Title Number Number Expenditur€s

U.S. DEPARTMENT OT AGRJCULTUR-E:

Pass-tlrough the Department of Education of
the Cornmonweahh ofPuerto Rico:

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 N/AV

Total U.S. D€partm€nt of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION;

Pass-tkough the Tramit Safety Commission
of the Commonwealth of Puerto fuco:

Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving
Prevention Incentive Crants 20.601 N/AV 63,278

Pass{hough the Puerto Rico Highway and
Transportation Authority :

Federal Tmnsit Technical Studies Grana 20.505 z7-o9/ 2008-001452 102,284

Total U.S. Department of Tmnsportation

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT I

Direct Programs:

Cornmunity Development Block Gmnts/
Entitlement Grants 14.218

Connnunity Development Block Grant
ARRA Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R) -
(Recov6ry Act Fund6d) 14.253

165,562

Total CDBC - Entitlement Grants Cluster

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
Progam

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-
housing Progam (Recovery Act Funded) 14.257

Pass-ttrough lhe OfTice ofthe Commissioner
ofMunicipal Atrairs ofrhe Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico:

Community Development Block Grants/
State's Progam 14.228 NSP 540,226

Total U.S. Department ofHousing and
Urban Developm€nt

557.703

557.703

t4.87 t

1,855,111

1,332

1,856,443

'7 43,606

389,433

80
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUA\A DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUATION)

rOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OII

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Crantor /
Program or Cluster Titl€

Federal
CFDA

Number
Entity Idendrying

Number
Federal

Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICf,:

Pass-TtrouBh the Administration for Integral

Care and Development of Children ofthe
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico:

Cornmunity Services Block Grant

Head Stan Program

ARRA- Head Start Progam

Total Head Start Cluster

Child Care and Development Block Crant

ARRA Child Care and Development
Block Gmnt

l'otal Child Care and Detelopmenl Blocl
Grant Cluster

Pass-Tlrough the Municipality of Poncq P.R.

HIV Emeqency Relief Project Grant

Totrl U.S. Department ofHealth and
Human Service

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND
SECURITY

Pass-Though the Covernor's OfIice of the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Public Assistance Grant

Disaster Gmnts Public Assistance

Totrl Deparrtment of Homeland Security

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Pass-Through Departrnent of Justice ofthe
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico;

Recovery Act - Edward Byme Memorial
Justice Assistance Crafi (JAG) Program

Total Deprrtment of Justice

16.803 2009-SU-AEruA-01

93.569

93.600

93.708

93.575

93.113

N/AV

241-201l-000345

241-2010-000136

N/AV

23,64\

5,992,484

404,532

6,397,016

121,025

93.914

t56,790

167,886

83.s44

97.036

6,145)33

300,894

19,433

320J27

22,712

22,712
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COMMOI{WEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUATION)

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,ARf,NDED JUNE 30,2OI1

Federal

Federal Crantor / Prss-Through crantor / CFDA Entity Id€ndrying F€deral

Progrxm or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY:

Pass-Through oflice ofthe Energy Affairs
Administration:

Ener$/ Elliciency and Consertation Block
Grant Progam

Total Department of Energy

TOTAL f,XPENDITURE OF Ff,DERAL AWARDS

16.803 2009-SU-AEruA,0l 20,000

20,000

_[-l]rqgs

See accompanying Notes to Schedule ofExpenditures ofFederalA\@ds
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JLANA DiAZ

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,20I I

NOTE I _ GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal granl activity of the

Municipality ofJuana Dlaz, Puerto Rico (Municipality) and is presented on the modified accrual basjs- The

information in this schedule is presented in accodance with the requfements of OMB Circular A_133,

Audits ofstates, Local Governments, and Non-Profit OrganizatiorE. Therefore, some amounts presented in

this schedule may differ aom amounts presented iL or used in the preparation of, the general-purpose

financial statemenls. The reporting entity is defined in Note (1) (A) to the gmeml_purpose combined

financial statements,

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

t. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared from Municipaliry's
accounting records and is no1 intended to present financial posilion or the results ol operations.

2. The Municipality in accordance with the terms records the financial transactions and conditions of the

grants, which are consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

3. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred, ifmeasurable or

when actually pai4 whichever occurs first.

NOTE 3 - FEDERAL CFDA NUMBER

The CFDA numbers included in this Schedule are determined based on the progam namq review of grant

contract information and the Ofiice of Management and Budget's Catalogue of Federal Domestic

Assistance.

NOTE 4 _PASS.THROUGH GRANTOR'S NUMBER

State or local government redistribution of federal awards to the Municipality, treated as if they were

received directly from the federal government. OMB Circular A_133 requires the schedule to include the

name ofthe pass{lrough entity and ide irying number assigned by the pass_lhrough enlity for federal

awards received as a sub recipient. Numbas identified as N/AV are not a'"?ilable

NOTE5_MAJORPROGRAMS

Major progranrs are identified in the Summary of Audilol's Results Section of the Schedule of Findings and

Questioned Co6ts.
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Cortltr€d PubIIc A.sor.Et3trt

INDEPEN-DENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL COr-TROL OVER rL\ANCIAL
RXPORTING AND oN ColrPLI-{NCE AN..D oTHER }IATTERS BASED oN AN AUDIT or

rI\-ANCI.{L ST-{ IE}rE:i-IS PERFORMED Lr\ ACCORDANCI WITII GOVERNIIIENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Horcrrble MaYor and

llembers of lbe [Iuaicipd l,eghlrture
Ntunicipalit] ofJuana Di:rz, Puerto Rico

we have audited rhe iinancial siarcmenls ofthe Sovernmental actiyilies, the business-ryPe activities. each

maior fund. and the ngaregate rcmaining ftrnd intormation of Municipality of Juitrr Disz. Pueno Rico

rM;niriDalirv). as of ind lbr lhe fiscal )ear ended June 30' 201 l. Nhich collectively comp'ise lhe

Munici;lity s h.ic tioancirl ltalements afld have issued our report thereon dated March 29, 2012. Our

repon includes a reference to other aud;tors The repon on dre go"ernmenial fund financial natements uas

unqualified.lnaddition,wedidnotexPressanopiniooontheEovernmcntalwidefinaocia'slatements
bec.aue we were unable to obkin sufficient and competeflt evidential mater related to the caPital asset\ lhe

balance ofrhe compensated absences liability and we were unab,e to obtain an evaluation of the le8!l cas€s

from the extemal lawyers ofthe Municipality. Etcepl as dis.trssed in lhe Precediog senlence. we conducted

our audit in accordancc $ith audiling sandards Scnerally accepted in the United Statcs ofAmerica and the

standar.ls applicable to financful audits contained in Gorennent Au.liling Slsndards, issued by the

Comprolle; Cene.at of the United States. Olher audilors audited the financial stalements of Villas del

Parque (FmHA Proj€ct No. 6i-03.1-0690660049), a business-tvpe actiYity (proprietary fund), as d€scriH
in or. repon on th; Monicipal;ty's financiat slatefiEnts- This repon do€s not include rhe r€suhs of other

audilors' testing of intemal oontrol over financial reponing or compliance and olher matteIs thal are

reported on separately by those auditors.

Intemrl Control Ovcr Finrrcisl ReDortine

In planning and performing our audiq $,e considercd the Municipality's intemal control over financial

reponing ai a basis for dcsigning our auditing Procedrrres tb. the purpose of expressin g-our opinion or the

financiai statements, bul not lor lhe purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecliveness of the

Municipalil-v's illemat control olcr financial reportinS. Aacordingly' rre do not exPress an opinion on the

effectiveness ofthe lluniciPali!v's intenul control over financial reponing.

Oor consideration cf intemal control ovcr financial repodnli rvrs for lhe limiled purpose described in the

DrecedinB paragmph and *as nol desiSn lo identii all deficiencies in inlemal control over financial

repon'ng-ttrat;ight be srgnificanl deficiencies or material rveaknesses and therefore. there can tre no

*ir-n"" thut all deficiencies. significant deficiencier. or mflte.ial eaknesses hale been identified'

Horvev€r. as desrribed in lhe accompsnling Schedule ol Findings and Questioned Costs. we idenrified

certain deiiciencies in intemalco irul oter financial rePorting lhai wc,:onsider to be material weaknesses

and oth€r deficiencies thal $e consider to be signiticant de6ciencies.

A, tleficie ct in interuul corrrol cxists when lhe design or operdion of a conlrol doesrlol allow management

or employees. in the normal course ofperforming their assigned funclions, lo pr€!€flt or det€ct and torrect

misstarements on a timely basis A m erial ,."afulors is a deficiency. or a combination ofdeficiencies. in

imemal control such thai lhcre is a rcasonable possibilily lhal c m.lcrial misstatemenl of the entilv s

financial statem€nts N;ll nol be prcvented, or detecled and conccted on a timely basis. we co8sid€r $e
deficiencies described in the accoorPanling Schedule of Findings and Ques.ioned Costs lo be malsrial

\eaknesses. Findings II-ll-02 nnd Il-lll-0i

P.O. aor o59, Psln€! Stroot, NoS.4oe North' ourvrEa' P.B. oo?a6
T6r. (?aZ) 864-6{9O' For (?a?) a64-t5OO' GprP6droc@hotEsll.GoE



INDEPENDENT ALIDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER rINANCIAL

nrionmc e-^ro on coMPLIANcF, AND orHER MATTERS BAsED oN AN aIJDlr oF.'-TTXIICNT- 
SUTOMT,NTS PER}'ORMED IN ACCORI}ANCE WITH GOVERNMENT

AU DITING STANDARDS (CON-TINUED)

A signifrunl delcienq ls a deficiency. or comhiflation ofdeficienc;es, in intemal control that is less severe

itrun_a 
"muteri"t **t ness. ).er impofranr enough to merit att€ntion by those charged with govemance. we

"or.il, 
rf," deficiencies iescribed in the accornpan;- Schedule of f-indings and Queslioned Corls to be

signifi cant defi ciencies- Finding 1 l'll-01.

Comoliirtrc. al|d Othe. Mrtters

As oan ofobraininB r€asonable assurarce about whether the ['lunicipality's financial stalements are f.e€ of
*ur'.;ut ,o.,"rint wc performed ksts of irs compliance wirh cenain prov'sions of la*s, regulations,

"onn"o"nagootug.*.ents.noncompliancervithwhichcot'ldhaveadir€ttandmaterialeffectonthedeterminarion of fin;cial siatement amounts. Ho*.ever, providing an opiflion on compliance with those

"."t;.lo***nolanobtecti\eofou.audit.afldaccc'rdirrgl)'wedonotexpresssuchanopinionThelesutrs ol our rests disclosed insrances of noncompliance or other maners lhat are required to be rePon€d

iiier Go.,en^ert ,tu,1ni,g .S/drrldr./s and which are described in rhe accompanying schedule ot F;ndings

and Quesrioncd Cosls as items ll-ll-02aDd ll-ll0l.

wenotedcertainothermatterstlratwereporledlomanagementoftheMunicipaliryinasepamtcletter
dat€d March 29, ?012.

TheMunicipaliry'sresponseslothefindinSsidenlit]edinourauditared€scribedintheacromPanying
ichedute of'Finjings and Qucstio ed cosls. we did not audit the Municipatiry's r€sponse and, accordingly,

we express no opiniorr on il-

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the manaS€nrent. the Honorable l\layor ard

Merntrers ofthe Municipal trgislature, lh€ office ofthe comnrissioner of Municipal Affairs. others withio

the entity and fedemla;arding agencies and pass{hrough entities and is not intended to be and should nor

b!. sed by anyone olher rhan lhese 5pecified padies

D{ d,k-:-
Pedro C. oniz tedat. CPA

I-icens€ Number 5200

Cuayama. Pueno Rico
March 29.2012
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Cortltlod PubU! Aooorltlt3nt

INDf,PEI{Df,NT AUDITORS' R.EPOR'T ON CO]ITPLIANCE IVITH RTQTIIRE}IENTS THAT

c6Jrn gevr ,r ornscr .{ND MATtRIAL EFTECT oN EACH }lAJoR PRoGRAM aND oN

irir-enr.-.{i coNrnol ovER colltPLlANCE L\ AccoRDANCE wlrH o}rB CIRCIILAR A-
lJ3

To the Hooorrble Malor.l!d
Member oflhe MuriciPrl L€gklrture
Ilunicipality ofJurna Diaz' Puerto Rico

Complirnce

We have audiled Municipatilt-, of Juans Dirz' Pu€no Rico (Municipaliry) compliance tvith the types of

."-.trn""r*uir"r"nsdescribedinrheO,UaCiir'4-l33ConpliunceStqplenenttiatcoildhe\ea'
ai..'r *.f ,nutiriof 

"ff."l 
on e.ach of Municipality's n'irjor federal programs for the fiscal )ear ended June

iii, ioii. rl" Municipaliq's major federal Programs are tdemified in ihe-summar, ofauditor's r€suks

.""t-" "f 
,n" 

"""ornp"niirg 
Schedule of Find;ngs and Questroned Cosls' ComPii'nce with the

.eouirements of laws. rigutari;ns. cortracts and gran6 applicable |o each of its major f€deral programs is

iiJ re,ponsibilitl ol lh; rlunicipalir]'s marragenrenl. Our resPonsibiliry is lo e\pre)s an opinion on

MuniciDality s compliance based on our arrdit

TheMuniciPslity.sbas'cfina!)cialstalementsinciudethefinancialstalemellsofvillasdelParque(FmHA
proi€q No.'61_dl.l-06s0660M9) (Villas del parque), a proprietary f,nd which single Audit report reflect

io,if "*nu". 
and expenditurcs (e\P€nxs) of $41E,029 and $477.541. resPctively' for rhe fiscal year

"-Ja 
lr"l lO. 201. other auditois audited rhe comptiance of villas del parque, with rh€ types of

".-nti*"" ."ou;."..nr. ,lescribed in the U S- Ofice of Manugement and Budget (OMB) Circalar '4'133
i:"riotiutn" Swptrr*t that a.e applicable to the maior program of Villas del Pa'que for the fiscal year

.J"i .l*" lo, jot r. rr,is repor.r does nor inckrde th. resulDs of rhe other auditors' resting of comptiancc or

iltema, control over compliance lhal are reponed on sepamtclv by those auditors

We conducted our ardit of compliance in ,ccordance w;th a dilinS standards gencrally accepled in ft€

United States ofAmeric4 the stindards applicable to inancial audirs cootained in Govemrrent A dting

Srura"rAr,;.rr"AbytheCompt.ollerGeneraloftheLjnitedStates:andOMBC:trcularA)1f'AuditsoJ
.gxrte,, Licol Governnent-'t, ,tnd Non'tuofit (hganizutions- fhos€ staodards and OMB Circular A-ll3
,"oui." thd t". Dlan and pertorm the audit to obtain.easonable assutance about whether ooncompl;ance

*iit irr" op.. oi*.priunce requrrcmcnls referred to above lhat could hale a direct afld mater'al €ffect on

. "*i". i"a..f progrum oc.urred Arl audit includes examiflinS. on a iest basis' evidence about the

il 
""i'.lrrii,, 

i. *rpi-ce t! ith lhose requiremenls and perform'ng such other procedures as E€ considered

.".".."i." i,i o* .iri,rr{anc€s wc betie\€ th!! our audil prolides a easonable basis for our opinion. our

uualtao"snnrprotia.ategaldeterminationonlheivtuiciPality'scomPlia'cewiththos€requir€m€nts'

Asdescribedinilemsll.lll-09andIl.Il!]0intheaccompan}ingScheduleofFindingsandQuestioned
C..,i-if," rtlr""ip"fi,r- aki not conrpl) *ilh reqtrkements reg:]rding Davis Bacon and Matching Level of

iil"n una fu.marf.ittg thrl r€ lpplic.ble to its Head Stan Pmgram Cluster' Compliance sith such

,"qri**.", i, n"""*i+. in our opinion. tor the Municipatit) !o comply with the requiremerts appticable

to tllat prograor.

P.O. Bor aoa, PBlm6. S:!oot, Nd6 36 n o!th, Ou.y.a., P.n. oo?45
T6r. (7a?) aa{-54so ' F.t ("e?r 884'5540 ' epspGdroc@hota'tl''om



INDEPENDEN AUDITORS' Rf,PORT ON COMPLIANCE IVITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DTRECI AND MATERIAI, f,TFf,CT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON
ll{Tf,RNAL CONTROL OI'ER COMPLIANCE I-\ ACCORDAI,iCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-

I.33 (CONTINUED)

ln our opinion. eicepr fo. lhe noncompliance described in the Prcceditg parzgraphs, the MufliciPaliq
complied, in all material .espects, $iah thc conlplia[c€ r€quiremenis referr€d !o above thal could have a

direct and materialeffecr on each of its ajor federal progBms lbr lhc flscal year ended June 10, 201l. Tfie

results of our auditing procedures also discloscd olher inslances of loncompliances with those

reqoiremeflts, which are required 10 be rcpo(ed in accordance with O[rB Circular A-l]3 aod which are

described in th€ accompanying Schedule of Fi dings and Questioned Cosls ai ilems I l-lll-04. I l-lll-05.
IlJIl-06. Il-ln-07. Il-lll-08. II-lll-l l. I llll-12. I l-lll-l3 and I l'lll-14.

htemel Control Over ComDliance

I!'laoagement ofMunicipality is responsible for establishing and mainlaining effective inlemal control over

compliance trith the requiremcnts ol la*'s, regulations contracts and grants apPlicable to federal Programs.
In planning nnd performing our.udit, we coosidered Municipalit)'s internal control over compliaflce with

lhe.equirements thal could havs a direct and material effect on a major fedeml progam to detcrmine the

arditing procedurcs for the purpose of expressing our opirrion on compliance and to test and repon on

internal con(rol over compliance in accordance $ith OMB Circuhr A-133, but not for lhe purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectivefless of intemat cott.ol over compliance. Accordingly, *e do not

expr€ss an opinion on the elfectileoess ofthe Municiltalit.., s intemalconlrol overcompliance.

Our consideration of irtenral control over contpliance lvas lor lhe limiled purpose described in the

preceding paragraph and n'a-s not designed to ideotit 0ll deficiencies ir inlefiral control over compliance

that might b€ significanl deficiercies or matcrial weaknesses and lherefore. there can be no assurance thal
all deficiencies, sigrificant deficie'rcies or material weakncsses h"ve b€n identified. Ho$ever, as discussed

belo\v. rve identified cenain deficiencies i ifilemal conlrol over compliance that we considered to be

malerial weakncsscs and other deficiencies thal rv€ considerlo be signilicant delicienc ies.

A de/i.i.hct fu internal lotilrol orer cotnpliance exisls lrhen the design or operation of a contml ot'er

compliance does not allos managernent or emplole€s, in the nolmal course of performing their assigned

funcrioos. to prEvent or detect and correo noncompliance rlilh a lyP€ of compliance requircment of a

flderal program on a limely basis. A nireriol wea*ne!: in inernal Qntrol ovet conpliartce is a deficiercy.
or combioation of d€fic,encies. in inlemal control oter compliance, such that there is a reasonable

possibiliry that a msterial noncompliance with a t)-pe ofcompliance requirement of a federal program will
noi be prev€nted, or detecled and conecid on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies ii inremal

control over compliance described in lhe accompan].'iflg Schedule of Findings and Queslioned Costs as

irems I l-lll-09 and I l-ltl-l0Io be nateraal weaknesses.

i significaht Lleficienct h ilernol control o|e. cofiPlia Lr is a deficiency. or a combination of
rleficiencies. in intemal control o\er compliancc silh a Bpc of comPliance requ;remenl of a federal

prog.am rbat is less seyere than a marcrial \teaiioess in irnemal control oler compliance. )er imponanl

enough to merit atention b!'lhos€ chargcd rith gorerrunce. we co,Nadercd the deficiencies in inlemal

conaol over compl;ancr describcd in rhe accompanying Schedule of Fird;ngs and Questioned costs as

irems IIJII-04. I I-lll-05, Illll-06, ll'lll-07. ll-lll-08. I l-lll-l l. ll'lll-12, lllll-ll snd llJll-l4tobe
signlfi canl detici€rcies.

8l



INDEPDNDENT AUDITORS' R.EPORT ON COIITPLL{NCE WIT}I REQUIREMf,NTS THAT
COT]LD HAVE A T'IRECT AND iIIATIiRIAL f,FFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AN'D ON
INTERNAL CONTROI, OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDAi{CE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-

r33 (CONTTNUED)

fhe Municipality's rcspons€s !o the findings identified in our audit are descriH in the accompanying
Schedule of l'indings and Questio ed Cos(s. we did nor audii the Muflicipalily's responses and,

accordingly, we express no opinion on the respons€s.

'l-his r€pon is ifitend€d solely for ihe information and use of the managcment, lhe Honomble Mayor and
Memb€rs ofthe Municipal Legislature. the Oflice ofthe Commissioner ofMunicipal Atrairs, others *jthin
rhe enriry, fedeml awarding agencies and F:rss-through entities and is not intcnded lo b€ and should not be

used by anlone olher than fie,c specilied panies.

VZ-c^o/rza-,
/Pedro C. oniz Lcdeeit'PA
[-icenscNunlber 5200

(;uayama, Pueno Rico
March l9,20ll

863?3ee
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUAI\A DiAZ

SCHEDULE OT FNDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30,20II

SECTION I _SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RTSULTS

Financial Statements

T)?e ofauditor's report issued:

Intemal conrol over financial reporting:
Material weakness identifi ed?

Significant deficiencies identifi ed?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Federal awards

lnternal Control over major progmms:

Material weakness identifi ed?

Significant deficiencies identified?

T)?e ol auditor's report issued on compliance for

major Programs:

Unqualifi€d for fund financial
statem€nt snd dischimer ofopinion
in the government wide financial
strtements

xNo
X None reported

xNo

xNo
X None rePorled

Unqurlified, except for Head Start
Program Cluster

Yes

Yes

An\ audil findinss disclosed lhal are required lo be reported

inaccordance wiih Circular A'lll. Seclion.5l0{a)? Yes x

ldedtificatron of maior prcerams

No

CFDA Number Name of Federal

10.558 Child and Adult Care Food Progam

14.218/ 14.253 Cormunity Development Block Grants - Entitlement Grants

Cluster

Comrnunity Development Block Grants/ State's Progam

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-housing Program

Section 8 Housing Choice voucher Program

14.2s1

14.871

93.600/ 93.708 Head Start Progam Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

T)?e A and TyPe B Progams

Auditee qualified as low_risk auditee?

$340,840

Yes No X
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30,2OII

SECTION II _FINANCIAL STATEMf,NTS FINDINCS

TTNDING

REQUIREMENT

CONDITION

CONTf,XT

lt-II-0t

ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND REPORTING SYSTEM

The Municipality did not maintain complete accounting records.

Du ng our examination of the accounting systern, we noted that the

Municipality does not summa ze the tramactiom in a formal general

ledgo in order to properly record and account for the tmnsactiom ofthe
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. In additiorl during our cash

test, we noted that the Municipality does not have effective intemal confol
procedNes to ensure the prompt prepamtion ofthe bank reconciliations

Anicle 8.010 (c) of State Act Number 8l- ,e, de Municipios Autonomos

del Estado Libre Asociallo de Puerro Rico of Argt st 30, 1991 , states that

uniform accounting system used by the Municipality must produce reliable

reports and financial statements, Provide complete information about the

results of operations of the Municipality and include the necessary inlernal

controls to account for all funals, capital assets and other assets. In Chapter

IV, Sect;on 12 of the Municipal Administration Regulatory Manual ofthe
Puerto Rico Commissioner's Ofice for Municipal Atrair (OCAM),

establishes that the accounting system of the municipalities shall provide

for the timely and accurate prepamtion of bank reconciliations.

The Municipatity has not established effective internal control procedures

over the prepamtion of the firancial statements and the transactions

recorded on its accounting records.

The Municipality is not in compliance with Article 8 010 (b) (c) of the

State Law Number 8l ofAugust 30, 1991. In addition, Chapter IV, Section

12 ofthe Municipal Administration Regulatory Manual ofthe Puerto Rico

Commissioner's Office for Municipal Affair (OCAltO.

We rccommend management to establish the necessary intemal controls

and pocedures in order to establish a comPlete accounting system that
provides for the peparation of financial statements in accordance with
CAAP.

CRITI]RIA

CAUSE

EFTECT

Rf,COMM!]NDATION



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MU\ICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,AR f,NDf,D JUNE 30.2OI I

SECTION II _ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDINC 11-II-OT (CONTINUED)

REQUIRtrMI]NT ACCOUNTING RECORDS AND REPORTING SYSTEM

TIdNAGEMENTRESFoNSf,
AND coRRf,crrir AcrroN PLAN The Municipality maintains two set of accounting recotals; a manual

system and a uniform computerized accounting system. Actually, the
manual system is the primary source of financial information for financial
statements preparution. In additior! our administration implemented new
accounting software for the revenues transactions. We are evaluating if it is
cost effective acquire this system for all the accounting cycle.

lmplementation Date: June 30, 2012
Responsible Personi Mr. Francisco Torres- Finance Department Director
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COMMONWEALTH OT PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2OI I

SECTION II _ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

I]INDING

REQUIREMENT

CONDITION

CONTEXT

1l-lI-02

ACCOUNTINC Rf,CORDS. CAPITAL ASSETS

The Municipality does not tlave an effective system to account for capilal
assets, including the infrastructure assets,

During our examination of the property records, we noted that the
Municipality does not have adequate intemal controls and prccedures to
ensure that all capital expenditures and dispositiom are recorded in the
capital assets subsidiary ledger. Alsq the Mmicipality did not have
adequate supporting documentation of the cost of the capital assets

reported in the propety records.

Article 8.010 (c) (3) of the State Law Nitmber 81- Ley de Muniipios
Autono os del Estado Libre Asociados de Puerto Rico de 1991 of August
30, 1991, stated that Municipality should maintain updated properry
accounting records.

The Municipality did not maintain an adequate control of the
accountability of its capiral assets.

The Municipality is not in compliance with Article 8.010 (c) (3) of the
State Law Number 8 I of August 30, I 99 I .

we recommend management and the Properry Division of the
Municipality to make an inventory of the capital assets, support it with
adequate documentation and reconcile it with the capital assets subsidiary
Iedger.

We gave instructions to the Property Division to upalate the capital assets

inventory and with the help of our external consultants we are going to
reconcile the inventory with the subsidiary ledger and identiry possible

differences,

lmplementation Date: December 31, 2012
Responsible Person: Mr. Fmncisco Torres- Finance Departmert Director

CRJTERIA

CAUSE

EFFtrCT

RECOMMtrNDATION

MAN Ar:'MII]YI RIiSPONSf,

AND CORRXCTIVE ACTION PLAN
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHf,DULf, OT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDf,D JUNE 30,20II

SECTION II _ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS

FINDING NUMBER

RtrQUIRtrMENT

CONDITION

CONTEXT

11-It{3

ACCOUNTINC Rf,CORDS- COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Municipality does not rnaintain accrrate cumulative records of the
compmsated balances of the employees.

During our examination of the pa)Toll process, we noted that the amounts
reported in the cumulative records of compensated balances of the
Municipality's employees were incomplete and were not updated to reflect
the real balance ofthe accumulated vacations and sick leaves at June 30.
201l.

CASB 16, Accounting for Compensate Absences, issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board establishes the standards for
accounting and reporting for compensated absences for state and l@al
goverffnents.

The Mmicipality did not rnaintain adequate internal control procedures to
assure that the time and attendance records are reconcile and updated on a
monthly basis.

The Municipality is not in compliance with CASB 16, Accounting for
Compemate Absences, issued by trc Governmental Accounting Standards
Board.

We recommend management to update and reconcilq on a mo hly basis,
the cumulalive records ofthe employees' compensated balances, with the
time and attendance recorals,

We will gave instructions to the Human Resources Department to continue
updaling the cumulative records of compemated absmces of each
Municipality's employees.

Implemenlation Date: June 30, 2012
Responsible Person: Mr. Fmncisco Tores- Finance Department Director

CRITf,RIA

CAUSE

f,FFECT

ITECOMM[NDATION

}!,{NAGf Mf, N'I' RESPONSf,

AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUf,STIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDf,D JUNE 30,2011

SECTION III -FEDf,RAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS

TINDING

FEDERAL PROGRAM

u-ItI-04

COMMUNITY

ROQUIRI]MINT

NONCOMPLTANCE

CONDITION

CONTf,XT

DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-
ENTITLEMENT GRANT (CFDA NO. I4.2I8) U.S. DEPARTMENT
OF HOUSING AND URBAN DE!'ELOPMENT

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

ALLOWABLE ACTIVITIES-
HOUSEKEEPING SERVICES

The Progam failed to maintained appropriate supporting documertation
regarding the housekeeping services panicipant's files.

As part of our grant disbursement tesl, we exainined ten (10)
Housekeeping Services participant's files and noted that the Program uas
not assrring that all the requied forms established in the operational
guides were completed. In additiorL the Program was not documenting
adequately the visits made 1o the participants.

Code oiFederal Regulations 24, 85.20 (a) (l) states that fiscal control and
accounting procedures of subgrantees, must be suflicient to permit the
tmcing of funG to a level of expenditures adequate to establish that funds
have not been used in violation of the restrictions and prohibitions of
applicable statutes. Also, the Municipalily has an operational guide
"Manual Operacional Programa Auxiliares del Hogar" that includes all
procedures and progmm's requirements for housekeeping services,

The Progmm's inlernal controls procedures failed to assure that all
required inforrnation regarding participants were obtained and that the
required interviews, visits and iispections 1o monitor the senices were
realized in accordance with the operational guide.

The Pro$am is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 24,
8s.20 (a) (l) and with the operational guide.

CRITERIA

CAUSf,

EFFECT
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHf,DULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CON'TINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNf, 30,2OII

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS

FINDING 11.III-04 (CONTINUED)

FEDf,RAL PROGRAM COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BL(rcK CRANT-
ENTITLf,MENT GRANT (CFDA NO. I4.2I8) U.S. DEPARTMf,NT
OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEI'ELOPMENT

Rf,QUIREMf,NT COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL COMROL

NONCOMPLIANCE ALLOWABLE ACTI}'ITIES-
HOUSEKEEPING SERVICES

RECOMMENDATION We r@ornmend management to implement adequate internal controls and
procedures in order to assue that the progam stall completes all the
requLed forms and to inspect and monitor the services in accordance with
the regulations and the operational guide.

QUESTIONEDCOSTS None

itr{NAGEM f,NT NESFONSE

AND coRRf,crrvE AcrloN PLAN We will give instructions to the Housing Rehabilitation coordinator to
assure that all the required forms are adequately completed and the visits
rnade to the participants are properly documented.

Implementation Date: Imrnediately
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MI, NICIPALITT OFJUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNf, 30,2011

SECTION III - FtrDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING

FI]DERAL PROGILA.MS

11-IIt-05

COMMUNITY

R.[QUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTIXT

CRITERIA

DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT.
ENTITLEMENT GRANT (CFDA NO. I4.2I8) U.S. Df,PARTMENT
OF HOUSING AND URBAN Df,VELOPMf,NT

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

PROGRAM INCOME

The Progam did not comply with the Program Income requirement.

During oul Progam Income test, we noted that the transactions of CDBG'S
program income were nol Foperly recorded in the accounting recorG,

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Subpart J, Section 570.504 (a), stated that
the receipts and expenditures of progmm income shall be rccoded as part
of the financial transactions ofthe grant program.

The Progmm does not rnaintained appropriate accounting records over the
progmm income transactions.

The Progam is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 24,
Subpart J, Se€tion 570.504 (a) and Code of Federal R€ulations 24,

Subpa( C, Section 85.20 (b) (2).

We reconmend management to implement adequate procedures to ensue
that the financial tramaclions related to the pro$am income are properly
recorded in the accounting re.ords of the Program. In additiorL we
re€ommend identifying the sources of funding of those projects and made
an allocation and determine the portion of program income that
corresponds to CDBG.

None

We will assign an employee to identiry the amount of funds invested in the
construction projects were CDBC match funds. Once we determined the
amount of progBm income that coflesponG to the Program we will
include il in the accounting records.

Implementation Date: April 30, 2012

CAUSE

f,TTECT

Rf,COMMf,NDATION

QUESTIONED COSTS

MANAGEMENI RESPONSE

AND CORRECTII'E ACTION PLAN
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COMMONTryEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA D,AZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE TISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30.2OI1

SECTION III _FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FEDf,RAL PROGR,{M

RI]QUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

1l-I -06

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-
ENTITLEMENT GRANT (CFDA NO. 14.218) U.S. DEPARTMENT
OF HOUSINC AND URBAN DEI'ELOPMENT

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

SPECIAL TEST- REHABILITATION

The Progmm failed to maintain appropriate supporting documentation
re9rding the inspections ofthe rehabilitation work upon its completiorL in
accordance with the contracts specifications,

During our Special Test- Rehabilitatior! we examined ten (10)
participant's files and noted that for one (1) participant, we did not found
evidence that the rehabilitation work was performed. In addition, in the ten
(10) participant's files, the deficiencjes were not incorporated in the
contracts.

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Section 570.506 (b) srare that at a
minimurq the grantee should maintain recorrls demonstrating that each
activity undertaken meets one ofthe three national obiectives oithe CDBG
Program. Also. Code of Federat Regulatlons 24. Secrion 570.500 (b) (q)
states that when CDBG Entitlement Grant funds are used for residential
rehabilitation activity to aid in the prevention or eliminatjon of slums or
blight in a slum or blighted area, the grartee must maintain recods to
support the local definition of "substandard,,, must document a pre-
rehabilitation inspection repon describingthe deficiencies in each structure
to be rehabilitate4 and must document the details in each sructure to be
rehabilitated, and must document the details and scope of CDBG assisted
rehabilitation, by structure.

The Municipality's inlemal controls and procedures failed to assue that
the required unifs inspeclions were performed in accordance with the
Fedeml regulation.

The Municipality is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations
24, Section 570.506 (b) and (b) (9).

We recornnend management to follow its procedures in order that the
Progmm's personnel inspects the rehabilitation work to assure that is
canied out in accordance with the Federal regulation. In additioq the
works to be performed should be included jn the conaracrs.

CONTEXT

CRITER]A

CAUSf,

EFFf,CT

IiECOMMf,NDATION
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QIJESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE TISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30.2011

SECTION III - Ff,DERAL AWARD FINDINGS Al\D QUESTIONED COSTS

TINDINGNUMBER TT.I[-06(CONTINIJED)

FEDERAL PROGRA]U COMMUNITY DE}'ELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-
f,NTITLEMENT GRANT (CFDA NO. I4.21S) U.S. DEPARTMENT
OF HOUSING AND URBAN DE}'ELOPMENT

Rf,QUIRf,Mf,NT COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCE SPECIALTEST-REHABILITATION

QUtrSTIONf,DCOSTS None

MANACEMEMI RESPONSf,

AND coRREcTrr,f, AcTroN pr_an We will give insfructioru to the progam Director to follow up the usage of
the material given to the participants through on-site visits and to
incorpomte in the contracts the deficiencies that are going to be
rchabilitaled.

Imp lementation Date: Immediately
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RTCO
MUMCIPALITY OF JUANA D|AZ

SCIIEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2O1I

SECTION III - Ff,DERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

TINDING NUMBER

Ff,DER"{L PROGRAM

ll-III{7

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600/ ARRA- HEAD START (CFDA
NO. 93.708) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF Hf,ALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES; PASS TIIROUGH COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO
RTCO- ADMINISTRATION FOR CARf, AND INTEGRAL
Df, }'ELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD (ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

ALLOWABLE COST/ COST PRINCIPLES

The Program does not maintain accurate cumulative records of lhe
accumulated vacations and sick leaves ofits employees.

During our payroll test, we examined twenty five (25) employees, files
from the Head Start Progmm and noted that the amounts recorded monthly
in the cumulative records of these employees were not updated to reflect
the real balance ofthe accumulatd vacations and sick leaves at Jme 30,
201L In additiorL during our grant disbursement resq we examined fifty
four (54) and twelve (12) non payroll check fiom rhe Head Start and
ARRA- Head Star! respectively, and noted the following conditions:

a. In two (2) voucher payments for the purchase of educational rnaterials
and equipment and corEtruction purposes, we did not found evidence
in the invoices or the receiving reports ofthe period were the materials
and services were re€eived. Also, in four (4) voucher payments for
educational trainings, we did not found evidence of the attendance of
the Program's employees or a receiving repo4

b. ln two (2) voucher payments totaling we did not found evidence of the
original invoices. Also, we found that for one (1) voucher payments
the invoice was received before the equipment was received;

c. In five (5) voucher payments! the purchase orders were prepared after
the services and the invoices were received by the Program.

Code ofFederal Regulation 45, Subpafi C, Section 92.20 (b) (6) states thar
accounting records must be supported by such source documentation as
cancelled checks, paid bills, payrolls, time and attendance records, contract
and subgrant ar,r,ard documents, etc.

RIQUIREMf,NT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTf,XT

CRITERIA
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUENTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,20II

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

F'INDING NUMBf,R

FEDf,RAL PROGRAM

RtrQUIRf,Mf,NT

NONCOMPLIANCf,

CAUSf,

ETT'ECT

Rf,COMMtrNDATION

QUf,STIONED COSTS

AND CORRf,CTIVf, ACIION PLAN

rr-rrr{7 (CoNTTNUED)

HEAD START (CFDA NO.93.6OOY ARRA- HEAD START (CFDA
NO. 93.708) U.S. DEPARTTTTENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES; PASS THROUGH COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO
RICG ADMINISTRATION FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL
DE}'ELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD (ACUDET\)

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

ALLOWABLf, COST/ COST PRINCIPLES

The Progam did not maintain adequate internal control procedures to
assure that the lime and attendance re€ords are reconcile and updated on a
monthly basis. ln addilion, the Progam failed to maintain an adequate
control over the maintenance of the documenrs that justify the
disbursement.

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 45,
Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (6).

We recommend management to update and reconcile, on a montl y basis,
the cumulative records with the time and a$endance records. Also, we
recommend management to continue strengthening the interflal controls
and procedures designed to appropriately review the payments vouchers
and all the supporting documentation prior to the issuance ofa payment or
the transfer funds and assure that the requisition requested to the pass-

tlrough agency are used for the activities allowed by the Progam.

None

we gave instruction to the Human Resources Departmenl of the Program
lo continue updating, on a monthly basis, the cumulative records of
compensated absences of each Program's employees. Alsq we will gave
inslrucliom to the respomible employees that all the payments made by the
Progams have to be Foperly documented and with all the require
information beforc the issuance of the check.

Implementation Date: April l, 2012
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Canasquillo- Program Director
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COMMOI{WEALTH OT PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA D1AZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.20II

SECTION III - Ff,DERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FEDERAL PROGRAM

RtrQUIRf,Mf,NT

NONCOMPLIANCf,

CONDITION

ll-II-08

HEAD START (CTDA NO. 93.6OOY ARRA. HEAD START (CFDA
NO. 93.708) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES; PASS THROUGH COMMOIiWEALTH OF PUERTO
RICO- ADMINISTRATION FOR CARX AND INTEGRAL
DE}'ELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD (ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Progranrs did not minimize the time between the receiving of the
requesl of funds lrom the pass-through entity and the disbursement of
funds.

During our Cash Management test, we noted that the Head Slarr Program
and the ARRA- Head Start maintained an average cash balance of
approximately $279,438 and $91,636, respectively, in books. In addition,
the Programs did not disbursed in a timely manner the request of funds
advanced by the pass-through entity.

Code of Federal Regulation 45, Subpan C, Section 92.20 (b) (7) states that
the Pro$am must mainlain procedures for minimizing the time elapsing
between the tramler of funds flom the U.S. Treasury and disbursement
made by grantees and sub grantees when adlance payment procedures are
used.

The Prcgrams did not maintain appropriate cash management ptocedues
in order to disburse the funds requested to the pass-llrough entiry in a
timely manner,

The Progam is not in compliance wiih Code of Federal Regulation 45,
Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (7).

We recommended management to continue strengthening its disbursement
procedures to minimize the time between the transfer of funds by the pass

tkough ertity and the disbursements made by the Programs.

CONTEXT

CRJTERJA

CAUSE

EFFECT

RECOMMf,NDATION
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINCS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDf,D JUNE 30.2011

SECTION III -FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FED[RAL PROGRAM

r1-IIr-08 (CoNTTNUED)

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600)i ARRA. HEAD START (CFDA
NO. 93.708) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES; PASS THROUCH COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO
RTCO- ADMINISTRATION FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL
DEVf,LOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD (ACUDEI9

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

CASH MANACf,MENT

None

It is our opinion that the requisition of funds system established by
ACUDEN, the pass-tlrrough agency, thal is the non-federal entity thal
should exercise sound cash management in funds tramfers to the prcgram,
has been followed by us in compliance with the gant agreement clauses.

lmplementation Date: Not Applicable
R€spomible Person: Mr. Gerardo Canasquillo- Prograrn Dhector

REQUIRI]MtrN'I

NONCOMPLIANC[

QUESTIONED COSTS

MANAGf,MENT RESPONSf

AND CORRECII\'I ACIION PLAN
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUI\ICI PALITY OFJUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2OII

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FI]DERAL PROGRAM

-III-09

HEAD START (CFDA NO.93.600/ ARRA. HEAD START (CFDA
NO. 93.708) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF IIEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES; PASS THROUGH COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO
RICO- ADMINISTRATION FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL
DE!'ELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD (ACUDEN)

INTERNAL CONTROL

DAVIS-BACON ACT

The Progmm disbursed funds without the pa)Toll monitoring Focedures
required by the Davis-Bacon Act.

During our grant disbursement test, we noted that the Progranrs disbused
funds for construction improvements lor lour (4) Head Start centers and

found that the Programs has not establish adequate monitoring procedures

to review the weekly pa),rolls. Also, the Pro$ans are not assuring tllat lhe
prevailing wages are paid to the contractors' employees.

Davis- Bacon Act, 42 USC 5310.

The Municipality failed to apply all the monitoring procedures developed

to test applicable contractors with respect to the payment of prel'ailing
wages.

The Municipality is not in compliance wilh Davis- Bacon Act, 42 USC

5310.

We recommended managemenl to revise the contractois palrolls to
document, adequately, that the wages paid by the contractors are in
accordance with the \mges established by the Department of Labor and to
rcalize the require intervieqs to the conradors' employees

None

We will give instructions to the responsible employee to collect from the

contractors the weekly palrolls and assure tllal the llages paid are in
accordance with the rates eslablished by the DePa(ment of Labor.

Implementation Date: April 30, 2012
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Canasquillo- Program Directot

RtrQUIRf,MEI\"7

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRITERIA

CAUSE

EFTECT

RECOMMINDATION

QUESTIONED COSTS

MANAGEMXNT RISPONSE

A\D CORRICTIIT ACTION PLAN



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RTCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

rOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20II

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINCS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FEDERAL PROCRAM

REQUIRtrMENT

NONCOMPLIANCtr

CONDITION

l1-III-10

HEAD START (CFDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMf,NT OF
Hf,ALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; PASS THROUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL DEYELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

MATCHING, LEVEL OF EFFORT, EARMARXING

The Municipality did not comply with ahe requirements of matching

established in the contract with the pass{hrough entity and in the Federal

regulation.

During our Malching test, we noted thal the Municipality did not match the

funds, in accordance wilh the Federal regulations and the contract

established with the pass-through entity. During the progam year 2010-

2011, the Municipality marched approximately a l4% ofthe funds.

Clause Ten ofthe contract between the Municipality and the pass_through

entity established that, quarterty the Municipality shall submit the Prcject
Expenditures Report and should specify the amount of matching in casft
in-kind or a combinatioL in accordance with the aPproved budget an the

certification provided by the Municipality. The local matching should be

not less than the 20% of the combined costs. In addition, Code of Federal

Regulation 45, Sections 1301.20 (b) states that the non Federal share will
not be required to exceed 20 percent of the total costs of the progam. In
additioq Code of Federal Regulation 45 Subparr C, Section 92.24 (b) (6)

states tlBt costs and third parry in kind conlributions counting towards

sadsrying a cost sharing or matching requirement musl be verifiable from
the records ofgrantees and sub$antee or cost type contmctors

The Municipality did nol maintain an adequate conrol over the

maintenance ofthe documents that j ustifies the in-kind contributions

The Municipalify is not in compliance with Clause Ten of the contract

between the Mmicipality and the pass{kough entily, Code of Federal

Regulation 45, Se€tions 1301.20 (b) and Code of Federal Regulation 45

Subpart C, Section 92.24 (b) (6).

COI\TEXT

CRJTIRJA

CAUSE

ETFECT
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COMMON] EALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIOMD COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDINGNUMBER TI.III-IO(CONTINIJED)

Ff,DERAL PROGRAM HEAD START (CTDA NO. 93.600) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES; PASS THROUGH
COMMOIT1VEALTH OF PUERTO RICO. ADMINISTRATION
FOR CARf, AND INTEGRAL DEVELOPMf,NT OF CHILDHOOD
(ACUDEN)

Rf,QUIRf,MENT COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCE MATCIIING, LEVf,L OF EFFORT, EARMARKING

R.ICOMMENDATION We recommend management to strengthen the internal controls and
procedures to ensure that Municipality matches monthly, the federal
expenditures with allowable activities ofnon federal funds. ln addition. we
recommend management to assrre that adequate documentation ofthe in_
kind contributions made to the Head Start proglam is obtained.

QUESTTONEDCOSTS $l6t,476

MANAGEMENTRESPONSE

AND CORREC'rIVE ACTTON pr,,r\ AS part Ofthe corrective action plan, the Municipality,s management gave
instructions to the employee in charge ofcollecting the in kin4 to veri{y,
in a morthly basis, the amount of in kind collected and assure that it is
complying with the amount required by the pass-through enlity.

Implementation Date: June 30, 2012
Responsible Personi Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo- Progam Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDf,D JUNE 30,2011

SECTION III - FEDER{L AWARD TINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING

Ff,DERAL PROGR,{MS

Rf,QUIREME]\TT

NONCOMPLIANCE

CONDITION

l1-III-l I

HEAD START (C[DA NO.93.6OOYARRA- HEADSTART (CFDA
NO. 93,708) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF Hf,ALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICf,S; PASS THROUGH COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO
RICO- ADMINISTRATION FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL
DEVELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD (ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

PROCUREMENT AND SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

The Program disbursed funds during fiscal year 2010-201I not in
accordance with the adequate procurement process established by the
Federal and State regulations.

During our $ant disbursements test, we examined fifty four (54) and
twelve (12) non payroll check iom the Head Srarr and ARRA- Head
Start, respectively, and noted the following conditions:

a. During the fiscal year 2010-2011, the Progmm maintained
contracts with one (1) dentist specialized in childrer! without
requesting proposals ftom an adequate number of qualified
professionals.

b. In seven (7) non payroll voucher payments, we found that the
procurement process (acquisition) \r?s not well documented for
the puchases of gooG.

Code of Federal Regulations 45,92.36 (c) (l), states that all procuremenr
tmnsactions will be conducted in a rnanner providing full and open
competition consistent with the standards of 92.36.

The Program does nol perfotmed an appropriate procuement process
because failed to request quotations Aom an adequate number of qualified

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulatiom 45,
92.36 (c) (1).

CONDITTON

CRITf,RIA

CAUSE

EFFECT
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUf,RTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA D1AZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINCS AND QIJESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJI]NE 30.20I I

SECTION III _ FEDEFAL AWARI} FINDINGS AND QUf,STIONED COSTS

T.TNDTNG

FEDERAL PROGRAMS

REQUIREMEN'T

NONCOMPLIANCE

RECOMMENDATION

QUDSTIONED COSTS

MANAGEMENI RESFoNSf,

AND CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

l1-III-l l (CONTINUED)

HEAD START (CFDA NO.93.600yAR&{- HEAD START (CFDA
NO. 93.708) U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES; PASS THROUGH COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO
RTCO. ADMINISTRATION FOR CARE AND INTEGRAL
DE}'ELOPMENT OF CHILDHOOD (ACUDEN)

COMPLIANCf, AND INTf,RNAL CONTROL

PROCUREMENT AND SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

We recornmend management to implement procedures in order to obtain
and rnaintain all the required documenlation regards the procrrement
process to comply with this requirement. Also, the Mrmicipality should be
aware thal all the bidders are professionally qualified and are bidding for
the services that are being requested. In additiorl we recornnend
maragement to reguesl and oblain at least ttree (3) quotatiom liom
suppliers and then adjudicate the purchase to the supplier that presents the
lower price and the most advantageous conditions for the Progam.

As part of the corrective action plar! we will give instructions to the
Purchase Division of the Municipaiity to request proposal of at least ttuee
suppliers and assure that the adjudication process js for the lower biddo
and the most ad\,antageous conditions for the Pro$am.

Implementation Date: April 31, 2012
Responsible Personi Mr. Gerardo Carasquillo- Progam Director
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COMMONWf,ALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30.2OI I

SECTION ItI - Ff,DERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

F'EDERAL PROCRAM

llJI-12

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CIDA NO. 10.558)
U.S. Df,PARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; PASS TIIROUGH
COMMONIVEALTH OF PUERTO RICO. DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

ALLOWABI,E COST/ COST PRJNCIPLES

During the fiscal year 20 I 0-20 I I , the Program disbursed tunds wirhout the
appropriate supporting documentation.

During our gant disbursement test, we examined five (5) non palroll
check and noted that in fourteen (14) voucher paymeots, the purchases
orders were issued after the goods were received.

Code of Federal Regulation 7, Subparr C, Seclion 3016.20 (b) (6) srates
tllat accounting records must be supporled by such source documentation
as cancelled check, paid bills, payrolls, time and attendance records,
contract and Subgmnt award documents, etc,

The Progam failed to appropriately review the payment vouchers and all
the supporting documenlation prior to the issuance ofthe payments.

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulation 7,
Subpart C, Section 3016.20 (b) (6).

We recommend rnarBgement to continue strengthening the inlernal
controls and procedures designed to appropriately review the payment
voucher and all the supporting documentation prior to the issuance of a
payment.

None

we gave orders to the responsible employees that authorized purctuse
orders has being issued before rhe receiving ofgoods and services.

Implementation Date: July l, 2012
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Canasquillo- Program Director

R,EQUIRtrMENI

NONCOMPLIANCf,

CONDITION

CONTEXT

CRJTf,RIA

CAUSE

EI'FI]CT

RI]COMMINDATTON

QUESTTONED COSTS

M'.\AGf,MENT RESPONSE

AND CORRECTIIE ACTION PLAN
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIOMD COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,20I I

SECTION III _ FEDf,RAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

TINDING NUMBER

FEDf,RAL PROGRAM

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPI,IAN(-F,

CONDTTION

lt-III-13

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 10.558)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURf,; PASS THROUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Progmm did not minimize the time between the receiving of the
request of funds ftom the pass-tlrough entiry and the disbursement of
funds.

Dudng our Cash Management tesl, we noted that during the fiscal year
2010-2011, the Progam rnaintained an average monthly cash balance of
approximately $157,820 in book. ln addiriorl we noted rhar progam
requested funds to the pass-tlrcugh entity that were not disbursed on a
reasonable lapse of time.

Code of Federal Regulations 7, Subpart C, Section 3016.20 (b) (7) slates,
pocedures for minimizing the time elapsing between the transfer of funds
from the U.S. Treasury and disbursement by $antees and subg"antees must
be followed.

The Progam and Finance Department ofthe Municipality did not rnaintain
appropriate cash management procedures in order to request funG to the
pass-tlrough only for irnmediate needs.

The Progam is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 7,
Subpart C, Section 3016.20 (b) (7).

We r@ommend management to strengthen i1s disbursements procedures to
minimize lhe time between the transfer of funds bv the state and
disbursement made by the Municipality.

None

CONTf,XT

CRJTf,RIA

CAUSE

trFFECT

RECOMMENDATION

QUf,STIONED COSTS
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JLANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUf,STIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2OII

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS

IINDINCNUMBER TT.I[-I3(CONTINUED)

Ff,DERAL PROGRAM CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. IO.55S)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; PASS THROUGH
COMMOI{WEALTII OF PUERTO RICG. DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

REQUIRf,MENT COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

NONCOMPLIANCf, CASH MANACEMENT

Ntr{NACEMENI Rf,SPONSE

AND coRREcTrvE AC'TroN pr,a-\ We gave instructions to the Progam,s Finance Department and the
Finance Department of the Municipality to jssue the check in
approximately three (3) days once the transfers of funds from the State are
received.

Implementation Datei April l, 2012
Responsible Person: Mr. Gerardo Carrasquillo- program Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE TTSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.20I I

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING NUMBER

FtrDERAL PROGRAM

R.[QUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCtr

CONDITION

l1-III-14

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 10,558)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; PASS THRoUGH
COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO. DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL

PROCUREMENT, SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT TESTS

The Program did not include in the contracts, all the clauses required by the
Federal regulations. In additiorl the Program did not verify ifthe suppliers
were suspended or debarred by the Federal government.

During our Procurement- Contract Clauses test, we examined one (l) food
supplier contract to verify the completeness of its clauses and noted that
various clauses were missing.

In addition, there was no evidence that demomkated that the program
verified these suppliers in the Excluded Parties List System (EPLS)
maintained by the General Service Administration.

Code of Federal Regulations 7, Sefiion 226.22 (l) states thal in addition to
provisiom defining a sound and complete procurement contract,
inslitutions shall include the contract provisions or conditions in all
procurement contracts and subcontracts as required by the provisiorl
Federal Law or FNs

ln addition, Code of Federal Regulations 7, Subpart C, Secrion 3016.35
states that gantees and subgrantees must not make any award or permit
any award (subgant or contract) at any tier to any party which is debarred
or suspended or is otherwise excluded ftom or ineligible for participation
in Federal assistance progmrns under Executive Order 12549, "Debarment
and Suspension".

The Program did nol maintain appropriate procuement standard
procedures to assure that contracts include all the required claus€s. In
additior\ the Prog?m is not verirying against the EPLS, that the contracts
formalized in excess of $25,000, awarded to those contractors. are not
suspended or debarred.

co\tfxT

CRITIRIA

CAUSf,

lll



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA D|AZ

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20II

SECTION III _ FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONf,D COSTS

FINDINC NUMBER

r[Df,RAL PROGRAM

l l-lII-1,1 CONTINUED)

CHILD AND ADULT CARE FOOD PROGRAM (CFDA NO. 10.558)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE; PASS THROUGH
COMMOI,,IWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO- DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

COMPLIANCf, AND INTERNAL CONTROL

PROCUREMENT, SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT TESTS

The Municipalily is not in compliance with Code ofFederal Regulations ?,
Section 226.22 (l) and Subpart C, Section 3016.35.

We recommend management to update the contract model according with
the Federal requirements, Also, we recoinmend rnanagement to obtain the
EPLS every time the Municipality formalized a contract and should veriry
ifthe exter.al parties are debarred or excluded.

None

We will give ordeis to the Conlract Division ofthe Municipaliq, to update
and include the required clauses to this type of contract. Also, we will
continue improving our procurement procedures to veriry thmugh the
electronic version available on the lnternet whether or not the individual or
entity is on the list of parties excluded from federal participation in
pfocurement and non-procrrement progftrms,

Implementation Date: April 3 l, 2012
Respomible Person: Mr. Gerardo Carrdsquillo- Program Director

REQUIREMENT

NONCOMPLIANCE

ETFECT

R,ECOMMENDATION

QUf,STIONEDCOSTS

MANAGf,Mf,NT Nf,SPONSE

AND CORRECTIVf, ACTION PLAN
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MLNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SUMMARY SCHf,DTILE OF PRJOR YEAR AUDIT FINDIGS

FOR THE FISCAL Yf,AR ENDED JUNf, 30, 20I1

Jh9 f_oll-olryinc schedule contaim the originar number and title of each of the findings of federal awards
inclrded in the Repofi on Compliance *,ith Req irements Appticable to Each Major progran and Internal
control over complia ce in Accordance with oMB circutat A-r33 a.,d the schedule of irior years, Audit
Findings for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2ol l. The following legend indicates the current status of the
prior years' audit findings:

ORJGINAL
FINDING CFDA
NUMBER NUMBER TITLE

10-II-06 t4.228 Allowrble Activiti€s- Housekeeping Services

No corrective aciion has been taken,
The auditor reissued the finding for the cunent year.
Finding reference I l-lII-04

l0-I1-07 14.253 Reporting

Full corrective action was taken.

l0-Ill-08 14.2r8 Sp€cirl Tesl- Rehabilitation

No corrective action has bem taken.
The auditor rcissued the finding for the crment year.
Finding reference I IJII-06

l0-II-09 93.600 Allowable Cost/ Cost Principal

No corective action has been taken,
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference 1 1 -III-07

l0-lII-10 93.600 Cash Man{gement

No corrective aclion has been laken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the curent year.
Find;ng reference I l-lll-08
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COMMON\ryEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OT JUANA DIAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDT]LE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDIGS (CONTINUED)

FOR THf, TISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20I T

ORICINAL
FINDINC
NUMBf,R

CTDA
NUMBER

IO-III- I I 93.?08 Devis- Bacon Act

No corrective action has been taken.
The audilor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I llII-09

l0-II-12 93.600 Matching, Levet ofEffort and E.rmarking

No corrective action has been taken for the Head Slart progam CFDA 93.600.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I lttl-10

10- t-13 93.600 Procurcment, Sospension and Debarment

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I l-l[-11

l0-It-11 14.871 Reporting

Full corrective action was taken.

r0,[I-15 14.871 Sp€cial Test- Depository Agreement

Fullcorrective action was taken.

l0-[t-t6 10.558 Allowable Cost / Cost Principles

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I I-lll-I2

10.558 Cash Manag€ment

No corrective aclion has been taken.
'Ihe auditor reissued the finding for the current ysdr.
Findins reference I lltt-13

IO-III.]7



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DIAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDT,ILE OT PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDIGS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNf, 30,2O1I

ORIGINAL
FINDING CFDA
NUM}ER NUMBER TITLE

10-lll-18 10.558 procuremen! Suspension and Debarment

No corrective action has been taken
The auditor reissued the finding for the currenl year.
Finding reference I 1-ttt-14

09-07 14.218 Speciat Test- Rehabilitation

No corrective action has been taken,
The auditor reissued the finding for the current vear.
Findine reference I I - I_06

09-09 93.600 Cash Mamgement

No corective action llas been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reterence I tJ -08 '

09-10 91.600 Matching, Levet ofEffort aDd Earmarking

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I tlII_lO

09-12 93.600 procureme[t, Suspemion and Deb.rmedt

No corrective action has been taken,
The auditor reissued the finding for the current vear.
FindinB reterence I t- t_l I -

Reporting
09- Il a_alt

Full corrective action was taken.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF JUANA DiAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDIGS (CONTINUED)

FOR THf, FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2OI1

ORIGINAL
FINDING CIDA
NUMBf,R NUMBER TITLI

09-14 10.558 Attowabte Cost / Cost p nciptes

No correative action has been laken.
The auditor reissued ihe finding for the current year.
Finding reference I I-III-12

09-15 10.558 Cash Man.gement

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the current year.
Finding reference I l-lll-13

09-16 10.558 Procurement, Suspemion and Debarment

No corrective action has been taken.
The auditor reissued the finding for the cment year.
Finding reference I l{ll-14

08-l I 14.21a Sp€ciat T€st- Rehabititation

The audit finding does not warrant further action because two years have
passed since the audit repon in which the finding occurred lras submitted to
the Federal clearinghouse.

08-12 14.871 Reporting

The audit finding does not warrant flrther action because two years have
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to
the Federal clearinghouse.

08-14 93.600 Cash Man.gemetrt

The audit finding does not warrant further action because two years have
passed since the audit report in which ihe finding occurred was submitted to
the Federal clearinghouse.
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COMMON1ryEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITV OF JUANA DiAZ

SUMMARY SCHEDI.ILE OF PRJOR YEAI{AUDIT FINDIGS (CONTINUf,D)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30.20I I

ORIGINAL
FINDING CTDA
NUMBER NUMBER TITLI]

08-16 10.558 Procuremen! Suspeffion and I)ebarment

The audit finding does not warant f,uther action because two years have
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to
the Federal clearinghouse.

08-17 10.558 procuremen! Suspedsion and Debarment

The audit finding does not warrant further action because two years have
passed since the audit report in which the finding occurred was submitted to
the Federal clearinghouse.

08-15 93.600 Procurement, s6pensior end Debarment

The audit finding does not wanant further action because two vears have
passed since the audit repon in which the finding occurred was s;bmined to
the Federal clearinghouse.
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Noemi Padilla Rivera

From:
Senl:
To:
Subject:
Attachments:

Reymound Vega
lvtonday, April30, 2012 9:00 AM
Noemi Padilla Rivera
FW: Single Audit Report 2010-'11 - Mun. Juana Diaz
MJD-Single Audit Report 2010-201 1-FlNAL.pdf

From: Auditoria Interna lmailto:auditoriainternaid@yahoo.com]
Sent: Tueday, April 10,2012 2i44 PM

To: Reymound vega
Cc: Oflcina Finanzas; frtorres-433@hotnail.com
subje€t Single Audit Report 2010-11 - Mun. Juana Diaz

Buenas Tardes:

Adjunto se incluye el Single Audit Report 2010-201 I del Municipio de Juana Diaz en formato

PDF.

Gracias por su atenci6n.

Olicina de Auditoria Intema
Municipio de Juana Diaz
let 7A7 -A37 -21A5 exG: 2256.2257 , 2250

aud@Dei!&Eai@vdasislo

AVISO DE CONTIDf,NCIAI-ID.4D: Esre docu6.nto, y cu.lqui6 .Jo rcluido, @ntmm inaolrdrdn que po<kla@roidere Privilegiad4 @nfdenci.l v d.nla

d. dis .m,6n tl nlfomsrr 6 Dm e I co qcluivo det indir iduo oinLidad a qum sE din8d^ sr u5€d no .s et ddDat{io. el mpleado o el ,€Fnle a quim r
;#;?;;;jffi;"*iir"g. 
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,.*"r" a a*ti,"*i", d€be pdclla; qE h d,wigeidq copia o disrriblci6n de €'r. tr4misi6n esie 6rict m€nte
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